UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCI	\mathbf{DIII}	F	TO

Tender Offer Statement under Section 14(d)(1) or 13(e)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Cardiogenesis Corporation

(Name of Subject Company (Issuer))

CL Falcon, Inc.

a wholly-owned subsidiary of (Offeror)

CryoLife, Inc.

(Parent of Offeror) (Names of Filing Persons)

Common Stock, No Par Value Per Share

(Title of Class of Securities)

14159W-10-9

(CUSIP Number of Class of Securities)

Jeffrey W. Burris, Esq.
Vice President and General Counsel
CryoLife, Inc.
1655 Roberts Boulevard, NW
Kennesaw, Georgia 30144
(770) 419-3355

(Name, Address and Telephone Number of Person Authorized to Receive Notices and Communications on Behalf of Filing Persons)

Copies to:

B. Joseph Alley, Jr., Esq. Arnall Golden Gregory LLP 171 17th Street, NW, Suite 2100 Atlanta, Georgia 30363-1031 (404) 873-8500

Calculation (of Filing Fee
Transaction Valuation*	Amount of Filing Fee**
\$ 24,902,247	\$ 2.891.16

** The amount of the filing fee was calculated in accordance with Rule 0-11(d) of the Exchange Act and Fee Rate Advisory # 5 for fiscal 2011, issued December 22, 2010, by multiplying the transaction valuation by 0.00011610.

Check the box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing with which the offsetting fee was previously paid. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

Amount Previously Paid: Filing Party:

Form or Registration No.: Date Filed

Check the box if the filing relates solely to preliminary communications made before the commencement of a tender offer.

Check the appropriate boxes below to designate any transactions to which the statement relates:

third-party tender offer subject to Rule 14d-1.

sister tender offer subject to Rule 13e-4.

going-private transaction subject to Rule 13d-2.

Check the following box if the filing is a final amendment reporting the results of the tender offer: "

Check the following box if the filing is a final amendment reporting the results of the tender offer: "

Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). This amount is determined by multiplying 52,425,784 shares of Cardiogenesis Corporation

("Cardiogenesis") common stock (representing the number of shares, including shares of common stock outstanding, options and warrants) by \$0.457 per

This Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO is filed by CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation ("CryoLife"), and CL Falcon, Inc., a Florida corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife ("Offeror"). This Schedule TO relates to the offer (the "Offer") by Offeror to purchase all of the outstanding shares of common stock, no par value per share (the "Cardiogenesis Shares"), of Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation ("Cardiogenesis"), at a purchase price of \$0.457 per Share, net to the seller in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011(which, together with any amendments and supplements thereto, collectively constitute the "Offer to Purchase"), and in the related letter of transmittal (as it may be amended or supplemented, the "Letter of Transmittal"), copies of which are attached to this Schedule TO as Exhibits (a)(1)(A) and (a)(1)(B), respectively (the Letter of Transmittal, together with the Offer to Purchase, constitute the "Offer").

Pursuant to General Instruction F to Schedule TO, the information contained in the Offer to Purchase and the Letter of Transmittal, is hereby expressly incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference in response to Items 1 through 9 and Item 11 of this Schedule TO and is supplemented by the information specifically provided for in this Schedule TO. The Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011, among CryoLife, Offeror and Cardiogenesis (the "Merger Agreement"), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit (d)(1) to this Schedule TO, is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 1. SUMMARY TERM SHEET.

share, which is the offer price.

The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Purchase entitled "Summary Term Sheet" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 2. SUBJECT COMPANY INFORMATION.

- (a) The subject company and issuer of the securities subject to the Offer is Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation. Its principal executive offices are located at 11 Musick, Irvine, California 92618 and its telephone number is (949) 420-1800.
- (b) Cardiogenesis has advised CryoLife and Offeror that, as of March 25, 2011, there were 46,638,421 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, no par value, issued and outstanding.
- (c) The information concerning the principal market in which the Cardiogenesis Shares are traded and certain high and low sales prices for the Cardiogenesis Shares in that principal market is set forth in the section of the Offer to Purchase entitled "Price Range of Cardiogenesis' Common Stock and Dividends" and is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 3. IDENTITY AND BACKGROUND OF FILING PERSON.

(a), (b), (c) The information set forth in the sections of the Offer to Purchase entitled "Summary Term Sheet – Who are the companies involved in the Offer and Merger?" and in Annex A "Information Concerning CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Directors and Executive Officers of CryoLife, Inc. and CL Falcon, Inc." is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 4. TERMS OF THE TRANSACTION.

(a)(1)(i)-(viii), (x), (xii) The information set forth in the introduction to the Offer to Purchase, in the sections of the Offer to Purchase entitled "Summary Term Sheet," "The Transaction," "The Merger Agreement," and "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences," and in the Letter of Transmittal is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

(a)(1)(ix), (xi) Not applicable.

(a)(2)(i)-(v), (vii) The information set forth in the sections of the Offer to Purchase entitled "Summary Term Sheet," "The Transaction," "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences," and "The Merger Agreement" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

(a)(2)(vi) Not applicable.

ITEM 5. PAST CONTACTS, TRANSACTIONS, NEGOTIATIONS AND AGREEMENTS.

(a), (b) The information set forth in the sections of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction — Support Agreement," "The Transaction — Chronology of the Transaction," "The Transaction — Interests of Certain Persons — Employment Agreements" and "The Merger Agreement" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 6. PURPOSES OF THE TRANSACTION AND PLANS OR PROPOSALS.

(a), (c)(1), (3-7) The information set forth in the introduction to the Offer to Purchase and in the sections of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction — Purpose of the Offer and the Merger; Plans for Cardiogenesis after the Transaction" and "The Transaction — Possible Effects of the Offer on the Market for the Shares; OTCQB Listing; Exchange Act Registration and Margin Regulations" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

(c)(2) Not applicable.

ITEM 7. SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF FUNDS OR OTHER CONSIDERATION.

- (a), (b) The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction Source and Amount of Funds" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.
 - (d) Not applicable.

ITEM 8. INTEREST IN SECURITIES OF THE SUBJECT COMPANY.

(a), (b) The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction — Relationships Between Cardiogenesis and CryoLife" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 9. PERSONS/ASSETS, RETAINED, EMPLOYED, COMPENSATED OR USED.

(a) The information set forth in the sections of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction — Support Agreement," "The Transaction — Chronology of the Transaction," and "The Transaction — Interests of Certain Persons — Employment Agreements" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 10. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

(a), (b) Not applicable.

ITEM 11. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

- (a)(1) The information set forth in Annex A to the Offer to Purchase entitled "Information Concerning CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Directors and Executive Officers of CryoLife, Inc. and CL Falcon, Inc." is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.
- (a)(2), (3) The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction Approval of the Merger" and "The Transaction State Takeover Statutes" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.
- (a)(4) The information set forth in the section of the Offer to Purchase entitled "The Transaction Possible Effects of the Offer on the Market for Shares; OTCQB Listing, Exchange Act Registration and Margin Regulations" is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.
 - (a)(5) Not applicable.
 - (b) The information set forth in the Offer to Purchase and in the Letter of Transmittal is incorporated in this Schedule TO by reference.

ITEM 12. EXHIBITS.

(a)(1)(A) Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011.

(a)(1)(B)	Form of Letter of Transmittal.
(a)(1)(C)	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
(a)(1)(D)	Form of Letter to Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees.
(a)(1)(E)	Form of Letter to Clients for use by Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees.
(a)(5)(A)	Joint Press Release issued by CryoLife, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation, dated March 29, 2011, announcing the execution of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011, among CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CryoLife, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(a)(5)(B)	Joint Press Release issued by CryoLife, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation, dated April 5, 2011, announcing the commencement of the Offer.
(a)(5)(C)	Slide Presentation dated March 29, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CryoLife, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(d)(1)	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011, among CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to CryoLife, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(d)(2)	Support Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2011, by and between CryoLife, Inc., and certain shareholders of Cardiogenesis listed on Schedule A thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cardiogenesis Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(d)(3)	Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement, dated October 6, 2009, by and between Cardiogenesis Corporation and CryoLife, Inc.
(d)(4)	Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement, dated September 29, 2010, by and between Cardiogenesis Corporation and CryoLife, Inc.

ITEM 13. INFORMATION REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE 13E-3.

Not applicable.

SIGNATURE

After due inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this statement is true, complete and correct.

CRYOLIFE, INC.

By: /s/ D. Ashley Lee

Name: D. Ashley Lee

Title: Executive Vice President, Chief Operating

Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 1, 2011

CL FALCON, INC.

/s/ D. Ashley Lee

Name: D. Ashley Lee

Title: Vice President, Finance

Date: April 1, 2011

EXHIBIT INDEX

(a)(1)(A)	Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011.
(a)(1)(B)	Form of Letter of Transmittal.
(a)(1)(C)	Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.
(a)(1)(D)	Form of Letter to Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees.
(a)(1)(E)	Form of Letter to Clients for use by Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees.

(a)(5)(A)	Joint Press Release issued by CryoLife, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation, dated March 29, 2011, announcing the execution of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011, among CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to CryoLife, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(a)(5)(B)	Joint Press Release issued by CryoLife, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation, dated April 5, 2011, announcing the commencement of the Offer.
(a)(5)(C)	Slide Presentation dated March 29, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to CryoLife, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(d)(1)	Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011, among CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Cardiogenesis Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to CryoLife, Inc.'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(d)(2)	Support Agreement, dated as of March 28, 2011, by and between CryoLife, Inc., and certain shareholders of Cardiogenesis listed on Schedule A thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Cardiogenesis Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 29, 2011).
(d)(3)	Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement, dated October 6, 2009, by and between Cardiogenesis Corporation and CryoLife, Inc.
(d)(4)	Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement, dated September 29, 2010, by and between Cardiogenesis Corporation and CryoLife, Inc.

Offer To Purchase For Cash
All Outstanding Shares of Common Stock
of
CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION
at
\$0.4570 NET PER SHARE
by
CL FALCON, INC.
a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRYOLIFE, INC.

THE OFFER TO PURCHASE AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT 12:00 MIDNIGHT (ONE MINUTE AFTER 11:59 P.M.), NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EVENING OF MAY 2, 2011, UNLESS EXTENDED.

On March 28, 2011, CryoLife, Inc. ("CryoLife"), CL Falcon, Inc. ("Merger Sub"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, and Cardiogenesis Corporation ("Cardiogenesis") entered into an agreement and plan of merger (the "Merger Agreement") providing for CryoLife (through a wholly-owned subsidiary) to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock by means of a tender offer (the "Offer") and a subsequent merger (the "Merger") pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement. Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors unanimously approved and adopted the Merger Agreement, determined that the Offer and the Merger are fair to, and in the best interests of, Cardiogenesis' shareholders and recommends that Cardiogenesis shareholders accept the Offer and tender their shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer. The factors considered by Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors in making the determinations and the recommendation described above are set forth in Cardiogenesis' solicitation/recommendation statement on Schedule 14D-9, which has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and is being mailed to the Cardiogenesis shareholders together with this offer to purchase. Cardiogenesis shareholders are encouraged to review carefully the Schedule 14D-9, together with this offer to purchase.

In the Offer, CryoLife, through Merger Sub, is offering to purchase each share of Cardiogenesis common stock together with the associated preferred stock purchase rights issued in connection with and subject to the Cardiogenesis Rights Agreement dated August 17, 2001, as amended, at a purchase price of \$0.4570 in cash, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes.

The term "Minimum Condition" is defined in "The Transaction - Conditions to the Offer" and generally requires that there has been validly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the expiration date for the Offer (as it may have been extended or re-extended pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the "Expiration Date") that number of Cardiogenesis shares which would represent a majority of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding on a fully diluted basis. If, at any expiration date of the Offer, all of the conditions to the consummation of the Offer (including the Minimum Condition) have been satisfied or waived, but the number of Cardiogenesis shares validly tendered in the Offer and not properly withdrawn is less than that number of Cardiogenesis shares which, when added to the number of Cardiogenesis shares that may be issued pursuant to the Top-Up Option (as defined below) in compliance with the Merger Agreement, would represent at least one Cardiogenesis share more than 90% of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding on a fully diluted basis, then upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement and in accordance with applicable law, Merger Sub may elect to reduce the Minimum Condition to a number of Cardiogenesis shares such that following the purchase of Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer, CryoLife and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Merger Sub, would own 49.9% of the then outstanding Cardiogenesis shares (the "Reduced Purchase Amount") and purchase, on a pro rata basis based on the Cardiogenesis shares actually deposited in the Offer by each such holder of Cardiogenesis shares, Cardiogenesis shares representing the Reduced Purchase Amount.

If the Offer is completed, and subject to obtaining Cardiogenesis shareholder approval, if required, the Offer will be followed by the Merger of Merger Sub with and into Cardiogenesis, in which case any remaining shares of Cardiogenesis common stock not tendered in the Offer will be converted into the right to receive \$0.4570 in cash, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes, except for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock with respect to which dissenters' rights under California law are properly exercised.

The Merger will entitle Cardiogenesis shareholders to dissenters' rights under the California General Corporation Law (the "CGCL"). To exercise dissenters' rights, a Cardiogenesis shareholder must strictly comply with all of the procedures under the CGCL. These procedures are described more fully in the section entitled "The Transaction—Dissenters' Rights" on page 29.

CryoLife has not authorized any person to provide any information or to make any representation in connection with the Offer other than the information contained in this offer to purchase, and if any person provides any information or makes any representation of this kind, that information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by CryoLife.

A summary of the principal terms of the Offer appears on pages 1 to 7. You should read this entire document and the related letter of transmittal carefully before deciding whether to tender your shares in the Offer.

April 5, 2011

IMPORTANT

If you wish to tender all or a portion of your shares in the Offer, you should (i) complete and sign the letter of transmittal (or a facsimile thereof) that accompanies this offer to purchase in accordance with the instructions in the letter of transmittal and mail or deliver the letter of transmittal and all other required documents to Computershare Inc., the depositary for the Offer, together with certificates representing the shares tendered, (ii) follow the procedures for book-entry transfer set forth herein or (iii) request your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee to effect the transaction for you. If your shares are registered in the name of a broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee, you must contact that institution in order to tender your shares.

If you wish to tender shares and cannot deliver certificates representing those shares and all other required documents to the depositary on or prior to the expiration date or cannot comply with the procedures for book-entry transfer on a timely basis, you may be able to tender the shares pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedure described at "Procedure for Tendering" at page 13.

Questions and requests for assistance should be directed to the Information Agent (as defined herein) at its address and telephone number set forth below. Additional copies of this offer to purchase, the related letter of transmittal, the notice of guaranteed delivery and other materials related to the Offer may also be obtained free of charge from the Information Agent. Copies of this offer to purchase, the related letter of transmittal, the notice of guaranteed delivery and any other materials related to the Offer may also be obtained at the website maintained by the SEC at www.sec.gov. You may also contact your broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance.

This offer to purchase and the related letter of transmittal contain important information and you should read both documents carefully and in their entirety before making a decision with respect to the Offer.

The Offer has not been approved or disapproved by the SEC or any state securities commission, nor has the SEC or any state securities commission passed upon the fairness or merits of the Offer or upon the accuracy or adequacy of the information contained in this offer to purchase. Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

The Information Agent for the Offer is:

New York, NY 10038 Banks and Brokers Call Collect: (212) 440-9800 All Others Call Toll-Free: (800) 676-0098 Email: cardiogenesis@georgeson.com

This offer to purchase does not constitute a solicitation of proxies for any meeting of shareholders of Cardiogenesis. CryoLife is not asking you for a proxy and you are requested not to send in a proxy. Any solicitation of proxies that CryoLife or Cardiogenesis might make will be made only pursuant to separate proxy solicitation materials complying with the requirements of Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act").

CryoLife and Merger Sub will promptly amend the Schedule TO filed with the SEC to reflect any material amendments in the information set forth in such Schedule TO as required by Rule 14d-3(b) under the Exchange Act.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY TERM SHEET	1
PRICE RANGE OF CARDIOGENESIS COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS	8
THE TRANSACTION	9
General Description of the Offer	9
Minimum Purchase Condition	10
Top-Up Option	10
Timing of the Offer	11
Extension; Termination and Amendment	11
Designation of Cardiogenesis' Directors after the Offer	12
Exchange of Shares of Cardiogenesis Common Stock; Delivery of Cash	12
Treatment of Equity Awards and Warrants under the Merger Agreement; Rights Agreement	13
Withdrawal Rights	13
Procedure for Tendering	13
Conditions to the Offer	15
Approval of the Merger	17
Interests of Certain Persons	17
Interests of Cardiogenesis' Executive Officers	17
Certain Relationships with Cardiogenesis	22
Relationships between Cardiogenesis and CryoLife	22
Possible Effects of the Offer on the Market for the Shares; OTCQB Listing; Exchange Act Registration and Margin Regulations	23
Background of the Transaction	23
Chronology of the Transaction	23
Purpose of the Offer and the Merger; Plans for Cardiogenesis after the Transaction	27
Source and Amount of Funds	28
State Takeover Statutes	28
Fees and Expenses	28
Support Agreement	29
Dissenters' Rights	29
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	30
The Offer	30
i	
The Merger	32
Other Terms of the Merger Agreement	33
Conditions to the Offer	40
Termination of the Merger Agreement	42
Amendment of the Merger Agreement and Waiver of Rights	44
Support Agreement	45
MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES	46
MITTERITE 0.5.1 EDERITE INCOME TAX CONDEQUENCES	40
Annex A Information concerning CryoLife, Inc., CL Falcon, Inc. and Directors and Officers	

Notice of Short-Form Merger

Chapter 13 of the California General Corporation Law

Annex B Annex C

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

The information contained in this summary term sheet is a summary only and is not meant to be a substitute for the more detailed description and information contained in this offer to purchase, the letter of transmittal or the notice of guaranteed delivery. You are urged to read carefully this offer to purchase, the letter of transmittal and the notice of guaranteed delivery in their entirety. CryoLife and Merger Sub have included cross-references in this summary term sheet to other sections of this offer to purchase where you will find more complete descriptions of the topics mentioned below. The information concerning Cardiogenesis contained herein and elsewhere in this offer to purchase has been provided to CryoLife and the Merger Sub by Cardiogenesis or has been taken from or is based upon publicly available documents or records of Cardiogenesis on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or other public sources at the time of the Offer. CryoLife and Merger Sub have not independently verified the accuracy and completeness of such information. CryoLife and Merger Sub have no knowledge that would indicate that any statement contained herein relating to Cardiogenesis provided to CryoLife and Merger Sub or taken from or based upon such documents and records filed with the SEC is untrue or incomplete in any material respect

As used in this offer to purchase, unless otherwise indicated or the context requires, "CryoLife" refers to CryoLife, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, and "Cardiogenesis" refers to Cardiogenesis Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Securities Sought All issued and outstanding shares of common stock, no par value, of

Cardiogenesis Corporation, together with the associated preferred stock purchase

rights issued in connection with and subject to the Cardiogenesis Rights

Agreement, dated as of August 17, 2001.

Price Offered Per Share \$0.4570 in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding

taxes.

Scheduled Expiration of Offer 12:00 Midnight, New York City time, at the end of the day on May 2, 2011. See

 $\hbox{``The Transaction--Extension; Termination and Amendment."}\\$

Purchaser CL Falcon, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc.

Q: What are CryoLife and Cardiogenesis proposing to do?

A: CryoLife and Cardiogenesis entered into the Merger Agreement on March 28, 2011, pursuant to which CryoLife, through its wholly-owned subsidiary CL Falcon, Inc. ("Merger Sub"), is offering to purchase for cash all of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock (the "Offer") together with the associated preferred stock purchase rights (the "Cardiogenesis rights") issued in connection with and subject to the Cardiogenesis Rights Agreement, dated as of August 17, 2001, as amended (the "Rights Agreement"), between Cardiogenesis and Equiserve Trust Company (which Cardiogenesis rights together with the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock are hereinafter collectively referred to as "Cardiogenesis shares"). As of March 25, 2011, Cardiogenesis had 46,638,421 shares of common stock outstanding, all of which CryoLife seeks to acquire in the Offer. In addition, there were 3,146,940 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock subject to options outstanding as of March 25, 2011 (the "Options"), some of which are exercisable or may become exercisable prior to the expiration of the Offer, and 2,640,000 shares subject to an exercisable warrant outstanding as of March 25, 2011 (the "Warrant"). To the extent these Options or the Warrant are exercised in exchange for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock prior to the expiration of the Offer, CryoLife will seek to acquire the shares issued upon such exercise in the Offer. Promptly after completion of the Offer, CryoLife intends to merge Merger Sub with and into Cardiogenesis (the "Merger"). As a result of the Merger, the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Cardiogenesis will continue as the surviving corporation of the Merger.

Options to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock are not subject to the Offer, but will be canceled in connection with the Merger in exchange for certain cash payments to holders of canceled Options. By virtue of the Merger, the Warrant will become exercisable for the amount of Merger Consideration to which the Warrant holder would have been entitled if the Warrant holder had exercised the Warrant immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger.

See "The Transaction - General Description of the Offer."

Q: What would I receive in exchange for my shares of Cardiogenesis common stock?

A: In the Offer, CryoLife, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Merger Sub, is offering to pay for each share of Cardiogenesis common stock that is validly tendered and not withdrawn cash consideration of \$0.4570 in cash, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes.

1

See "The Transaction - General Description of the Offer."

Q: Who are the companies involved in the Offer and Merger?

A: Pertinent information regarding CryoLife, the Merger Sub and Cardiogenesis is as follows:

CryoLife, Inc.

CryoLife, Inc. 1655 Roberts Boulevard, NW Kennesaw, Georgia 30144 (770) 419-3355

Founded in 1984, CryoLife, Inc. is a leader in the processing and distribution of implantable living human tissues for use in cardiac and vascular surgeries throughout the U.S. and Canada. CryoLife's CryoValve *SG pulmonary heart valve, processed using CryoLife's proprietary SynerGraft technology, has FDA 510(k) clearance for the replacement of diseased, damaged, malformed, or malfunctioning native or prosthetic pulmonary valves. CryoLife's CryoPatch* SG pulmonary cardiac patch has FDA 510(k) clearance for the repair or reconstruction of the right ventricular outflow tract (RVOT), which is a surgery commonly performed in children with congenital heart defects, such as Tetralogy of Fallot, Truncus Arteriosus, and Pulmonary Atresia. CryoPatch SG is distributed in three anatomic configurations: pulmonary hemi-artery, pulmonary trunk, and pulmonary branch. CryoLife's BioGlue Surgical Adhesive is FDA approved as an adjunct to sutures and staples for use in adult patients in open surgical repair of large vessels. BioGlue is also CE marked in the European Community and approved in Canada and Australia for use in soft tissue repair and was recently approved in Japan for use in the repair of aortic dissections. CryoLife's BioFoam™ Surgical Matrix is CE marked in the European Community for use as an adjunct in the sealing of abdominal parenchymal tissues (liver and spleen) when cessation of bleeding by ligature or other conventional methods is ineffective or impractical. CryoLife also distributes PerClot*, an absorbable powder hemostat that has CE Mark designation allowing commercial distribution into the European Community. PerClot is also distributed in other countries outside of the European Community.

CryoLife, Inc. was incorporated January 19, 1984 in Florida. All references to "CryoLife," the "Company," "we," "us" or "our" in this offer to purchase mean CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation, and all entities owned or controlled by CryoLife, Inc., except where it is made clear that the term means only the parent company. CryoLife's telephone number is (770) 419-3355 and its Web site is located at www.cryolife.com. Information contained on the Web site is not part of this offer to purchase. CryoLife's common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"), and its trading symbol is CRY.

Available Information. Pursuant to Rule 14d-3 under the Exchange Act, we have filed with the SEC a Tender Offer Statement on Schedule TO (the "Schedule TO"), of which this offer to purchase forms a part, and exhibits to the Schedule TO. The Schedule TO and the exhibits thereto, as well as other information filed by CryoLife with the SEC, are available for inspection at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. Copies of such information may be obtainable by mail, upon payment of the SEC's customary charges, by writing to the SEC at the address above. The SEC also maintains a web site on the Internet at http://www.sec.gov that contains the Schedule TO and the exhibits thereto and other information that CryoLife has filed electronically with the SEC.

CL Falcon, Inc.

CL Falcon, Inc. 1655 Roberts Boulevard, NW Kennesaw, Georgia 30144 (770) 419-3355

Merger Sub is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife and was incorporated on January 14, 2011 in the State of Florida. Merger Sub has not engaged in any operations and exists solely to make the Offer and otherwise facilitate the transaction. Therefore, although Merger Sub is technically making the Offer and will be a party to the Merger, when the transaction is discussed in this offer to purchase, it generally refers only to CryoLife.

2

Cardiogenesis Corporation

Cardiogenesis Corporation
11 Musick
Irvine, California 92618

Attention: Secretary (949) 420-1800

Cardiogenesis is a medical device company specializing in the treatment of cardiovascular disease and is a leader in devices that treat severe angina. Its market leading holmium:YAG laser system and single use fiber-optic delivery systems are used to perform an FDA-cleared surgical procedure known as Transmyocardial Revascularization (TMR). Cardiogenesis' telephone number is (949) 420-1800 and its Web site is located at www.cardiogenesis.com. Information contained on the Web site is not part of this offer to purchase. Cardiogenesis was incorporated in 1989 in California. Its common stock is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol CGCP.PK.

Q: Is the Offer being made by CryoLife or Merger Sub?

A: The Offer is technically being made by Merger Sub. Because Merger Sub is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, all of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock acquired by Merger Sub in the Offer will actually be beneficially owned and indirectly controlled by CryoLife. Therefore, although Merger Sub is technically making the Offer and is a party to the Merger, when we discuss the Offer and the Merger, we generally refer only to CryoLife.

See "The Transaction - General Description of the Offer."

Q: How long will it take to complete the Offer and the Merger?

A: CryoLife hopes to complete the Offer in May 2011. CryoLife expects to complete the Merger shortly after it completes the Offer. See "The Transaction – Timing of the Offer."

Q: How will the Merger ultimately be approved?

A: Under the California General Corporation Law, or CGCL, the approval of the Cardiogenesis Board and the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares, pursuant to a meeting of shareholders called for that purpose, may be required to approve the principal terms of the Merger. The Cardiogenesis Board has unanimously approved the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby and, unless the

Merger is consummated pursuant to the short-form merger provisions under the CGCL described below, the only remaining required corporate action of Cardiogenesis is the approval of the Merger Agreement by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares. The Merger Agreement requires that the Cardiogenesis Board set the record date for the shareholder approval of the Merger within five business days after the filing of the preliminary proxy for the shareholder meeting for a date immediately following the consummation of the Offer. Accordingly, if the Minimum Condition is satisfied or reduced as described in "— Conditions to the Offer," it is possible that CryoLife will have sufficient voting power, together with the shareholders who have agreed to vote their Cardiogenesis shares in favor of the Merger pursuant to the support agreement, to cause the approval of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby without the affirmative vote of any other shareholders.

Shareholder Meetings. In the Merger Agreement, Cardiogenesis has agreed, if a shareholder vote is required, to convene a meeting of its shareholders following consummation of the Offer for the purpose of considering and voting on the Merger. Cardiogenesis, acting through the Cardiogenesis Board, has further agreed that, if a shareholders' meeting is convened, the Cardiogenesis' Board shall recommend that shareholders of Cardiogenesis vote to approve the principal terms of the Merger. At any such meeting, all of Cardiogenesis shares then owned by CryoLife and Merger Sub and by any of CryoLife's other subsidiaries, and all Cardiogenesis shares for which Cardiogenesis has received proxies to vote, will be voted in favor of approval of the Merger Agreement and the Merger.

Short-Form Merger. The CGCL provides that if a parent company owns at least 90% of each class of stock of a subsidiary, the parent company can effect a short-form merger with that subsidiary without the action of the other shareholders of the subsidiary. Accordingly, if as a result of the Offer, the Top-Up Option or otherwise, CryoLife directly or indirectly owns at least 90% of Cardiogenesis shares, CryoLife, Merger Sub and Cardiogenesis have agreed under the Merger Agreement to take all necessary action to effect the Merger without a meeting of the shareholders of Cardiogenesis, if permitted to do so under the CGCL, as soon as reasonably practicable - and in no event more than 24 hours, unless otherwise restricted or prohibited by applicable law - after such

3

acquisition. Even if CryoLife and Merger Sub do not own at least 90% of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares following consummation of the Offer, CryoLife and Merger Sub could seek to purchase additional Cardiogenesis shares in the open market or from Cardiogenesis pursuant to the Top-Up Option (as defined below) in order to reach the 90% threshold and effect a short-form merger. The consideration per Cardiogenesis share paid for any Cardiogenesis shares so acquired, other than Cardiogenesis shares acquired pursuant to the Top-Up Option, may be greater or less than that paid in the Offer.

Notice of a short-form merger pursuant to Section 1110 of the CGCL is set forth in Annex B to this offer to purchase and incorporated herein by reference. If CryoLife and Merger Sub (together with any other subsidiaries of CryoLife) hold in the aggregate at least 90% of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares, CryoLife will cause the short-form merger to become effective without any further notice to the shareholders of Cardiogenesis. If CryoLife is unable to complete the Merger as a short-form merger, CryoLife intends to cause the Merger to be approved by majority of Cardiogenesis' shareholders at a special meeting, and will cause Cardiogenesis to distribute a proxy statement to the Cardiogenesis shareholders. Upon completion of the Offer, however, it is possible that CryoLife, together with the parties to the support agreement will own a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding, in which case approval of the Merger by Cardiogenesis shareholders would be assured.

See "The Transaction - Approval of the Merger."

Q: Do I have to pay any brokerage fees or commissions?

A: If you are the record owner of your shares and you tender your shares in the Offer, you will not incur any brokerage fees or commissions. If you own your shares through a broker or other nominee who tenders the shares on your behalf, your broker or other nominee may charge you a commission for doing so. You should consult with your broker or other nominee to determine whether any charges will apply.

See "The Transaction – General Description of the Offer."

Q: Is there an agreement governing the Offer?

A: Yes. CryoLife, the Merger Sub and Cardiogenesis have entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011. This Merger Agreement provides, among other things, for the terms and conditions of the Offer and Merger, with Cardiogenesis as the surviving corporation.

See "The Merger Agreement."

Q: What are the "associated preferred stock purchase rights"?

A: For each share of Cardiogenesis common stock issued, the holder of such share also holds one Cardiogenesis right associated with such share pursuant to the Cardiogenesis Rights Agreement. The Cardiogenesis rights are not currently represented by separate certificates. Instead, they are evidenced by the certificates of shares of the Cardiogenesis common stock and they automatically trade with the associated Cardiogenesis shares and may not be separated from them unless a distribution date occurs, as defined in the rights agreement. Generally a distribution date is triggered by certain types of takeover activity, including a third party tender offer, the acquisition of more than 15% of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares, the acquisition of more than 50% of Cardiogenesis' business or assets, or a merger of Cardiogenesis where Cardiogenesis is not the surviving company. However, the rights agreement has been amended to exclude the Offer and the Merger Agreement from the rights agreement such that they will not trigger a distribution. Unless the context otherwise requires, all references to Cardiogenesis shares in this offer to purchase include the Cardiogenesis rights and a tender of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock will include a tender of the associated Cardiogenesis rights. See "The Transaction — Treatment of Equity Awards and Warrants under the Merger Agreement; Rights Agreement."

Q: Do you have the financial resources to make payment?

A: Yes. CryoLife has available, and will provide to the Merger Sub, funds in an amount sufficient to allow the Merger Sub to complete the Offer and the Merger. We estimate that we will need approximately \$22.8 million to purchase all of the shares pursuant to the Offer, to consummate the Merger (which estimate includes payments in respect of outstanding options and unvested restricted shares) and to pay estimated related transaction fees and expenses that have not already been paid. The Offer is not conditioned upon our ability to finance the purchase of shares pursuant to the Offer. As of March 31, 2011, we

See "The Transaction - Source and Amount of Funds."

Q: Is your financial condition relevant to my decision to tender my shares in the Offer?

- A: Except as discussed in the previous question, we do not think our financial condition is relevant to your decision whether to tender shares and accept the Offer because of the following:
 - the Offer is being made for all outstanding shares solely for cash;
 - Merger Sub, through CryoLife, will have sufficient funds available to purchase all shares validly tendered in the Offer and not validly
 withdrawn and to purchase all shares upon completion of the Merger;
 - the Offer is not subject to any financing condition; and
 - if we consummate the Offer, we expect to acquire all remaining shares for the same cash price in the Merger.

See "The Transaction - Source and Amount of Funds."

Q: Does Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors support the Offer and the Merger?

A: Yes. Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors unanimously approved the Offer and the Merger and recommends that you tender your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer. Information about the recommendation of Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors is described in Cardiogenesis' Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9, which is being mailed to you together with this offer to purchase.

See "The Transaction – General Description of the Offer."

Q: Have any of the shareholders of Cardiogenesis agreed to tender their shares?

A: Yes. Paul McCormick, the Executive Chairman of Cardiogenesis, Richard P. Lanigan, the Executive Vice President, Marketing of Cardiogenesis, and William R. Abbott, the Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of Cardiogenesis, entered into a support agreement pursuant to which they have agreed to tender into the exchange offer an aggregate of 1,276,859 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which represent approximately 2.7% of the common stock of Cardiogenesis outstanding as of March 25, 2011, as well as any shares that may be acquired upon exercise of outstanding options.

See "The Transaction - Support Agreement."

Q: What are the most significant conditions to the completion of the Offer?

A: CryoLife's obligation to accept shares of Cardiogenesis common stock for payment is subject to several conditions that must be satisfied or waived by Merger Sub prior to the expiration of the Offer, including:

- there having been validly tendered and not withdrawn (not including shares of Cardiogenesis common stock subject to a notice of guaranteed delivery unless such shares have actually been delivered) prior to the expiration date of the Offer, a number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which, together with any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that CryoLife, Merger Sub or any other subsidiary of CryoLife owns, constitute at least a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock on a fully diluted basis (as though all rights and convertible securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock had been so converted or exercised), which is referred to in this offer to purchase as the "Minimum Condition";
- Cardiogenesis having not breached or failed to comply in any material respect with any of its obligations, covenants or agreements in the Merger Agreement;
- the representations and warranties of Cardiogenesis contained in the Merger Agreement having been true and correct as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the time for acceptance and payment of the shares (except to the

5

extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date), subject to applicable materiality qualifications;

- no action by any governmental entity or law that prohibits the Offer or the Merger or imposes material limitations on CryoLife's ownership
 of the shares of Cardiogenesis having been taken or enacted;
- on event having occurred that has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Cardiogenesis; and

• the Merger Agreement not having been terminated.

The Minimum Condition will be a majority of 52,425,784 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which is equal to the sum of the total number of outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and the total number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock issuable upon the exercise of all outstanding Options and the Warrant to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. Other than the Options and the Warrant, there are no rights or other securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding. As a result, there must be validly tendered and not withdrawn 26,212,893 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer to satisfy the Minimum Condition. Assuming that the shareholders of Cardiogenesis who have entered into the support agreement tender or cause to be tendered all of the shares they beneficially owned as of April 5, 2011, 24,936,034 additional shares of Cardiogenesis common stock must be tendered in the Offer to satisfy the Minimum Condition.

However, if the number of Cardiogenesis shares validly tendered in the Offer and not properly withdrawn is less than that number of Cardiogenesis shares which, when added to the number of Cardiogenesis shares that may be issued pursuant to the Top-Up Option (as defined below) in compliance with the Merger Agreement, would represent at least one Cardiogenesis share more than 90% of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding, on a fully diluted basis, then upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement and in accordance with applicable law, Merger Sub may elect to reduce the Minimum Condition to a number of Cardiogenesis shares such that following the purchase of Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer, CryoLife and its whollyowned subsidiaries, including Merger Sub, would own 49.9% of the then outstanding Cardiogenesis shares.

These and other conditions to the Offer are discussed in this offer to purchase in the section entitled "The Merger Agreement—Conditions to the Offer" beginning on page 15.

Q: What is the Top-Up Option?

A: Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Cardiogenesis has granted to Merger Sub an irrevocable option to purchase newly-issued shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in an amount up to the lowest number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that, when added to the aggregate number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock owned by CryoLife and Merger Sub, will constitute one share of Cardiogenesis common stock more than 90% of the total shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding, on a fully-diluted basis (the "Top-Up Option"). Subject to applicable legal and regulatory requirements, the Top-Up Option is exercisable by CryoLife if, following completion of the Offer, CryoLife or Merger Sub beneficially own at least 83.5% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. The consideration payable by CryoLife upon exercise of the Top-Up Option will have a value equal to \$0.4570 for each share tendered, payable in cash, a full recourse promissory note bearing interest at the prime rate and with a one-year maturity date, secured to the extent required by California legal requirements, or a combination of the foregoing. Any promissory note issued in connection with the Top-Up Option will remain an asset of the surviving corporation in the Merger. If the Top-Up Option is exercised, CryoLife and Merger Sub must undertake to consummate as promptly as practicable the Merger to acquire all remaining shares of Cardiogenesis common stock not acquired in the Offer. The Top-Up Option terminates concurrently with any termination of the Merger Agreement. Any dilutive impact on the value of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock as a result of the existence or exercise of the Top-Up Option, the issuance of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Top-Up Option or the payment for such shares with a promissory note will not be taken into account in determining the fair value of any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock for which dissenters' rights have been properly asserted.

See "The Transaction - Top-Up Option."

Q: How do I participate in the Offer?

A: You are urged to read this entire offer to purchase carefully, and to consider how the Offer and the Merger affect you. Then, if you wish to tender your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, you should complete and sign the enclosed letter of transmittal and return it with your stock certificates to Computershare Inc., the designated depositary and paying agent, or, if you hold your shares in "street name" through a broker or other nominee, ask your broker or other nominee to tender your shares. Please read this offer to

6

purchase carefully for more information about the procedures for tendering your shares, the timing of the Offer, extensions of the Offer period and your rights to withdraw your shares from the Offer prior to the expiration date.

See "The Transaction - Procedure for Tendering."

Q: Will Cardiogenesis have the opportunity to seek alternative transaction proposals?

A: Yes, subject to limitations. The Merger Agreement provides that, for a period of 20 days after the signing of the Merger Agreement, Cardiogenesis may initiate, solicit and encourage, whether publicly or otherwise, alternative acquisition proposals, and enter into, engage in, and maintain discussions or negotiations with respect to acquisition proposals, or inquiries, proposals or offers or other efforts or attempts that may reasonably be expected to lead to an acquisition proposal, or otherwise cooperate with or assist or participate in, or facilitate any such inquiries, proposals, offers, efforts, attempts, discussions or negotiations. This is referred to as a "go-shop" period, and it ends on April 17, 2011. After that date, the Merger Agreement has a "no-shop" provision which prohibits Cardiogenesis from soliciting any additional offers or proposals, although it may receive, consider and respond to unsolicited offers.

See "The Merger Agreement – Alternative Transactions."

Q: May Cardiogenesis enter into alternative transactions?

A: If the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis receives an acquisition proposal without violating the no-shop provision, and in good faith and upon advice of its financial and legal advisors, determines it to be a superior proposal and that it would be a breach of the board's fiduciary duties not to act upon the proposal, the Cardiogenesis Board may change its recommendation regarding the CryoLife transaction and may enter into an agreement for the alternative acquisition transaction. However, Cardiogenesis must first notify CryoLife of the proposal and its determinations and must negotiate with CryoLife to give CryoLife the opportunity to revise the terms of the Offer and Merger to cause the alternative acquisition proposal to no longer be a superior proposal. To be considered a "superior proposal," the acquisition proposal must be a bona fide offer for at least 50% of the assets or voting securities of Cardiogenesis and must be more favorable, from a financial point of view, to the shareholders of Cardiogenesis. In addition, the merger agreement provides for a "go-shop" period of 20 days after the date of the signing of the merger agreement. If Cardiogenesis enters into a superior proposal transaction within this period, the amount of the termination fee is reduced from \$1,500,000 to \$1,000,000.

See "The Merger Agreement – Alternative Transactions."

Q: What will happen if I do not tender my shares of Cardiogenesis common stock?

A: After completion of the Offer, CryoLife intends to complete a Merger of its wholly owned subsidiary, Merger Sub, with and into Cardiogenesis. As a result of the Merger, the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and Cardiogenesis will continue as the surviving corporation of the Merger. Upon consummation of the Merger, except for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock with respect to which dissenters' rights under California law are properly exercised, each share of Cardiogenesis common stock that has not been tendered and accepted for payment in the Offer will be converted in the Merger into the right to receive \$0.4570 in cash. If the Merger is not consummated, and you did not tender your shares, then you will continue to own shares in Cardiogenesis, and the Offer may have adverse effects on Cardiogenesis and your ability to sell your shares in the future, as described at "The Transaction – Possible Effects of the Offer on the Market for the Shares; OTCQB Listing; Exchange Act Registration and Margin Regulations."

See "The Transaction - General Description of the Offer."

Q: Will I have dissenters' rights in connection with the Offer?

A: No dissenters' rights are available in connection with the Offer. However, under California law, shareholders who continue to own their Cardiogenesis shares at the time of the Merger and fulfill certain other requirements of the CGCL will have the right to demand and perfect dissenters' rights in connection with the Merger.

See "The Transaction – Dissenters' Rights."

Q: Can I withdraw my tender?

A: Shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered pursuant to the Offer may be withdrawn at any time prior to the expiration date of the Offer, as it may be extended. See "The Transaction – Withdrawal Rights."

7

Q: Will I be taxed on the cash I receive?

A: The receipt of cash in exchange for your shares in the Offer or the Merger will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes and may also be a taxable transaction under applicable state, local or foreign income or other tax laws. In general, you will recognize capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount of cash you receive and your adjusted tax basis in the shares sold pursuant to the Offer or exchanged for cash pursuant to the Merger. This capital gain or loss will generally be long-term capital gain or loss if you have held the shares for more than one year as of the date of your sale or exchange of the shares pursuant to the Offer or the Merger.

You should carefully read the discussion under "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences." Tax matters are very complicated and the tax consequences to you of the Offer and the Merger will depend on the facts of your own situation, as well as facts that will not be known until after the Offer has been completed and the Merger has occurred. You are urged to consult your tax advisor for a full understanding of the tax consequences of participating in the Offer or the Merger.

See "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences."

Q: When does the Offer expire?

A: Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the initial expiration date for the Offer is May 2, 2011. In certain circumstances, CryoLife is required to or may extend the Offer beyond this date.

Q: Can the Offer be extended, terminated or amended?

- A: Subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Offer:
 - shall be extended by CryoLife (but not later than August 31, 2011) if any of the conditions to the Offer shall not have been satisfied or waived;
 - may be extended by CryoLife if and to the extent required by the SEC or the NYSE or any other applicable law; and
 - may be extended once by CryoLife (but not later than August 31, 2011) if all of the conditions to the Offer shall have been satisfied or waived, but less than 90% of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock on a fully diluted basis have been tendered in the Offer.

During an extension, all shares of Cardiogenesis common stock previously tendered and not properly withdrawn will remain subject to the Offer, subject to a Cardiogenesis shareholder's right to withdraw its shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. If the Offer has not been consummated by August 31, 2011, Cardiogenesis or CryoLife may terminate the Merger Agreement.

Q: How will I be notified if the Offer is extended?

A: If we extend the Offer, we will inform the depositary of any extension and will promptly make a public announcement of the extension in accordance with Rule 14e-1(d) under the Exchange Act. If we elect to provide or extend any subsequent offering period, a public announcement will be made promptly after the day on which the Offer was scheduled to expire in accordance with Rule 14d-11(d) under the Exchange Act.

See "The Transaction – Extension; Termination and Amendment."

Q: Whom should I contact if I have more questions about the transaction?

A: If you have questions about the transaction, please contact our information agent, Georgeson Inc., at (212) 440-9800 (banks and brokers) or toll free at (800) 676-0098 (all others).

PRICE RANGE OF CARDIOGENESIS COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS

Cardiogenesis common stock is quoted on the OTCQB market under the symbol "CGCP.PK." The OTCQB was established in 2010 by OTC Markets (formerly known as Pink Sheets) for over the counter stock of companies who are current in their reporting obligations with the SEC. Cardiogenesis shares began quotation on the OTCQB in 2010. Prior to that time they were quoted on the Pink Sheets. The following table shows the high and low bid quotations for the common stock as reported by OTCQB or Pink Sheets

during each quarter being reported. Prices below reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail write-up, write-down or commission and may not represent actual transactions. Cardiogenesis did not declare any cash dividends on its common stock during the periods shown.

D : D . 6

	Pric	e Kange	01
	Com	mon Sto	ck
2009	High		Low
First Quarter	\$ 0.34	\$	0.08
Second Quarter	\$ 0.24	\$	0.16
Third Quarter	\$ 0.22	\$	0.15
Fourth Quarter	\$ 0.25	\$	0.13
2010	High		Low
First Quarter	\$ 0.38	\$	0.19
Second Quarter	\$ 0.41	\$	0.21
Third Quarter	\$ 0.38	\$	0.20
Fourth quarter	\$ 0.28	\$	0.22
2011	High		Low
First Quarter	\$ 0.45	\$	0.24

On March 28, 2011 the trading day before the public announcement of the Offer and the Merger, the last sale price per share of Cardiogenesis common stock as reported on the OTCQB was \$0.32. On March 31, 2011, the most recent practicable date prior to this offer to purchase, the last sale price per share of Cardiogenesis common stock as reported on the OTCQB was \$0.447. As of February 28, 2011, shares of Cardiogenesis common stock were held by 226 shareholders of record.

The timing and amount of future dividends paid by Cardiogenesis are subject to determination by its Board of Directors in its discretion and will depend upon earnings, cash requirements and the financial condition of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries, and other factors deemed relevant by its Board of Directors. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Cardiogenesis has agreed not to declare or pay any dividends with respect to its common stock, except that Cardiogenesis may declare and pay ordinary course dividends payable by a subsidiary of Cardiogenesis to Cardiogenesis or to another of its subsidiaries, provided that such dividends do not trigger a material tax liability. See "The Merger Agreement—Other Terms of the Merger Agreement—Conduct of Business" on page 35.

THE TRANSACTION

General Description of the Offer

CryoLife and Merger Sub are offering to purchase for cash in the amount of \$0.4570, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes, each outstanding share of Cardiogenesis common stock validly tendered and not properly withdrawn, subject to the terms and conditions described in this offer to purchase and the related letter of transmittal.

The expiration time and date of the Offer is 12:00 midnight (one minute after 11:59 P.M.), New York City time, on the evening of May 2, 2011, unless CryoLife extends the period of time for which the Offer is open, in which case the term "expiration date" means the latest time and date on which the Offer, as so extended, expires.

If, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, or any exercise by CryoLife of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife owns 90% or more of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, the Merger can be accomplished without a vote of Cardiogenesis shareholders. If, on the other hand, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, or any exercise by CryoLife of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife owns less than 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, the affirmative vote at a meeting of at least a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding on the record date for such meeting will be needed to complete the Merger. Upon completion of the Offer, it is possible that CryoLife, together with the parties to the support agreement will own a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding, in which case approval of the Merger by Cardiogenesis shareholders would be assured.

If you are the record owner of your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and you tender those shares directly to Computershare Inc., the depositary and paying agent, you will not incur any brokerage fees or commissions. If you own your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock through a broker or other nominee, and your broker or other nominee tenders those shares on your behalf, your broker or other nominee may charge you a commission for doing so. You should consult with your broker or nominee to

9

determine whether any charges will apply. CryoLife is required to be responsible for any transfer taxes on the exchange of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer that are imposed on the acquiror of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. You will be responsible for any transfer taxes that are imposed on the transferor.

that must be satisfied or waived prior to the expiration of the Offer, including the Minimum Condition referred to below in the section entitled "The Merger Agreement—Conditions to the Offer" on page 15.

Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors unanimously approved the Offer and the Merger and recommends that you tender your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer. Information about the recommendation of Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors is described in Cardiogenesis' Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9, which is being mailed to you together with this offer to purchase. See "The Transaction – Chronology of the Transaction."

The Offer is not being made to (nor will tenders be accepted from or on behalf of) holders of shares in any jurisdiction in which the making of the Offer or the acceptance thereof would not be in compliance with the securities, blue sky or other laws of such jurisdiction. In those jurisdictions where applicable laws require the Offer to be made by a licensed broker or dealer, the Offer shall be deemed to be made on behalf of Merger Sub by one or more registered brokers or dealers licensed under the laws of such jurisdiction to be designated by Merger Sub.

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation on behalf of CryoLife or Merger Sub not contained herein or in the Letter of Transmittal, and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized. No broker, dealer, bank, trust company, fiduciary or other person shall be deemed to be the agent of Merger Sub, the depositary or the information agent for the purpose of the Offer, unless specifically designated as such by Merger Sub as described in the previous paragraph.

Minimum Purchase Condition

The term "Minimum Condition" is defined in the section entitled "Conditions to the Offer" and generally requires that there has been validly tendered and not withdrawn prior to the Expiration Date that number of Cardiogenesis shares which would represent a majority of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding on a fully diluted basis. If, at any expiration date of the Offer, all of the conditions to the consummation of the Offer (including the Minimum Condition) have been satisfied or waived, but the number of Cardiogenesis shares validly tendered in the Offer and not properly withdrawn is less than that number of Cardiogenesis shares which, when added to the number of Cardiogenesis shares that may be issued pursuant to the Top-Up Option (as defined below) in compliance with the Merger Agreement, would represent at least one Cardiogenesis share more than 90% of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding on a fully diluted basis, then upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement and in accordance with applicable law, Merger Sub may elect to reduce the Minimum Condition to a number of Cardiogenesis shares such that following the purchase of Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer, CryoLife and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Merger Sub, would own 49.9% of the then outstanding Cardiogenesis shares and purchase, on a pro rata basis based on the Cardiogenesis shares actually deposited in the Offer by each such holder of Cardiogenesis shares, Cardiogenesis shares representing that amount.

Top-Up Option

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Cardiogenesis has granted to Merger Sub an irrevocable Top-Up Option to purchase newly-issued shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in an amount up to the lowest number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that, when added to the aggregate number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock owned by CryoLife and Merger Sub, will constitute one share of Cardiogenesis common stock more than 90% of the total shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding on a fully diluted basis. Subject to applicable legal and regulatory requirements, the Top-Up Option is exercisable by Merger Sub if, following completion of the Offer, CryoLife or Merger Sub beneficially own at least 83.5% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. The consideration payable by Merger Sub upon exercise of the Top-Up Option will have a value equal to the cash consideration paid in the Offer, and shall be payable in cash, through the issuance of a full recourse promissory note, or a by combination of the foregoing. The promissory note will bear interest at the prime rate and have a one-year maturity date, will be secured to the extent required by California legal requirements, may be prepaid without premium or penalty, and shall provide that the unpaid principal and interest will become immediately due and payable if CryoLife fails to make payment for 30 days or CryoLife files or has filed against it any petition under bankruptcy or insolvency law. Any promissory note issued in connection with the Top-Up Option will remain an asset of the surviving corporation in the Merger. If the Top-Up Option is exercised, CryoLife and Merger Sub must undertake to consummate as promptly as practicable the Merger described below to acquire all remaining shares of Cardiogenesis common stock not acquired in the Offer. The Top-Up Option terminates concurrently with any termination of the Merger Agreement.

10

Timing of the Offer

The Offer commenced on April 5, 2011 and is currently scheduled to expire on May 2, 2011, pursuant to the Merger Agreement between CryoLife and Cardiogenesis, dated March 28, 2011. However, the Offer may be extended in certain circumstances as described below.

Extension; Termination and Amendment

Subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Offer:

- shall be extended by CryoLife (but not later than August 31, 2011) if any of the conditions to the Offer shall not have been satisfied or waived;
- shall be extended by CryoLife if and to the extent required by the SEC, the NYSE or any other applicable law; and
- may be extended once by CryoLife (but not later than August 31, 2011) if all of the conditions to the Offer shall have been satisfied or waived, but less than 90% of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock on a fully diluted basis have been tendered in the Offer.

During an extension, all shares of Cardiogenesis common stock previously tendered and not properly withdrawn will remain subject to the Offer, subject to the right to withdraw tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. If the Offer has not been consummated by August 31, 2011, Cardiogenesis or CryoLife may terminate the Merger Agreement. See the section entitled "The Transaction – Withdrawal Rights" on page 13 for more details.

CryoLife reserves the right to make any changes in the terms and conditions of the Offer by giving oral or written notice of the change to the depositary and by making a public announcement thereof. However, without the prior written consent of Cardiogenesis, except pursuant to CryoLife's matching right in the event of a competing offer, CryoLife cannot make any changes that:

- reduce the cash consideration;
- change the form of consideration to be paid for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer (except to add consideration, pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the Merger Agreement or pursuant to CryoLife's matching right in the event of a competing offer);
- decrease the number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock sought in the Offer;
- add to the conditions in the Offer or impose conditions to the Offer in addition to those set forth in the Merger Agreement;
- extend the Offer except as required or permitted by the Merger Agreement;
- make any other change to any of the terms and conditions to the Offer that is adverse to the holders of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock; or
- abandon or terminate the Offer except as provided for in the Merger Agreement.

CryoLife is required to follow any extension, termination, amendment or delay, as promptly as practicable, with a public announcement. In the case of an extension, the announcement is required to be issued no later than 9:00 A.M., New York City time, on the next business day after the previously scheduled expiration date. Subject to applicable law, including Rules 14d-4(d) and 14d-6(c) under the Exchange Act, which, in the case of the Offer will require that any material change in the information published, sent or given to Cardiogenesis shareholders in connection with the Offer be promptly sent to Cardiogenesis shareholders in a manner reasonably designed to inform Cardiogenesis shareholders of the change, and without limiting the manner in which CryoLife may choose to make any public announcement, CryoLife assumes no obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any public announcement other than by making a release through PR Newswire.

11

If CryoLife makes a material change in the terms of the Offer or the information concerning the Offer, or if it waives a material condition of the Offer, CryoLife will extend the Offer to the extent required under the Exchange Act. If, prior to the expiration date and after obtaining Cardiogenesis' prior written consent, CryoLife changes the percentage of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock being sought or the consideration offered to you, that change will apply to all shareholders whose shares of Cardiogenesis common stock are accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer. If at the time notice of that change is first published, sent or given to you, the Offer is scheduled to expire at any time earlier than the tenth business day from and including the date that the notice is first so published, sent or given, CryoLife is required to extend the Offer until the expiration of that ten business day period. For purposes of the Offer, a "business day" means any day other than a day on which the SEC is closed.

Designation of Cardiogenesis' Directors after the Offer

Upon the acceptance of payment of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer (and the exercise of the Top-Up Option if necessary), if CryoLife so requests, Cardiogenesis has agreed to take all action reasonably necessary to cause CryoLife's designees to be elected or appointed to Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors, including, at CryoLife's option, increasing the number of directors, so that CryoLife will have representation on the Cardiogenesis Board in proportion to its share ownership. In the event that CryoLife's designees are elected or appointed to the Cardiogenesis Board, Cardiogenesis is obligated to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors to maintain at least three directors who were members of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors as of March 28, 2011 and who are independent for purposes of Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act. Cardiogenesis' obligations with respect to CryoLife's board designees shall be subject to Section 14(f) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14f-1 thereunder.

In addition, upon payment for the Cardiogenesis shares pursuant to the Offer, CryoLife will be entitled to appoint two individuals to serve as observers to the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors.

As of this time, CryoLife has not determined if it will designate any directors or who will be its designees on the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors. However, any such designees will be selected from a list of potential designees comprised of officers or directors of CryoLife, which officers and directors are set forth in Annex A to this offer to purchase. If CryoLife's designees are elected to Cardiogenesis' board prior to the completion of the Merger, the affirmative vote of a majority of the continuing directors will be required for Cardiogenesis to, among other things, amend or terminate the Merger Agreement.

Exchange of Shares of Cardiogenesis Common Stock; Delivery of Cash

Upon the terms of and subject to the conditions to the Offer, including if the Offer is extended or amended, the terms and conditions of such extension or amendment, CryoLife is required to accept for payment, and to deliver cash in exchange for, shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that are validly tendered and not properly withdrawn, promptly after the expiration date. In all cases, exchange of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered and accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer will be made only after timely receipt by the depositary of the following:

- certificates for the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or a confirmation of a book-entry transfer of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the depositary's account at The Depository Trust Company, which is referred to in this offer to purchase as "DTC"; and
- a properly completed and duly executed letter of transmittal or a manually signed copy of that document, and any other required documents.

For purposes of the Offer, CryoLife will be deemed to have accepted for payment shares of Cardiogenesis common stock validly tendered and not properly withdrawn as, if and when CryoLife notifies the depositary of its acceptance of the tenders of those shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. The depositary is required to then deliver cash in exchange for the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock promptly after receipt of the notice referred to in the preceding sentence. The paying agent will act as agent for CryoLife for the purpose of receiving cash and transmitting cash to Cardiogenesis shareholders that have tendered their shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer. You will not receive any interest on any cash that CryoLife pays to you, even if there is a delay in making the exchange, and your consideration will be subject to applicable tax withholding.

If CryoLife does not accept any tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock for payment pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Offer for

any reason, CryoLife is required to return certificates for the unexchanged shares of Cardiogenesis common stock to the tendering shareholder or, in the case of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered by book-entry transfer of unexchanged shares of Cardiogenesis common stock into the depositary's account pursuant to the procedures described below in the

12

section entitled "—Procedure for Tendering" on page 13, the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock will be credited to an account maintained within DTC, as soon as practicable following expiration or termination of the Offer.

Treatment of Equity Awards and Warrants under the Merger Agreement; Rights Agreement

The Merger Agreement provides that each Option with respect to the shares that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether vested or unvested, will be canceled and, in exchange therefor, the surviving corporation will pay to each person who was holding such canceled Option, an amount in cash (without interest and subject to deduction for any required withholding taxes) equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the cash consideration over the exercise price per share of such Option and (ii) the number of shares subject to such Option. However, if the exercise price per share under any Option is equal to or greater than the cash consideration, then such Option will be canceled without any cash payment being made in respect thereof. The Merger Agreement requires Cardiogenesis to amend its option plan to provide for the above described treatment of the options on the Merger.

As soon as reasonably practicable following the effective time of the Merger, CryoLife shall issue a replacement warrant to each Warrant holder providing identical terms to the Warrant except that such replacement warrant shall be exercisable into the amount of cash consideration to which the Warrant holder would have been entitled if the Warrant holder had exercised the Warrant immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger.

The Cardiogenesis Rights Agreement may have the effect of discouraging unsolicited takeover proposals. The rights issued under the Cardiogenesis Rights Agreement would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire Cardiogenesis on terms not approved in advance by Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors. Cardiogenesis has amended the Cardiogenesis Rights Agreement to provide that the Offer and the Merger will not cause a distribution under the plan.

Withdrawal Rights

You may withdraw your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered pursuant to the Offer at any time on or prior to the expiration date of the Offer, as it may be extended.

For your withdrawal to be effective, the depositary must receive from you a written, telex or facsimile transmission notice of withdrawal at its address on the back cover of this offer to purchase, and your notice must include your name, address, social security number, the certificate number(s) and the number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock to be withdrawn as well as the name of the registered holder, if it is different from that of the person who tendered the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock.

A financial institution must guarantee all signatures on the notice of withdrawal unless the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock have been tendered for the account of any eligible institution. Most banks, savings and loan associations and brokerage houses are able to provide these signature guarantees for you. The financial institution must be an "eligible institution," which means it is a participant in the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program. If shares of Cardiogenesis common stock have been tendered pursuant to the procedures for book-entry tender discussed under the caption below entitled "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering," any notice of withdrawal must specify the name and number of the account at DTC to be credited with the withdrawn shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and must otherwise comply with the DTC procedures. If certificates have been delivered to the depositary, the name of the registered shareholder and the serial numbers of the particular certificates evidencing the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock withdrawn must also be furnished to the depositary, as stated above, prior to the physical release of the certificates. CryoLife will decide all questions regarding the form and validity (including time of receipt) of any notice of withdrawal, in its sole discretion, and CryoLife's decision shall be final and binding.

Neither CryoLife, the depositary, Georgeson Inc. (the information agent), nor any other person will be under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in any notice of withdrawal or will incur any liability for failure to give proper notification. Any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock properly withdrawn will be deemed not to have been validly tendered for purposes of the Offer. However, you may re-tender withdrawn shares of Cardiogenesis common stock by following one of the procedures discussed below in the section entitled "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" at any time on or prior to the expiration date.

Procedure for Tendering

For you to validly tender shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer, (a) the enclosed letter of transmittal, properly completed and duly executed or a manually executed copy of that document, along with any required signature guarantees, or an agent's message in connection with a bookentry transfer, and any other required documents, must be transmitted to and received by the depositary at Computershare, c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions, P.O. Box 43011, Providence, RI 02940-3011, or, to Attn: Voluntary Corporate Actions, 250 Royall Street, Canton, MA 02021 (overnight/express mail/hand delivery), and certificates for

13

tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock must be received by the depositary at that address or the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock must be tendered pursuant to the procedures for book-entry tender described below (and a confirmation of receipt of the tender received, which confirmation CryoLife refers to below as a "book-entry confirmation"), in each case before the expiration date, or (b) you must comply with the guaranteed delivery procedures described below.

confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgment from the participant in DTC tendering the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that are the subject of the book-entry confirmation, that the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the letter of transmittal and that CryoLife may enforce that agreement against the participant.

The depositary is required to establish accounts with respect to the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock at DTC for purposes of the Offer within three business days after April 5, 2011, and any financial institution that is a participant in DTC may make book-entry delivery of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock by causing DTC to transfer tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock into the depositary's account in accordance with DTC's procedure for the transfer. However, although delivery of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock may be effected through book-entry at DTC, the letter of transmittal (or a manually signed copy thereof), with any required signature guarantees, or an agent's message in connection with a book-entry transfer, and any other required documents, must, in any case, be transmitted to and received by the depositary at the address on the back cover of this offer to purchase prior to the expiration date, or the guaranteed delivery procedures described below must be followed.

Signatures on all letters of transmittal must be guaranteed by an eligible institution, except in cases in which shares of Cardiogenesis common stock are tendered either by a registered holder of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock who has not completed the box entitled "Special Issuance Instructions" on the letter of transmittal or for the account of an eligible institution. If the certificates for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock are registered in the name of a person other than the person who signs the letter of transmittal, or if certificates for unexchanged shares of Cardiogenesis common stock are to be issued to a person other than the registered holder(s), the certificates must be endorsed or accompanied by appropriate stock powers, in either case signed exactly as the name or names of the registered owner or owners appear on the certificates, with the signature(s) on the certificates or stock powers guaranteed in the manner CryoLife has described above.

The method of delivery of Cardiogenesis stock certificates and all other required documents, including delivery through DTC, is at your option and risk, and the delivery will be deemed made only when actually received by the depositary. If delivery is by mail, CryoLife recommends registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured. In all cases, you should allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery.

If you wish to tender shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer and your certificates are not immediately available or you cannot deliver the certificates and all other required documents to the depositary prior to the expiration date or cannot complete the procedure for book-entry transfer on a timely basis, your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock may nevertheless be tendered, so long as all of the following conditions are satisfied:

- you make your tender by or through an eligible institution;
- the enclosed notice of guaranteed delivery, properly completed and duly executed, substantially in the form enclosed with this offer to purchase, is received by the depositary as provided below on or prior to the expiration date; and
- the certificates for all tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or a confirmation of a book-entry transfer of tendered securities into the depositary's account at DTC as described above, in proper form for transfer, together with a properly completed and duly executed letter of transmittal or a manually signed copy thereof, with any required signature guarantees (or, in the case of a book-entry transfer, an agent's message) and all other documents required by the letter of transmittal are received by the depositary within three NYSE trading days, after the date of execution of the notice of guaranteed delivery.

You may deliver the notice of guaranteed delivery by hand or transmit it by facsimile transmission or mail to the depositary and you must include a signature guarantee by an eligible institution in the form provided in that notice. In all cases, CryoLife is required to exchange shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered and accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer only after timely receipt by the depositary of certificates for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock (or timely confirmation of a book-entry transfer of tendered securities into the depositary's account at DTC as described above), properly completed and duly executed letter(s) of transmittal or manually signed copy(s) thereof, or an agent's message in connection with a book-entry transfer, and any other required documents. If a Cardiogenesis shareholder does not timely deliver any Cardiogenesis shares that are the subject of a Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, then such shares will not be deemed validly tendered in the Offer. Shares of Cardiogenesis common

14

stock delivered pursuant to a notice of guaranteed delivery will not be counted toward the Minimum Condition until the shares are actually delivered.

By executing a letter of transmittal as described above, you irrevocably appoint CryoLife's designees as your attorneys-in-fact and proxies, each with full power of substitution, to the full extent of your rights with respect to your shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered and accepted for payment by CryoLife and with respect to any and all other shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and other securities issued or issuable in respect of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock on or after April 5, 2011. That appointment is effective if and when, and only to the extent that, CryoLife accepts the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock for payment pursuant to the Offer. All of these proxies shall be considered coupled with an interest in the tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and therefore shall not be revocable. Upon the effectiveness of the appointment, all prior proxies that you have given will be revoked, and you may not give any subsequent proxies (and, if given, they will not be deemed effective). CryoLife's designees will, with respect to the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock for which the appointment is effective, be empowered, among other things, to exercise all of your voting and other rights as they, in their sole discretion, deem proper at any annual, special or adjourned meeting of Cardiogenesis shareholders or otherwise. CryoLife reserves the right to require that, in order for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock to be deemed validly tendered, immediately upon CryoLife's acceptance of and payment for the shares, CryoLife must be able to exercise full voting rights with respect to the tendered shares of Cardiogenesis common stock.

CryoLife will determine questions regarding the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance for payment of any tender of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, in its sole discretion, and its determination shall be final and binding. CryoLife reserves the absolute right to reject any and all tenders of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that it determines are not in proper form or the acceptance of or payment for which may, in the opinion of its counsel, be unlawful. CryoLife also reserves the absolute right to waive any defect or irregularity in the tender of any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. No tender of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock will be deemed to have been validly made until all defects and irregularities in tenders of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock have been cured or waived. Neither CryoLife, the depositary, the information agent nor any other person will be under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in the tender of any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or will incur any liability for failure to give notification. CryoLife's interpretation of the terms and conditions of the Offer (including the letter of transmittal and instructions thereto) will be final and binding.

The tender of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to any of the procedures described above will constitute a binding agreement between CryoLife and you upon the terms and subject to the conditions to the Offer.

Procedure for Beneficial Owners to Tender. If a Cardiogenesis shareholder holds its shares in "street name" through a broker or other nominee, the Cardiogenesis shareholder should ask its broker or other nominee to tender its shares or follow the instructions provided by the broker or other nominee with this offer to purchase.

Conditions to the Offer

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub is not required to accept for payment or, subject to any applicable rules of the SEC, to pay for any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered pursuant to the Offer, and may delay the acceptance for payment or payment of any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or terminate or amend the Offer if the conditions described below are not satisfied or waived by Merger Sub prior to the completion of the Offer.

Minimum Condition

Prior to the expiration date of the Offer, as it may be extended pursuant to the Merger Agreement, there must be validly tendered and not withdrawn (not including shares of Cardiogenesis common stock subject to a notice of guaranteed delivery unless such shares have actually been delivered) prior to the expiration date of the Offer, a number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which, together with any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that CryoLife, Merger Sub or any other subsidiary of CryoLife owns, which constitute at least a majority of the sum of:

- the total number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding; and
- the number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock issuable upon exercise or conversion of all outstanding rights and convertible securities.

The Minimum Condition will be a majority of 52,425,784 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which is equal to the sum of the total number of outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and the total number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock issuable upon the exercise of the Warrant and Options to purchase Cardiogenesis common stock. Other than the Options and the

15

Warrant, there are no rights or other securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding. As a result, there must be validly tendered and not withdrawn 26,212,893 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer to satisfy the Minimum Condition. Assuming that the shareholders of Cardiogenesis who have entered into the support agreement tender or cause to be tendered all of the outstanding shares they beneficially owned as of April 5, 2011, 24,936,034 additional shares of Cardiogenesis common stock must be tendered in the Offer to satisfy the Minimum Condition.

However, if the number of Cardiogenesis shares validly tendered in the Offer and not properly withdrawn is less than that number of Cardiogenesis shares which, when added to the number of Cardiogenesis shares that may be issued pursuant to the Top-Up Option (as defined below) in compliance with the Merger Agreement, would represent at least one Cardiogenesis share more than 90% of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding on a fully diluted basis, then upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement and in accordance with applicable law, Merger Sub may elect to reduce the Minimum Condition to a number of Cardiogenesis shares such that following the purchase of Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer, CryoLife and its whollyowned subsidiaries, including Merger Sub, would own 49.9% of the then outstanding Cardiogenesis shares.

Other Conditions

The Offer is also subject to conditions that must be satisfied or waived by Merger Sub prior to the expiration of the Offer, including the following:

- Cardiogenesis having not breached or failed to comply in any material respect with any of its obligations, covenants or agreements in the Merger Agreement and any such breach has not been cured prior to the date of acceptance;
- the representations and warranties of Cardiogenesis contained in the Merger Agreement having been true and correct as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the time for acceptance and payment of the shares (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date), subject to applicable materiality qualifications;
- the Merger Agreement not having been terminated in accordance with its terms, or amended in accordance with its terms to provide for such termination;
- no event having occurred that has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Cardiogenesis; and
- there not having been any action, suit, claim, arbitration, investigation, inquiry, grievance or other proceeding pending by any governmental entity, or any federal, state, local or foreign law (including common law, FDA laws, and foreign drug laws), statute, ordinance, rule, code, regulation, injunction, judgment, order, decree or other legally enforceable requirement enacted, entered, or promulgated by a governmental entity that seeks to:
 - o make illegal or otherwise prohibit the consummation of the Offer or the Merger;
 - o prohibit or materially limit the ownership, operation or control by Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries of any material portion of the business or assets of Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries which would be material in the context of either the value of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, to CryoLife upon consummation of the Offer and Merger, or to CryoLife and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole;
 - o compel Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries to dispose of or hold separate any material portion of the business or assets of Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries which would be material in the context of either the value of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, to CryoLife upon consummation of the Offer and Merger,

or to CryoLife and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole; or

 impose material limitations on CryoLife's ability to acquire, hold or effectively exercise full rights of ownership of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, including the right to vote the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock purchased or owned by CryoLife.

16

If any one of the above conditions is not met, including the Minimum Condition, then CryoLife is not required to accept for payment or, subject to any applicable rules of the SEC, to pay for any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered pursuant to the Offer. CryoLife and Merger Sub, however, have reserved the absolute right, in their sole discretion, subject to terms of the Merger Agreement, to waive, in whole or in part, any of the conditions to the Offer, or to modify the terms or conditions of the Offer consistent with the terms of the Merger Agreement, except that, without the prior written consent of Cardiogenesis, neither CryoLife nor Merger Sub may (except, in certain circumstances, in connection with its matching rights in the event of a competing offer), (i) reduce the cash consideration, (ii) except pursuant to the Merger Agreement, change the form of consideration payable in the Offer, (iii) reduce the number of shares to be purchased by Merger Sub in the Offer, (iv) waive or amend the Minimum Condition, (v) add to the conditions to the Offer or impose any other conditions to the Offer, (vi) extend the expiration date of the Offer except as required or allowed by the Merger Agreement, (vii) otherwise amend, modify, or supplement any condition to the Offer or any term of the Offer in a manner adverse to the holders of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, or (viii) abandon or terminate the Offer except as provided for in the Merger Agreement. See "The Transaction—Extension; Termination and Amendment."

In the event that the Offer period is extended by CryoLife in an effort to secure 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis through the Offer, and the exercise of the Top-Up Option, if necessary, CryoLife has agreed that it will waive its right to terminate the Merger Agreement in the event that certain of the Offer conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement cease to be true or are breached by Cardiogenesis (other than as a result of an intentional breach by Cardiogenesis) during the extension period.

Approval of the Merger

If, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, or any exercise by Merger Sub of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife owns 90% or more of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, the Merger can be accomplished without a vote of Cardiogenesis shareholders. However, if the number of Cardiogenesis shares validly tendered in the Offer and not properly withdrawn is less than that number of Cardiogenesis shares which, when added to the number of Cardiogenesis shares that may be issued pursuant to the Top-Up Option, would represent at least one Cardiogenesis share more than 90% of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding on a fully diluted basis, then Merger Sub may elect to reduce the Minimum Condition to a number of Cardiogenesis shares such that following the purchase of Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer, CryoLife and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including Merger Sub, would own 49.9% of the then outstanding Cardiogenesis shares.

If, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, CryoLife owns 49.9% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, the affirmative vote at a meeting of at least a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding on the record date for such meeting will be needed to complete the Merger. Upon completion of the Offer, it is possible that CryoLife, together with the parties to the support agreement, will own a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding, in which case approval of the Merger by Cardiogenesis shareholders would be assured.

Interests of Certain Persons

Interests of Cardiogenesis' Executive Officers

Cardiogenesis' executive officers are as follows:

Name	Age	Position
Paul J. McCormick	57	Executive Chairman
William R. Abbott	54	Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer
Richard P. Lanigan	51	Executive Vice President, Marketing

Paul J. McCormick was named Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors and our principal executive officer effective in July 2009, and has served on our Board of Directors since April 2007. Mr. McCormick currently serves on the board of directors of Cambridge Heart, Inc., a publicly reporting company, as well as Cianna Medical, Inc., which is privately-held. Mr. McCormick served in various management positions with Endologix, Inc., including as President and Chief Executive Officer from May 2002 until May 2008. Prior to that, he held various management positions at Progressive Angioplasty Systems, Heart Technology, Trimedyne Inc., and U.S. Surgical Corporation. Mr. McCormick previously served on the board of directors of Endologix, Inc. a publicly reporting company, from 2002 to 2010. Mr. McCormick holds a B.A. degree in economics from Northwestern University.

William R. Abbott joined Cardiogenesis as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer in May 2006. From 1997 to 2005, Mr. Abbott served in several financial management positions at Newport Corporation, most recently as Vice President of Finance and Treasurer. Prior to that, Mr. Abbott served as Vice President and Corporate Controller of Amcor Sunclipse

North America, Director of Financial Planning for the Western Division of Coca-Cola Enterprises, Inc. and Controller of McKesson Water Products Company. Mr. Abbott also spent six years in management positions at PepsiCo, Inc. after beginning his career with PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP. Mr. Abbott has a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from Fairfield University and a Masters in Business Administration degree from Pepperdine University.

Richard P. Lanigan has been Cardiogenesis' Executive Vice President, Marketing since July 2009. From 1997 to July 2009, Mr. Lanigan served in a variety of different capacities with Cardiogenesis, including President, Senior Vice President of Operations, Senior Vice President of Marketing and Vice President of Government Affairs and Business Development. Prior to that, Mr. Lanigan served in various positions with Stryker Endoscopy and Raychem Corporation. Mr. Lanigan served in the United States Navy where he completed six years of service as Lieutenant in the Supply Corps. Mr. Lanigan has a Bachelor of Business Administration from the University of Notre Dame and a Masters of Science in Systems Management from the University of Southern California.

Each of the aforementioned executive officers (collectively, the "Executive Officers") will benefit from the following arrangements with Cardiogenesis in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. In addition, Cardiogenesis' Executive Vice President, Richard Lanigan, is expected to join CryoLife or an affiliate after completion of the Merger.

Employment Agreements

Cardiogenesis has entered into employment agreements with all of its Executive Officers (collectively, as amended, the "Employment Agreements"), and the terms of employment are specified in offer letters extended to the Executive Officers prior to their commencement of employment. Pursuant to the Employment Agreements, each Executive Officer receives a minimum base salary and certain other benefits, such as the ability to participate in Cardiogenesis' employee benefit plans, including bonus programs as applicable. The Employment Agreements also provide for certain service benefits in the event of termination or change in control. Set forth below is a summary of such payments and benefits.

Payments upon Removal or Termination in Conjunction with the Merger

Mr. McCormick's Employment Agreement

If Cardiogenesis terminates Mr. McCormick's employment without cause or he terminates his employment for good reason, Mr. McCormick will be entitled to:

- the remainder of his then current base salary for the remainder of the term, which currently runs through July 1, 2011, in which Mr. McCormick resigns or is terminated; and
- any payments for unused vacation and reimbursement expenses which are due, accrued or payable at the date of Mr. McCormick's termination.

Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. McCormick may terminate his employment for good reason if, without his consent, any of the following events occurs:

- his then current salary is reduced;
- he is assigned duties substantially or materially inconsistent with the position and nature of his employment as Executive Chairman of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors; or
- his place of employment is relocated outside of Orange County, California.

Pursuant to his employment agreement, any of the following acts or omissions will constitute grounds for Cardiogenesis to terminate Mr. McCormick's employment for cause:

- willful misconduct by Mr. McCormick causing material harm to Cardiogenesis or repeated failure by Mr. McCormick to follow the reasonable directives of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors, but only if he has not discontinued the misconduct or failure within 30 days after receiving notice from Cardiogenesis;
- any material act or omission by Mr. McCormick involving gross negligence in the performance of his duties to Cardiogenesis or a material deviation from any policies or directives of Cardiogenesis, other than a deviation taken in good faith;

18

- any illegal act by Mr. McCormick which materially and adversely affects the business of Cardiogenesis; and
- any felony committed by Mr. McCormick, as evidenced by conviction.

Mr. Abbott's Employment Agreement

If Cardiogenesis terminates Mr. Abbott's employment due to a corporate transaction, such as the Merger, or he terminates his employment under certain circumstances due to a corporate transaction, such as the Merger, Mr. Abbott will be entitled to:

- the portion of his then current base salary which has accrued through his date of termination;
- any payments for unused vacation and reimbursement expenses which are due, accrued or payable at the date of Mr. Abbott's termination;
- severance payment in an amount equal to twelve months of his then current base salary;
- as described below under "Treatment of Equity Awards," all of Mr. Abbott's Options to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis' common stock and all shares of restricted stock shall accelerate and automatically vest, and such Options shall otherwise be exercisable in accordance with their terms;
- a prorated payment equal to the target bonus amount for which Mr. Abbott would be eligible for the year in which the resignation or termination occurred; and
- continuation of insurance benefits for twelve months, to the extent that such benefits are offered to any management-level employees at the time

of termination.

The circumstances that would allow Mr. Abbott to terminate his employment after a corporate transaction, such as the Merger, and obtain the severance described above include:

- a reduction in his current base salary;
- the assignment to him of duties substantially and materially inconsistent with the position and nature of his employment as set forth in the employment agreement or a material modification of his reporting obligations;
- the failure by Cardiogenesis to obtain from any successor an agreement to assume and perform his employment agreement;
- the failure to offer him a new employment agreement; or
- the failure to offer him a new employment agreement on substantially the same terms as provided in his current employment agreement.

Mr. Lanigan's Employment Agreement

If Cardiogenesis terminates Mr. Lanigan's employment due to a corporate transaction, such as the Merger, or he terminates his employment under certain circumstances due to a corporate transaction, such as the Merger, Mr. Lanigan will be entitled to:

- the portion of his then current base salary which has accrued through his date of termination;
- any payments for unused vacation and reimbursement expenses which are due, accrued or payable at the date of Mr. Lanigan's termination;
- severance payment in an amount equal to twelve months of his then current base salary;
- as described below under "Treatment of Equity Awards," all of Mr. Lanigan's Options to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis' common stock and shares of restricted stock shall accelerate and automatically vest, and such Options shall otherwise be exercisable in accordance with their terms;

19

- a prorated payment equal to the target bonus amount for which Mr. Lanigan would be eligible for the year in which the resignation or termination occurred; and
- continuation of insurance benefits for twelve months, to the extent that such benefits are offered to any management-level employees at the time
 of termination.

The circumstances that would allow Mr. Lanigan to terminate his employment after a corporate transaction and obtain the severance described above include:

- a reduction in his current base salary;
- the assignment to him of duties substantially and materially inconsistent with the position and nature of his employment as set forth in the employment agreement or a material modification of his reporting obligations;
- the failure by Cardiogenesis to obtain from any successor an agreement to assume and perform his employment agreement;
- the failure to offer him a new employment agreement; or
- the failure to offer him a new employment agreement on substantially the same terms as provided in his employment agreement.

Proposed Employment Agreements with Mr. Lanigan and Mr. Abbott Subsequent to Completion of Merger

Mr. Lanigan

CryoLife has agreed to employ Mr. Lanigan after the Merger under an employment agreement with an initial term of two years. During his employment in 2011, Mr. Lanigan will be paid an annual salary of \$225,000, and will receive a commission of 1.25% of sales of Cardiogenesis products during 2011 after the closing of the Merger. He will also receive the 2011 bonus under his Cardiogenesis employment agreement, pro-rated for the portion of the year from January 1 until the day of the closing of the Merger. In addition, he will receive a relocation allowance to move to Atlanta, and the customary benefits received by CryoLife officers related to that relocation. The relocation package will be CryoLife's standard executive relocation policy but there will be an allowance for up to 150 days of temporary living expenses. Upon closing of the Merger, he will also receive 10,000 shares of CryoLife restricted stock which will vest on the third anniversary of the grant date, and 25,000 CryoLife stock options which will vest one-third per year beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date, all pursuant to CryoLife's standard forms of grant agreement. Mr. Lanigan's employment agreement will provide for severance payments of one year salary plus bonus if Mr. Lanigan is terminated without cause or if Mr. Lanigan terminates the agreement for good reason, which includes an assignment of duties materially inconsistent with his position, authority, duties or responsibilities, or any action by CryoLife which results in a material diminution in his position, authority, duties or responsibilities. In order to obtain this employment package, Mr. Lanigan will be required to waive the severance benefits described above. The terms of Mr. Lanigan's employment are subject to approval by the CryoLife Board of Directors' compensation committee and the execution of a definitive agreement.

Mr. Abbott

to his current employment agreement, and will remain eligible to receive the severance benefits described above.

Impact of a Merger on Equity Awards

Pursuant to the terms of the Employment Agreements, and notwithstanding any provisions of Cardiogenesis' equity incentive plans, or of any related Option or restricted stock agreements, upon consummation of the Merger, all of Messrs. McCormick's, Abbott's and Lanigan's Restricted Stock will vest in full, and all rights of Cardiogenesis to repurchase such restricted stock will terminate in full.

The Merger Agreement provides that each Option with respect to the shares that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether vested or unvested, will be canceled and, in exchange therefor, CryoLife will pay to each person who was holding such canceled Option, an amount in cash (without interest and subject to deduction for any required withholding

20

taxes) equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the cash consideration over the exercise price per share of such Option and (ii) the number of shares subject to such Option. However, if the exercise price per share under any Option is equal to or greater than the cash consideration, then such Option will be canceled without any cash payment being made in respect thereof. The Merger Agreement requires Cardiogenesis to amend its option plan to provide for the above described treatment of the Options pursuant to the Merger.

Indemnification

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, CryoLife has agreed to cause the surviving corporation in the Merger to:

- indemnify and hold harmless each of Cardiogenesis' and its subsidiaries' current and former officers and directors for six years following the effective time of the Merger, from certain liabilities and costs incurred in connection with actions arising out of the fact that he or she was an officer, director, employee or fiduciary of Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries prior to the effective time of the Merger;
- maintain all indemnification and exculpation rights under Cardiogenesis' organizational documents and indemnification agreements for six years following the effective time of the Merger; and
- either (i) maintain for six years following the effective time of the Merger, for the persons who, as of March 28, 2011 are covered by Cardiogenesis' and its subsidiaries' directors and officers liability insurance policy, directors and officers' liability insurance with terms and conditions at least as favorable as provided in Cardiogenesis' and its subsidiaries' policies as of March 28, 2011 or (ii) obtain a "tail" insurance policy for the persons covered by Cardiogenesis' and its subsidiaries' existing directors' and officers' insurance policies covering a period of at least six years following the effective time of the Merger with annual premiums not in excess of 150% of the annual premium for the directors' and officers' insurance policies for Cardiogenesis' and its subsidiaries' 2009-2010 policy year.

The foregoing summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, which is filed herewith as Exhibit (e)(1)(1), and is incorporated by reference herein.

Ouantitative Summary

The table below sets forth, as of March 28, 2011, the day Cardiogenesis entered into the Merger Agreement, the amounts payable to each of the Executive Officers (1) tendered all of the shares that the Executive Officers own for the cash consideration (assuming no exercise of outstanding Options), (2) received remuneration for the cash-out of stock Options at the time of the Merger, and (3) were terminated without cause in connection with the Merger. The amounts shown below assume the cash consideration of \$0.4570 per share.

A - - - 1 - - - 4 - 4 37 - - 48 - - - - 6

		Unrestr	ricted Shares Owned		ricted Stock					
Executive Officer	Severance Payments (1)	Number of Shares Owned	Value of shares tendered	Number of shares of restricted stock owned	Value of shares of restricted stock tendered	Number of in-the-money Options	Value of shares subject to Options (less exercise price)	Total		
Richard P. Lanigan	\$241,875 (2)	199,580	\$91,208	32,315	\$14,768	533,134	\$123,539	\$471,390		
Paul J. McCormick	\$37,272	728,926	\$333,119	250,000	\$114,250	180,000	\$23,660	\$508,301		
William R. Abbott	\$215,000	39,884	\$18,227	26,154	\$11,952	275,000	\$72,925	\$325,104		

- (1) Reflects the estimated value as of March 28, 2011, of severance payments due upon termination to which each Executive Officer may be entitled under the terms of his applicable Employment Agreement.
- (2) Assumes that Mr. Lanigan will not enter into the proposed employment agreement with CryoLife described above which would require Mr. Lanigan to waive his right to severance payments.

Interests of Non-Employee Directors

The non-employee directors of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors are as follows:

Name	Age	Position with Cardiogenesis
Raymond W. Cohen	52	Director
Ann T. Sabahat	40	Director
Marvin J. Slepian, M.D.	55	Director
Gregory D. Waller	61	Director

Treatment of Equity Awards

Any Options held by the non-employee directors will be treated in accordance with the Merger Agreement. The Merger Agreement provides that each Option with respect to the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that is outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether vested or unvested, will be canceled and, in exchange therefor, CryoLife will pay to each person who was holding such canceled Option, an amount in cash (without interest and subject to deduction for any required withholding taxes) equal to the product of (i) the excess, if any, of the cash consideration over the exercise price per share of such Option and (ii) the number of shares subject to such Option. However, if the exercise price per share under any such Option is equal to or greater than the cash consideration, then such Option will be canceled without any cash payment being made in respect thereof. The Merger Agreement further provides that each share of restricted stock of the Company that is not fully vested and that is outstanding immediately prior to the closing of the Offer shall automatically become fully vested immediately prior to such closing, but subject to the occurrence of the closing of the Offer. The Merger Agreement requires Cardiogenesis to amend its equity incentive plans to provide for the above described treatment of the Options in the Merger.

Quantitative Summary

The table below sets forth, as of March 28, 2011, the day Cardiogenesis entered into the Merger Agreement, the amounts payable to each of the non-employee directors if the directors received remuneration for the cash-out of Options at the time of the Merger. The amounts shown below assume the cash consideration of \$0.4570 per share. None of the non-employee directors owns any outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis stock.

	Stock		
Non-employee Director	Number of in-the- money Options	Value of shares subject to Options (less exercise price)	Total
Raymond W. Cohen	72,500	\$10,803	\$10,803
Ann T. Sabahart	122,500	\$19,683	\$19,683
Marvin J. Slepian	115,000	\$18,505	\$18,505
Gregory D. Waller	130,000	\$20,485	\$20,485

Certain Relationships with Cardiogenesis

Relationships between Cardiogenesis and CryoLife

As of the date of the Offer, CryoLife does not own any shares of Cardiogenesis. Neither CryoLife nor Merger Sub have effected any transaction in securities of Cardiogenesis in the past 60 days. To the best of CryoLife's and Merger Sub's knowledge, after reasonable inquiry, none of the persons listed on Annex A of this offer to purchase, nor any of their respective associates or majority-owned subsidiaries, beneficially owns or has the right to acquire any securities of Cardiogenesis or has effected any transaction in securities of Cardiogenesis during the past 60 days.

Cardiogenesis and CryoLife entered into Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement (the "2009 NDA") on October 6, 2009, in connection with a possible negotiated transaction between the parties. The parties entered into a new Mutual Confidential Disclosure Agreement (the "2010 NDA") on September 29, 2010, which was substantially similar to the 2009 NDA. Under each of the 2009 NDA and the 2010 NDA each of Cardiogenesis and CryoLife agreed, subject to certain exceptions, to keep confidential any non-public information of Cardiogenesis and to certain employee non-solicitation provisions for the protection of Cardiogenesis. The foregoing summary of the 2009 NDA and 2010 NDA does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the 2009 NDA and 2010 NDA which are filed as Exhibits (d)(3) and (d)(4), respectively, to the Schedule TO and incorporated herein by reference.

Except for the Merger Agreement, support agreement or as otherwise described in this offer to purchase, neither CryoLife nor, to the best of CryoLife's knowledge, any of its directors, executive officers or other affiliates has any contract, arrangement.

22

understanding or relationship with any other person with respect to any securities of Cardiogenesis, including, but not limited to, any contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship concerning the transfer or the voting of any securities, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements, puts or calls, guaranties of loans, guaranties against loss or the giving or withholding of proxies. Except as described in this offer to purchase and in Cardiogenesis' Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9, there have been no contacts, negotiations or transactions between CryoLife or, to the best of CryoLife's knowledge, any of its directors, executive officers or other affiliates on the one hand, and Cardiogenesis or its officers, directors, or other affiliates, on the other hand, concerning a merger, consolidation or acquisition, a tender offer or other acquisition of securities, an election of directors, or a sale or other transfer of a material amount of assets. Neither CryoLife nor, to the best of CryoLife's knowledge, any of its directors, executive officers or other affiliates has had any transaction with Cardiogenesis or any of its officers, directors or affiliates that would require disclosure under the rules and regulations of the SEC applicable to the offer to purchase.

Possible Effects of the Offer on the Market for the Shares; OTCQB Listing; Exchange Act Registration and Margin Regulations

Possible Effects of the Offer on the Market for the Shares. If the Merger is consummated, shareholders not tendering their Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer (other than those properly exercising their dissenters' rights under the CGCL) will receive the cash consideration for their shares. Therefore, if the Merger takes place, (other than with respect to shareholders who properly exercise appraisal rights under California law) the only difference between tendering and not tendering Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer is that tendering shareholders will receive their consideration earlier. If, however, the Merger

does not take place and the Offer is consummated, there may no longer be an active or liquid public trading market (or possibly any public trading market) for Cardiogenesis shares held by shareholders other than CryoLife. CryoLife cannot predict whether the reduction in the number of Cardiogenesis shares that might otherwise trade publicly would have an adverse or beneficial effect on the market price for, or marketability of, the Cardiogenesis shares or whether the reduction would cause future market prices to be greater or less than the cash consideration of \$0.4570 per Cardiogenesis share, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes.

OTCQB Listing. As of March 28, 2011, there were 46,638,421 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding. The shares are quoted on the OTCQB. CryoLife expects that Cardiogenesis' common stock will continue to be quoted on the OTCQB after the Offer but will cease to be quoted on the OTCQB as a result of the Merger.

Exchange Act Registration. The Cardiogenesis shares of common stock are currently registered under the Exchange Act. The purchase of the Cardiogenesis shares pursuant to the Offer may result in the shares becoming eligible for deregistration or being deregistered under the Exchange Act. Registration of the Cardiogenesis shares may be terminated upon application to the SEC if the outstanding shares are not listed on a "national securities exchange" and if there are fewer than 500 holders of record of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. CryoLife intends to seek to cause Cardiogenesis to apply for termination of registration of the Cardiogenesis shares as soon as possible after approval of the Merger, if the requirements for termination of registration are met.

Termination of registration of the Cardiogenesis shares of common stock under the Exchange Act would immediately reduce the information required to be furnished by Cardiogenesis to its shareholders and to the SEC, and ninety days after filing would make certain provisions of the Exchange Act (such as the short-swing profit recovery provisions of Section 16(b), the requirement of furnishing a proxy statement or information statement in connection with shareholders' meetings or actions in lieu of a shareholders' meeting pursuant to Section 14(a) and 14(c) of the Exchange Act and the related requirement of furnishing an annual report to shareholders) no longer applicable. In addition, if the Cardiogenesis shares of common stock are no longer registered under the Exchange Act, the requirements of Rule 13e-3 with respect to "going private" transactions would no longer be applicable, after the expiration of 90 days, and the ability of "affiliates" of Cardiogenesis and persons holding "restricted securities" of Cardiogenesis to dispose of such securities pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, may be impaired or eliminated.

Background of the Transaction

The following chronology summarizes the key meetings, conversations and events that led to the signing of the Merger Agreement. This chronology covers only key events leading up to the Merger Agreement and does not purport to catalogue every communication between representatives of CryoLife and Cardiogenesis.

Chronology of the Transaction

On October 6, 2009, Cardiogenesis entered into the 2009 NDA with CryoLife, and CryoLife management attended a meeting with Cardiogenesis management to gain better understanding of Cardiogenesis' business. Attending for CryoLife were Steven G. Anderson, Chief Executive Officer, D. Ashley Lee, Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, Gerald B. Seery, Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing, Scott B. Capps, Vice President of Clinical Research, Timothy M. Neja, Vice President of Laboratory Operations, William F. Northrup III, MD, Vice President of Physician Relations and Education,

23

and Jeffrey W. Burris, Vice President and General Counsel, and for Cardiogenesis were Paul J. McCormick, Executive Chairman, and Richard P. Lanigan, Executive Vice President, Marketing.

On October 16, 2009 Mr. Lee had a call with Mr. McCormick to give feedback on meeting. He indicated that CryoLife had interest but had other opportunities that were of a higher priority.

On August 12, 2010, Mr. Lee had a call with Mr. McCormick to express interest in evaluating Cardiogenesis as a potential acquisition, and asked for information.

On August 27, 2010, Mr. Lee had a call with Piper Jaffray indicating CryoLife was looking at Cardiogenesis as a potential acquisition opportunity.

On September 15, 2010, Mr. Lee had a call with Mr. McCormick to continue gathering information as CryoLife evaluated the potential acquisition of Cardiogenesis.

On September 29, 2010, Cardiogenesis entered into the 2010 NDA with CryoLife.

On October 1, 2010, Mr. Anderson, Mr. Lee, Mr. Capps, Mr. Seery and David Fronk, Vice President, Regulatory Affairs and Quality Assurance, of CryoLife and Mr. McCormick and Mr. Lanigan of Cardiogenesis had a call to continue CryoLife's evaluation of the potential acquisition and to gain more insight into Cardiogenesis' business.

On October 4, 2010, CryoLife management (including Mr. Seery and Mr. Capps) and Mr. Lanigan had a call to identify surgeons for Mr. Capps and Mr. Seery to call to discuss TRM and Cardiogenesis' technology.

On October 6 and 7 2010, Mr. Capps and Mr. Seery spoke with customers of Cardiogenesis to discuss TMR and Cardiogenesis' technology.

On October 13, 2010, Mr. Lee had a call with Mr. McCormick to continue discussions and gather further information to aid in the evaluation of Cardiogenesis' business.

On October 20, 2010, Mr. Lee, Mr. Burris, and Mr. Anderson had call with Piper Jaffray to discuss the fact that CryoLife was prepared to send a nonbinding letter of intent to Cardiogenesis.

On October 20, 2010, Mr. Lee spoke with Mr. McCormick and communicated that an offer would be forthcoming. He indicated that Piper Jaffray would send a confirmation letter and follow-up.

On October 20, 2010, Piper Jaffray sent a letter, on behalf of CryoLife, to Mr. McCormick with their non-binding indication of interest setting forth the terms of a proposed strategic transaction. This indication of interest expressed CryoLife's preliminary interest in exploring a potential transaction involving Cardiogenesis at a range of between \$0.36 and \$0.40 per share; was non-binding in nature and could be withdrawn or modified by CryoLife at any

time; and was based solely on publicly available information that was subject to due diligence conducted by CryoLife. Cardiogenesis' senior management and Cardiogenesis Board met with its legal advisors, in a special meeting of Cardiogenesis Board, to review the letter of intent.

On October 22, 2010, Mr. Lee received a call from Mr. McCormick indicating that he did not think the proposal represented fair value based on revenues in comparable deals, but that Cardiogenesis would need to engage a financial advisor to assist Cardiogenesis Board in evaluating CryoLife's proposal. Mr. Lee suggested that senior management of CryoLife meet with Cardiogenesis Board to detail CryoLife's business. Cardiogenesis Board agreed to a meeting with CryoLife's senior management and its financial advisor, Piper Jaffray.

On October 25, 2010, Mr. Lee spoke with Mr. McCormick. Mr. McCormick indicated that if CryoLife had some flexibility in its offer, Cardiogenesis would be willing to listen to a presentation by CryoLife management. Mr. McCormick indicated that the presentation should focus on the growth opportunities presented by CryoLife's business development strategy. Mr. McCormick indicated that he would convene some members of Cardiogenesis' Board to hear the presentation.

On October 26, 2010, CryoLife's Board of Directors met to discuss a potential acquisition of Cardiogenesis. CryoLife's Board of Directors authorized management to negotiate a transaction with Cardiogenesis and to return to CryoLife's Board of Directors for final approval.

Between October 25 and November 9, 2010, CryoLife management worked to continue analyzing the proposed transaction.

24

On November 7, 2010, Cardiogenesis' board engaged B. Riley & Co. as its financial advisor for a potential transaction with CryoLife.

On November 9, 2010, Mr. Seery and Mr. Lee presented to Cardiogenesis' Board, Piper Jaffray and B. Riley.

On November 12, 2010, CryoLife engaged Piper Jaffray as its financial advisor for a potential transaction with Cardiogenesis.

On Friday November 12, 2010, B. Riley contacted Piper Jaffray to indicate that Cardiogenesis management favored a combination with CryoLife but that additional analysis was necessary for a presentation to Cardiogenesis' Board late in the week of November 15, 2010.

On November 19, 2010, B. Riley contacted Piper Jaffray and indicated the meeting of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors went well and scheduled a call for November 23, 2010 to discuss the valuation work done on Cardiogenesis.

On November 26, 2010, B. Riley contacted Piper Jaffray and indicated that Cardiogenesis was interested in a potential transaction.

On November 29, 2010, Piper Jaffray discussed a proposal with B. Riley, and sent a proposed letter of intent to Cardiogenesis. The letter of intent also included a break up fee of \$1.0 million.

On December 3, 2010, the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors met. The Cardiogenesis Board of Directors determined that they required a "go-shop" provision. B. Riley on behalf of Cardiogenesis requested a 45 day go-shop from CryoLife.

On December 4, 2010, Piper Jaffray communicated to B. Riley that CryoLife was willing to agree to a transaction at \$0.50 per share, with consideration consisting of half cash and half CryoLife common stock; and a 20 day go-shop provision, but the break up fee after the 20 day go-shop expired would increase to \$1.5 million. CryoLife provided a revised letter of intent reflecting those additional terms.

On December 6, 2010, Cardiogenesis held a Board meeting and approved the transaction at a price of \$0.50 per share.

On December 6, 2010, the parties executed the letter of intent, providing for CryoLife's acquisition of Cardiogenesis at \$0.50 per share, consideration to be paid half in cash and half in CryoLife common stock.

On December 14, 2010, CryoLife commenced its confirmatory due diligence review of Cardiogenesis, including access to Cardiogenesis' online data room.

Several due diligence meetings between members of the management teams of Cardiogenesis and CryoLife were held from October 2010 through March 2011. These meetings covered numerous business, legal and financial topics. The due diligence process also included telephonic due diligence discussions between Cardiogenesis' and CryoLife's respective management and outside financial, legal and accounting advisors, and in-person due diligence review sessions, on-site due diligence visits to Cardiogenesis' facilities and access to Cardiogenesis' on-line data room containing financial, operational, regulatory, intellectual property, human resource, legal and other information concerning Cardiogenesis.

On December 22, 2010, CryoLife provided an initial draft of the proposed Merger Agreement. The initial draft of the proposed Merger Agreement permitted the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors to make an adverse recommendation change with respect to CryoLife's proposal in certain circumstances and for a 20 day "go-shop" period.

Mr. McCormick and William R. Abbott, Cardiogenesis' Chief Financial Officer, participated in the preparation of Cardiogenesis' financial projections that were provided to B. Riley for use in connection with the rendering of its fairness opinion to the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors and performing its related financial analysis. These projections were substantially similar to the initial projections prepared by management, but they were updated to include actual financial results for the quarter ended September 30, 2010.

From December 22, 2010 through March 22, 2011, CryoLife's and Cardiogenesis' legal advisors negotiated terms of the Merger Agreement.

During the period from December 16, 2010 to March 28, 2011, CryoLife also continued its due diligence review of Cardiogenesis. During this period there were also discussions regarding a continuing role for Mr. Lanigan in managing Cardiogenesis' business following completion of the transaction. The parties discussed the general parameters of a compensation package.

of intent. CryoLife now proposed, on a non-binding basis, an offer of either \$0.50 per share in all-cash consideration, or \$0.45 per share in an unspecified combination of cash and common stock of CryoLife. B. Riley and Cardiogenesis strongly disagreed with the revised terms of the letter of intent, and rejected such offer, which resulted in CryoLife submitting a new letter of intent on January 5, 2011 of either \$0.50 per share in all-cash consideration, or \$0.47 per share in 60% cash and 40% in common stock of CryoLife.

Cardiogenesis' Board continued to discuss and review the revised proposal with the assistance of its legal advisors and B. Riley. On January 10, 2011, Cardiogenesis' Board unanimously voted to accept the all-cash consideration offer of \$0.50 per share.

On January 14, 2011, the CryoLife Board of Directors held a special meeting to review and discuss the terms of the proposed merger agreement. Members of CryoLife's senior management and outside advisors reviewed the negotiations that had taken place with Cardiogenesis and also updated CryoLife's Board of Directors on the due diligence review that had occurred. At the conclusion of this meeting, CryoLife's Board of Directors authorized its officers to proceed with the proposed transaction on the terms set forth in a draft Merger Agreement, subject to completion of CryoLife's due diligence review

On January 14, 2011, CryoLife provided an initial draft of the support agreement (which agreement would cover approximately 2.7% of Cardiogenesis' outstanding shares of common stock). This agreement was negotiated by CryoLife's and Cardiogenesis' advisors and finalized on March 21, 2011

During March 2011, Messrs. Lee, Anderson, Capps, Seery and Burris of CryoLife and Messrs. McCormick, Abbott and Lanigan of Cardiogenesis had a series of teleconferences to discuss the results CryoLife's continued due diligence review. Based upon that review, on a call in March 2011, CryoLife management stated that CryoLife would require an adjustment to the proposed purchase price. Based on this discussion, management of CryoLife proposed to Cardiogenesis an all-cash transaction at a price of \$0.4570 per share.

During March 2011, CryoLife's and Cardiogenesis' legal advisors negotiated the revised terms of the Merger Agreement based on the new proposal. CryoLife management discussed with Mr. Abbott the possibility of a transition role for him with the combined company for a period after the Merger. The parties discussed the general parameters of a compensation package.

On March 21, 2011, the CryoLife Board of Directors met to consider the proposed transaction at the price of \$0.4570 per share. Representatives of CryoLife management and CryoLife's outside counsel also attended the meeting. Representatives of management reviewed with the CryoLife Board of Directors its financial analysis of the proposed transaction. Representatives of Arnall Golden Gregory reviewed with the CryoLife Board of Directors the current status and terms of the proposed Merger Agreement including operation of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife and Cardiogenesis' respective termination rights, CryoLife's match rights, the support agreements, and the two-tier termination fee, as well as the fiduciary duties of directors in connection with their consideration of the transaction. Following further discussion, the CryoLife Board of Directors voted unanimously to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement.

On March 22, 2011, the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors met to consider the proposed transaction at the price of \$0.4570 per share. Representatives of Cardiogenesis management, Cardiogenesis' outside counsel and B. Riley also attended the meeting. Representatives of B. Riley reviewed with the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors its financial analysis of the proposed transaction. Representatives of K&L Gates reviewed with the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors the current status and terms of the proposed Merger Agreement including operation of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife and Cardiogenesis' respective termination rights, CryoLife's match rights, the support agreements, and the two-tier termination fee, as well as the fiduciary duties of directors in connection with their consideration of the transaction. The Cardiogenesis Board of Directors discussed positive and negative factors relating to the proposed transaction, including the terms of the Top-Up Option, as well as the prospects of Cardiogenesis if it remained independent, including potential challenges, the timing and likelihood of accomplishing performance goals associated with success as an independent company, and the shareholders' ability to gain or lose from Cardiogenesis' future prospects as an independent company versus their ability to receive CryoLife stock and gain or lose from the combined company's future prospects.

The Cardiogenesis Board of Directors considered whether Cardiogenesis should spend additional time negotiating with CryoLife in an attempt to gain improved transaction terms and whether Cardiogenesis should seek negotiations with other potential acquirers, but believed that CryoLife would be unlikely to improve its price or other transaction terms and would be unlikely to keep its offer open while Cardiogenesis sought to solicit other parties, and that any delay would jeopardize the possibility of closing a transaction. In addition, as the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors had previously determined in the negotiations leading up to execution of the letter of intent, any attempt to solicit other potential acquirers would likely result in CryoLife withdrawing its proposal, and the Cardiogenesis board believed that there may be no likely strategic acquirer of Cardiogenesis at this time that would

26

offer a higher price than CryoLife, and believed that if there were any other potential acquirers that would offer a higher price, the terms of the proposed agreements between CryoLife, Cardiogenesis and certain shareholders of Cardiogenesis, including the terms under which the agreements could be terminated and under which the shares subject to the support agreement could be released, would enable such a transaction to be successfully pursued. The Cardiogenesis Board of Directors believed that any continuation or expansion of the negotiation process at this time would provide a further distraction to Cardiogenesis' management from running the business and would risk the confidentiality of the process as more parties potentially became involved over a longer period of time, which could result in disruption to Cardiogenesis' relationships with employees, customers, vendors, distributors and others and require early disclosure of negotiations in the marketplace, which could jeopardize Cardiogenesis' bargaining position in any negotiations.

After consideration of all of the factors discussed at this meeting and prior meetings, and the advice of its legal and financial advisors, the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors considered whether to accept CryoLife's offer and enter into the Merger Agreement at this time or to remain an independent company. Cardiogenesis' executive officers and Cardiogenesis' financial and legal advisors answered questions from the members of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors. B. Riley rendered an oral opinion to the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors, confirmed later in writing, to the effect that, based upon and subject to the matters described in the opinion, as of March 22, 2011, the consideration to be received by the Cardiogenesis shareholders in the Offer and related Merger was fair from a financial point of view. Following further discussion, the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors voted unanimously to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement with CryoLife and recommend that the shareholders accept the Offer.

On March 28, 2011, subsequent to the close of trading on the OTCQB and NYSE, CryoLife and Cardiogenesis executed the Merger Agreement. Concurrently, Mr. McCormick, Mr. Lanigan and Mr. Abbott, which together held approximately 2.7% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common

stock, entered into the support agreement, by which they agreed to tender all of their shares of Cardiogenesis common stock into the Offer, subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such agreement.

On March 29, 2011, CryoLife and Cardiogenesis announced the Merger Agreement and the proposed transaction with a joint press release before the opening of trading on the OTCQB and NYSE. On April 5, 2011, Merger Sub commenced the Offer.

The portions of the history of the transaction set forth above that relate solely to the meetings of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors are based on statements made by Cardiogenesis in the Cardiogenesis Schedule 14D-9, and have not been independently verified by CryoLife.

Purpose of the Offer and the Merger; Plans for Cardiogenesis after the Transaction

The purpose of the Offer is for the Merger Sub to acquire control of, and the entire equity interest in, Cardiogenesis. The Offer, as the first step in the acquisition of Cardiogenesis, is intended to facilitate the acquisition of all outstanding shares. The purpose of the Merger is to acquire all outstanding shares not tendered and purchased pursuant to the Offer. If the Offer is successful, the Merger Sub intends to consummate the Merger as promptly as practicable.

If you sell your shares in the Offer, you will cease to have any equity interest in Cardiogenesis or any right to participate in its earnings and future growth. If you do not tender your shares, but the Merger is consummated, you also will no longer have an equity interest in Cardiogenesis. Similarly, after selling your shares in the Offer or the subsequent Merger, you will not bear the risk of any decrease in the value of Cardiogenesis.

At the effective time of the Merger, the articles of incorporation of the Merger Sub and the bylaws of the Merger Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, will be the articles of incorporation and the bylaws of the surviving corporation, in each case with references to the Merger Sub therein automatically amended to become references to the surviving corporation, until thereafter amended as provided by law and such articles of incorporation and bylaws. The directors and officers of the Merger Sub will become the directors and officers of the surviving corporation until the earlier of their resignation or removal or until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified, as the case may be. In addition, CryoLife will be entitled, upon its acceptance of tendered shares in the Offer, to exercise its rights under the Merger Agreement to obtain pro rata representation (rounded up to the nearest number of directors) on, and control of, Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors. In the event CryoLife exercises such rights, Cardiogenesis will transmit to its shareholders the information concerning CryoLife's designees to Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors as required by Rule 14f-1 of the Exchange Act. See "The Merger Agreement."

CryoLife currently intends to operate the Cardiogenesis business as a wholly-owned subsidiary. CryoLife will continue to evaluate and review the Cardiogenesis business, assets, operations, properties, policies, management and personnel with a view towards determining how to optimize any potential benefits and synergies that are created by the transaction and the integration of the operations of Cardiogenesis with CryoLife's business. More specifically, upon completion of its integration evaluation and implementation of final plans:

27

- (i) CryoLife may transfer certain assets of Cardiogenesis to its affiliates as part of its post-merger tax restructuring;
- (ii) Cardiogenesis' principal executive offices likely will be combined with those of CryoLife or its subsidiaries; and
- (iii) certain Cardiogenesis functions likely will be relocated to new locations.

CryoLife intends to continue to review Cardiogenesis' business, operations, capitalization and management. Accordingly, CryoLife reserves the right to change its plans and intentions at any time, as it deems appropriate.

Source and Amount of Funds

The Offer and Merger are not conditioned upon any financing arrangements or contingencies. The amount of cash required to purchase the number of issued and outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock as of April 5, 2011, to cash out the Options and the Warrant, and to fund previously unpaid transaction-related fees and expenses will be approximately \$22.8 million. CryoLife has sufficient cash on hand to pay such consideration. As of March 31, 2011, we had approximately \$37.5 million in unrestricted cash and short-term investments.

State Takeover Statutes

Cardiogenesis is incorporated under the laws of the State of California. Cardiogenesis has represented that no "fair price," "moratorium," "business combination," "control share acquisition" or other anti-takeover statute or regulation of any governmental authority is applicable to the Merger Agreement, the support agreement, the Offer or the Merger.

Under the CGCL, the merger consideration paid to the shareholders of Cardiogenesis may not be cash if Merger Sub or CryoLife owns directly or indirectly more than 50% but less than 90% of the then outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis Common Stock, unless either all of the shareholders of Cardiogenesis consent to the Merger or the Commissioner of Corporations of the State of California approves, after a hearing, the terms and conditions of the Merger and the fairness thereof. Accordingly, at any Expiration Date, if the tender offer conditions described in "The Transaction - Conditions to the Offer" (including the Minimum Condition) are satisfied or waived, but Merger Sub would own less than 90% of the Cardiogenesis shares then outstanding (through exercise of the Top-Up Option (defined below) or otherwise) following the completion of the Offer, Merger Sub intends to either extend the Offer to permit additional Cardiogenesis shares to be tendered into the Offer as described in "The Transaction - Extension; Termination and Amendment" or, subject to compliance with applicable law, reduce the number of Cardiogenesis shares subject to the Offer to a number equal to 49.9% of the outstanding shares as described in "The Transaction - Conditions to the Offer." If, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, or any exercise by CryoLife of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife owns 90% or more of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis shareholders. If, on the other hand, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, CryoLife owns 49.9% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, the affirmative vote at a meeting of at least a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding on the record date for such meeting will be needed to complete the Merger. Upon completion of the Offer, it is possible that CryoLife, together with the parties to the support agreement will own a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding, in which case approval of the Merger by Cardiogenesis s

A number of other states have adopted laws and regulations applicable to attempts to acquire securities of corporations which are incorporated, or have substantial assets, shareholders, principal executive offices or principal places of business or whose business operations otherwise have substantial

economic effects in such states. If any government official or third party seeks to apply any state takeover law to the Offer or the Merger, we will take such action as then appears desirable, which action may include challenging the applicability or validity of such statute in appropriate court proceedings. If it is asserted that one or more state takeover statutes is applicable to the Offer or the Merger and an appropriate court does not determine that it is inapplicable or invalid as applied to the Offer or the Merger, we might be required to file certain information with, or to receive approvals from, the relevant state authorities or holders of Cardiogenesis shares, and we may be unable to accept for payment or pay for Cardiogenesis shares tendered pursuant to the Offer, or be delayed in continuing or consummating the Offer or the Merger. In such case, we may not be obligated to accept for payment or pay for any tendered Cardiogenesis shares. See "The Transaction – Conditions to the Offer."

Fees and Expenses

CryoLife has retained Georgeson Inc. to act as information agent in connection with the Offer. The information agent may contact holders of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock by mail, telephone, telex, telegraph, e-mail and personal interview and may request brokers, dealers and other nominee shareholders to forward material relating to the Offer to beneficial owners of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. CryoLife has agreed to pay the information agent reasonable and customary compensation for these services in addition to reimbursing the information agent for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. CryoLife has agreed to indemnify

28

the information agent against certain liabilities and expenses in connection with the Offer, including certain liabilities under the U.S. federal securities laws.

CryoLife has agreed to pay the depositary reasonable and customary compensation for its services in connection with the Offer, has agreed to reimburse the depositary for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and has agreed to indemnify the depositary against certain liabilities and expenses, including certain liabilities under the U.S. federal securities laws.

Except as described above, CryoLife has not agreed to pay any fees or commissions of any broker, dealer or other person for soliciting tenders of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer. CryoLife has agreed to reimburse brokers, dealers, commercial banks and trust companies and other nominees, upon request, for customary clerical and mailing expenses incurred by them in forwarding offering materials to their customers.

Support Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Paul McCormick, the Executive Chairman of Cardiogenesis, Richard P. Lanigan, the Executive Vice President, Marketing of Cardiogenesis, and William R. Abbott, the Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of Cardiogenesis, and all members of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors entered into the support agreement, pursuant to which they have agreed to tender into the exchange offer an aggregate of 1,276,859 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which represent approximately 2.7% of the common stock of Cardiogenesis outstanding as of April 5, 2011. The support agreement also requires such shareholders to take certain other actions in connection with the Merger Agreement, including voting in favor of matters contemplated by the Merger Agreement if a meeting of Cardiogenesis shareholders is called.

Dissenters' Rights

No dissenters' rights are available in connection with the Offer. However, if the Merger is consummated following the completion of the Offer, each holder of Cardiogenesis shares who fully complies with and meets all the requirements of the provisions of Chapter 13 of the CGCL, which is set forth in Annex C to this offer to purchase and incorporated herein by reference (such shareholders are referred to herein as "Qualifying Shareholders") may have the right to require CryoLife to purchase the holder's Cardiogenesis shares for cash at "fair market value." Cardiogenesis shares are not listed on a national securities exchange certified by the California Commissioner of Corporations. Therefore, Qualifying Shareholders may exercise dissenters' rights as to any or all of their Cardiogenesis shares entitled to such rights. If the Merger is not consummated, no Qualifying Shareholder will be entitled to have CryoLife purchase such holder's Cardiogenesis shares under Chapter 13 of the CGCL. After a shareholder files a demand to exercise dissenters' rights, that shareholder may not withdraw the demand without Cardiogenesis consent.

Under the CGCL, the "fair market value" of Cardiogenesis shares may be agreed to by CryoLife and the Qualifying Shareholders or judicially determined, depending on the circumstances. The "fair market value" is determined as of the day before the first announcement of the terms of the proposed Merger, excluding any appreciation or depreciation as a result of the Merger and subject to adjustments. The value so determined could be more or less than the price offered in the Offer.

If CryoLife denies that a shareholder is a Qualifying Shareholder, or if a Qualifying Shareholder and CryoLife fail to agree on the fair market value of Cardiogenesis shares, then such shareholder demanding purchase of Cardiogenesis shares as dissenting shares or CryoLife may, within six months after the CryoLife mails the notice of a short-form merger pursuant to Section 1110 of the CGCL set forth in Annex C or, if applicable, the required notice that shareholders have approved the Merger, file a complaint or intervene in a pending action to determine whether Cardiogenesis shares are dissenting shares or the fair market value of Cardiogenesis shares, as applicable.

The foregoing discussion of the rights of Qualifying Shareholders does not purport to be a complete statement of the procedures to be followed by shareholders desiring to exercise any available dissenters' rights and is qualified in its entirety by reference to Chapter 13 of the CGCL, a copy of which is attached hereto as Annex C.

Dissenters' rights cannot be exercised at this time. The information set forth above is for informational purposes only with respect to alternatives available to shareholders if the Merger is completed. If the Merger is completed through a short-form merger pursuant to Section 1110 of the CGCL, shareholders should refer to the Notice of Short-Form Merger attached hereto as Annex C for more information concerning dissenters' rights and the procedures to be followed in connection therewith. If the Merger is subject to shareholder approval, shareholders who will be entitled to dissenters' rights in connection with the Merger will receive additional information concerning dissenters' rights and the procedures to be followed in connection therewith.

Failure by any Cardiogenesis shareholder to comply fully with the procedures described above and set forth in Annex C to this offer to purchase may result in termination of such shareholder's dissenters' rights. In view of the complexity of exercising your dissenters' rights under California law, if you are considering exercising these rights you should consult with your legal counsel.

Holders of CryoLife common stock are not entitled to appraisal or dissenters' rights in connection with the Offer or the Merger.

THE MERGER AGREEMENT

The following summary describes certain material provisions of the definitive Merger Agreement entered into by CryoLife, Merger Sub and Cardiogenesis and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement, a copy of which has been filed as an exhibit to the Schedule TO and is incorporated herein by reference. The Merger Agreement may be examined and copies may be obtained at the locations described under "Available Information" in "The Summary Term Sheet — Who are the companies involved in the Offer and Merger." This summary may not contain all of the information about the Merger Agreement that is important to Cardiogenesis shareholders, and Cardiogenesis shareholders are encouraged to read the Merger Agreement carefully in its entirety. The legal rights and obligations of the parties are governed by the specific language of the Merger Agreement and not this summary.

This summary is only intended to provide information regarding the terms of the Merger Agreement. Other information about CryoLife or Cardiogenesis can be found elsewhere in this offer to purchase and in the public filings CryoLife and Cardiogenesis submit to the SEC, which are available without charge at www.sec.gov.

This offer to purchase contains a description of representations, warranties and covenants made in the Merger Agreement. These representations, warranties and covenants were made only for the purpose of the Merger Agreement and solely for the benefit of the parties to the Merger Agreement as of specific dates, and may be subject to important limitations and qualifications (including exceptions thereto set forth in a disclosure letter or CryoLife's or Cardiogenesis' public filings with the SEC) agreed to by the contracting parties and may not be complete. Furthermore, these representations, warranties and covenants may have been made for the purposes of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the Merger Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts, and may or may not have been accurate as of any specific date and do not purport to be accurate as of the date of this offer to purchase. Accordingly, Cardiogenesis shareholders should not rely upon the descriptions of representations, warranties and covenants contained in this offer to purchase or the actual representations, warranties and covenants contained in the Merger Agreement as statements of factual information.

The Offer

Generally

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, CryoLife, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Merger Sub, has commenced an Offer for all outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. In the Offer, CryoLife is offering to exchange cash for each share of Cardiogenesis common stock that is validly tendered and not properly withdrawn. As of March 25, 2011, Cardiogenesis had 46,638,421 shares of common stock outstanding, all of which CryoLife seeks to acquire in the Offer. In addition, as of March 28, 2011, there were 3,146,940 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock subject to outstanding Options and 2,640,000 shares subject to the Warrant issued by Cardiogenesis, and if such Options or the Warrant are exercised prior to the expiration or termination of the Offer, CryoLife seeks to acquire all shares of Cardiogenesis common stock issuable upon such exercise in the Offer.

The Offer is the first step in CryoLife's acquisition of Cardiogenesis and is intended to facilitate the acquisition of all Cardiogenesis common stock. If CryoLife obtains less than 100% of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares in the Offer, CryoLife intends to complete the second step of its acquisition of Cardiogenesis, the Merger, as soon as possible after completion of the Offer.

Consideration

Under the terms of the Offer, Cardiogenesis shareholders will have the opportunity to elect to receive, for each share of Cardiogenesis common stock validly tendered and not properly withdrawn, \$0.4570 in cash, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes, which is referred to as the cash consideration.

Expiration of the Offer

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the initial expiration date of the Offer is 12:00 Midnight, Eastern time, on May 2, 2011.

Extensions of the Offer

30

If any condition to the Offer is not satisfied or, if permissible, waived on any scheduled expiration date of the Offer, CryoLife is required to extend the expiration date of the Offer for successive extension periods of not more than 10 business days per extension, until the earlier of the date such conditions are satisfied or waived, and August 31, 2011. CryoLife is also required to extend the expiration date of the Offer for any period required by any rule, regulation, interpretation or position of the Securities and Exchange Commission or the staff thereof or the rules of the NYSE applicable to the Offer or any other applicable law.

CryoLife may also extend the Offer one or more successive periods of up to 10 business days (but not later than August 31, 2011) in the event that all conditions to the Offer have been satisfied or waived but less than 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock (on a fully diluted basis) have been validly tendered and not withdrawn. Upon the exercise of such right to extend, CryoLife will be deemed to have waived certain of the conditions to the Offer set forth in the Merger Agreement. In the alternative, CryoLife is permitted to amend the terms of the Offer such that CryoLife will only be required to purchase in the Offer the number of shares that represent 49.9% of all shares of Cardiogenesis then outstanding.

Top-Up Option

Under the Merger Agreement, if the Minimum Condition (discussed below) is satisfied and CryoLife (through Merger Sub) consummates the Offer,

Merger Sub has the option pursuant to the Top-Up Option to purchase from Cardiogenesis a number of additional shares of its common stock up to the lowest number of shares that, when added to the number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock already owned by CryoLife and Merger Sub at the time of exercise of such option, constitutes one share more than 90% of the number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that would be outstanding on a fully diluted basis immediately after the issuance of all shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that are subject to such option. CryoLife (through Merger Sub) may exercise this option only if it has acquired 83.5% of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding immediately prior to the exercise of this option. At CryoLife's option, the purchase price for such shares may be paid in cash or satisfied with a full recourse promissory note (or a combination thereof). The promissory note will bear interest at the prime rate and have a one-year maturity date, may be prepaid without premium or penalty, secured to the extent required by California legal requirements, and shall provide that the unpaid principal and interest will become immediately due and payable if CryoLife fails to make payment for 30 days or CryoLife files or has filed against it any petition under bankruptcy or insolvency law. In no event will the Top-Up Option be exercised (i) for a number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in excess of the number of authorized but unissued shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, or (ii) if any other provision of applicable law or judgment, injunction, order or decree would prohibit the exercise of the option or the delivery of the shares pursuant to the option.

Prompt Payment for Shares of Cardiogenesis Common Stock in the Offer

Subject to the terms of the Offer and the Merger Agreement and the satisfaction (or waiver to the extent permitted) of the conditions to the Offer, CryoLife is required to accept for payment all shares of Cardiogenesis common stock validly tendered and not withdrawn pursuant to the Offer promptly after the applicable expiration date of the Offer, as it may be extended pursuant to the Merger Agreement, and is required to pay the cash consideration with respect to all accepted shares of Cardiogenesis common stock promptly after acceptance.

Composition of Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors after the Offer

Upon the acceptance for payment of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer (and the exercise of the Top-Up Option if necessary), if CryoLife requests, Cardiogenesis has agreed to take all action reasonably necessary to cause CryoLife's designees to be elected or appointed to Cardiogenesis' Board of Directors, including, at CryoLife's option, increasing the number of directors, so that CryoLife will have representation on the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors in proportion to its share ownership. In the event that CryoLife designees are elected or appointed to the Cardiogenesis Board, Cardiogenesis is obligated to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors to maintain at least three directors who were members of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors as of March 28, 2011 and who are independent for purposes of Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act. Cardiogenesis' obligations with respect to CryoLife's board designees shall be subject to Section 14(f) of the Exchange Act and Rule 14f-1 thereunder.

In addition, upon payment for the Cardiogenesis shares pursuant to the Offer, CryoLife will be entitled to appoint two individuals to serve as observers to the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors.

As of this time, CryoLife has not determined who will be its designees on the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors. However, the designees will be selected from a list of potential designees comprised of officers or directors of CryoLife, which officers and directors are set forth in Annex A. After CryoLife's designees are elected to Cardiogenesis' board prior to the completion of the Merger, the affirmative vote of a majority of the continuing directors will be required for Cardiogenesis to, among other things, amend or terminate the Merger Agreement.

31

The Merger

Generally

The Merger Agreement provides that following completion of the Offer, Merger Sub will be merged with and into Cardiogenesis. Upon completion of the Merger, Cardiogenesis will continue as the surviving corporation and will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife.

Shareholder Approval

Under Sections 1201 and 1202 of the CGCL, the approval of the board of directors of a company and the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of outstanding stock entitled to vote are required to approve a merger and adopt a plan of merger. Section 607.1103 of the Florida Business Corporation Act requires approval of the board of directors of the company to be merged and majority of the votes of the holders of each class of its shares entitled to vote to approve a merger. The Boards of Directors of Cardiogenesis and Merger Sub have previously approved the Merger, and the Board of Directors of CryoLife has caused CryoLife, as the sole shareholder of Merger Sub, to approve the Merger.

If, after completion of the Offer, CryoLife owns less than 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, it would complete the acquisition of the remaining outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock through a vote of Cardiogenesis shareholders with respect to the Merger. Completion of the transaction in this manner is referred to in this offer to purchase as a "long-form" merger.

Under Section 1110 of the CGCL, a merger can occur without a vote of Cardiogenesis shareholders, referred to as a "short-form" merger, if, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, or after any exercise by CryoLife of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife were to own at least 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock. If, after completion of the Offer, as it may be extended, or after any exercise by CryoLife of the Top-Up Option, CryoLife owns at least 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, CryoLife would complete the acquisition of the remaining outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock by completing a short-form merger. Upon completion of the Offer, it is possible that CryoLife, together with the parties to the support agreement, will own a majority of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding, in which case approval of the Merger by Cardiogenesis shareholders would be assured.

The Completion of the Merger

The Merger will be completed and become effective when the certificates of merger are filed with the Secretary of State of Florida and the Secretary of State of California. CryoLife and Cardiogenesis anticipate that the Merger will be completed as soon as practicable after the expiration of the Offer and CryoLife's acceptance of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer; however, if shareholder approval is required, the Merger will not be approved until the meeting of the Cardiogenesis shareholders held for such purpose, which will not occur until at least ten days following the completion of the Offer. After the Merger, the surviving corporation will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, and the former Cardiogenesis shareholders will not have any equity ownership interest in the surviving corporation, other than dissenters' rights.

Manner and Basis of Converting Shares of Cardiogenesis Common Stock in the Merger

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, upon completion of the Merger, each share of Cardiogenesis common stock will be converted into the right to receive the cash consideration of \$0.4570 per Cardiogenesis share, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes.

The cash consideration will not be payable in respect of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock held by Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries as treasury stock immediately prior to completion of the Merger or shares of Cardiogenesis common stock owned by CryoLife or any of its subsidiaries immediately prior to the completion of the Merger. CryoLife excludes such shares in all references below in this section to shares of Cardiogenesis common stock canceled in the Merger.

Treatment of Cardiogenesis the Warrant, Options and Other Equity-Based Awards

By virtue of the Merger, the Warrant will become exercisable for the amount of cash consideration to which the Warrant holder would have been entitled if the Warrant holder had exercised the Warrant immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger.

32

At the Effective Time of the Merger, each Option to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock granted under the Cardiogenesis Corporation Stock Option Plan and the Cardiogenesis Corporation Directors Stock Option Plan, whether vested or unvested, will be cancelled and, in exchange therefor, the surviving corporation will pay to each former holder of any such cancelled Option as soon as practicable following the effective time by a special payroll payment an amount in cash (without interest, and subject to deduction for any required withholding tax) equal to the product of (i) the excess of \$0.4570 over the exercise price per share and (ii) the number of shares subject to such Option. If the exercise price per share of any such Option is equal to or greater than \$0.4570, such Option will be canceled without any cash payment being made in respect thereof. In addition, CryoLife may, in its sole discretion, cause the depositary, on behalf of the surviving corporation, to make these payments rather than the surviving corporation.

Each share of Cardiogenesis restricted stock acquired pursuant to the Cardiogenesis Stock Option Plan that is not fully vested, and that is outstanding immediately prior to the date that Merger Sub accepts the Cardiogenesis shares tendered in the Offer, shall automatically become fully vested immediately prior to, but subject to, such acceptance, without any action on the part of Cardiogenesis, CryoLife, Merger Sub or the holders of the restricted stock. Cardiogenesis shall take all requisite action, if any, necessary to accelerate the vesting of the outstanding shares of restricted stock.

To the extent these Options or the Warrant are exercised in exchange for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock prior to the expiration of the Offer, CryoLife will seek to acquire the shares issued upon such exercise in the Offer.

Other Terms of the Merger Agreement

Representations and Warranties

The Merger Agreement contains representations and warranties of Cardiogenesis, CryoLife and Merger Sub, to each other, as to, among other things:

- the corporate organization, existence and power of each party and its subsidiaries;
- the authority of each party to enter into the Merger Agreement and make it valid and binding;
- no contravention by the execution, delivery and performance of the Merger Agreement of:
 - o the organizational documents of each party and its subsidiaries,
 - o applicable law, or
 - o specified agreements, instruments and obligations;
- required governmental approvals; and
- compliance with law.

The Merger Agreement contains additional representations and warranties of Cardiogenesis to CryoLife as to, among other things:

- the capitalization of Cardiogenesis;
- the conduct of its business in the ordinary course;
- the completeness and accuracy of Cardiogenesis' filings with the SEC and financial statements;
- the absence of material undisclosed liabilities;
- the absence of changes in its business;
- legal proceedings;
- compliance of Cardiogenesis' products with FDA marketing and other requirements;
- employee benefit plans and related matters;

33

- certain labor matters;
- environmental liabilities;
- tax matters;
- material contracts;
- the shareholder vote that may be required to approve the Merger;

- insurance policies;
- · tangible and real properties;
- intellectual property;
- product and service warranties;
- accounts receivable and inventories;
- anti-takeover laws, regulations, or rights plans;
- · related party transactions; and
- fees payable to and the opinion of the financial advisor to Cardiogenesis.

The Merger Agreement contains additional representations and warranties of CryoLife to Cardiogenesis as to, among other things:

- CryoLife's ownership of the common stock of Merger Sub;
- the availability of funds to complete the transaction;
- the completeness and accuracy of all disclosure documents and information supplied for inclusion in any disclosure documents by each party in connection with the transaction;
- the required vote or consent of CryoLife, as sole shareholder of Merger Sub, to approve the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby; and
 - fees of the financial advisor of CryoLife.

The representations and warranties given in the Merger Agreement will not survive the Merger. The assertions embodied in the representations and warranties are qualified by information in confidential disclosure schedules that Cardiogenesis has provided to CryoLife in connection with signing the Merger Agreement. While neither CryoLife nor Cardiogenesis believes that the disclosure schedules contain information that the securities laws require to be publicly disclosed, the disclosure schedules do contain information that modifies, qualifies and creates exceptions to the representations and warranties of the parties.

This offer to purchase contains a description of representations, warranties and covenants made in the Merger Agreement. These representations, warranties and covenants were made only for the purpose of the Merger Agreement and solely for the benefit of the parties to the Merger Agreement as of specific dates, and may be subject to important limitations and qualifications (including exceptions thereto set forth in a disclosure letter or CryoLife's or Cardiogenesis' public filings with the SEC) agreed to by the contracting parties and may not be complete. Furthermore, these representations, warranties and covenants may have been made for the purposes of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the Merger Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts, and may or may not have been accurate as of any specific date and do not purport to be accurate as of the date of this offer to purchase. Accordingly, Cardiogenesis shareholders should not rely upon the descriptions of representations, warranties and covenants contained in this offer to purchase or the actual representations, warranties and covenants contained in the Merger Agreement as statements of factual information.

34

Conduct of Business

Cardiogenesis has agreed, unless CryoLife's prior written consent is obtained or expressly contemplated by the Merger Agreement, that from the date of the Merger Agreement until the effective date of the Merger or the date on which CryoLife appoints a majority of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors, if earlier, it will, and it will cause each of its subsidiaries to do the following:

- conduct its business in the ordinary course consistent with past practice;
- use commercially reasonable efforts to preserve intact its present business organization;
- use commercially reasonable efforts to keep available the services of its present officers, employees and consultants;
- use commercially reasonable efforts to preserve its goodwill and its relationships with customers, suppliers, licensors, licensees, distributors and others having business dealings with it; and
 - use commercially reasonable efforts to maintain its assets, rights and properties in good repair and condition, normal wear and tear excepted.

Except as expressly contemplated by the Merger Agreement or as required by law, Cardiogenesis has further agreed that without the prior written consent of CryoLife, it and each of its subsidiaries will not, among other things:

- amend their respective organizational documents;
- declare, set aside or pay any dividends, except for dividends payable by a Cardiogenesis subsidiary to its parent;
- purchase, redeem or otherwise acquire equity interests of Cardiogenesis or its subsidiaries or any Options, warrants, or rights to acquire any such shares or other equity interests;
- split, combine, or reclassify any of its equity interests or issue or authorize the issuance of any other securities in respect of, in lieu of or in substitution for shares of its equity interests;
- issue any shares of its capital stock or any rights, warrants or options to acquire shares of its capital stock or other equity interests, subject to certain exceptions, other than the issuance of shares upon the exercise of Options outstanding on March 28, 2011 in accordance with their terms as in effect on such date;
 - acquire any equity interest in, any division or business of, or a substantial portion of the assets of, any other person;
 - dispose of or encumber material assets, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
 - adopt a plan of complete or partial liquidation, dissolution, restructuring, capitalization or other reorganization;

- incur any indebtedness, issue or sell any debt securities, make any loans, advances or capital contributions to or investments in any other person, or become responsible for the obligations of any other person, with certain exceptions, enter into any "keep well" or other agreement to maintain any financial statement condition of another person other than Cardiogenesis or a subsidiary of Cardiogenesis, or amend any contract to effect any such transactions;
- incur or commit to incur any capital expenditure or authorization or commitment with respect thereto that individually is in excess of \$10,000, or in the aggregate are in excess of \$20,000, except as provided in the Merger Agreement;
- settle, pay, satisfy or discharge any claim other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, cancel any material indebtedness or waive any right of material value;
- enter into any material contract, or amend or modify any material contract, except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
- commence any action, suit, or other proceeding or compromise, settle or agree to settle any material action, suit, or other proceeding, including any action, suit, or other proceeding relating to the Merger Agreement or the transactions contemplated thereby;

35

- change its financial or tax accounting methods, except as required by changes in GAAP or by applicable law, or revalue any of its assets;
- settle any material liability for taxes, amend any material tax return, enter into any material contract with or request any material ruling from any governmental entity relating to taxes, change any material tax election, take any material position on a tax return inconsistent with a position taken on a tax return previously filed, take any other action to materially impair any tax asset reflected in Cardiogenesis' SEC filings filed most recently prior to the date thereof, extend or waive any statute of limitations with respect to taxes, or surrender any claim for a material refund of taxes;
 - · change its fiscal or tax year;
- grant any director, officer, employee or independent contractor any increase in compensation, bonus or other benefits, except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice in the compensation of employees that are not officers, grant any director, officer, employee or independent contractor any severance, change in control or termination pay, pay any benefit or grant or amend any award except as required to comply with any contracts in effect as of the date of the Merger Agreement;
- enter into any collective bargaining agreement or other labor union contract, take any action to accelerate the vesting or payment of any compensation or benefit under any plan or other contract, adopt any new employee benefit plan or arrangement or amend, modify or terminate any existing plan, in each case for the benefit of any director, officer, employee or independent contractor, other than as required by applicable law or in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
- fail to keep in force insurance policies or replacement or revised provisions regarding insurance coverage with respect to the assets, operations and activities of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries substantially equivalent to those currently in effect;
- renew or enter into any non-compete, exclusivity, non-solicitation or similar agreement that would restrict or limit, in any material respect, the operations of Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries;
- waive any material benefits of, or agree to modify in any adverse respect, or fail to enforce, or consent to any matter with respect to which its consent is required under, any confidentiality, standstill or similar agreement to which Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries is a party;
 - enter into any new line of business outside of its existing business;
- enter into any new lease or amend the terms of any existing lease of real property that would require payments over the remaining term of such lease in excess of \$10,000;
- knowingly violate or knowingly fail to perform any obligation or duty imposed upon it by any applicable material federal, state or local law, rule, regulation, guideline or ordinance;
 - create or form any subsidiary or make any other investment in another person;
- modify the standard warranty terms for products sold by Cardiogenesis or amend or modify any product warranties in effect as of the date hereof in any manner that is adverse to Cardiogenesis;
- allow any of Cardiogenesis' or its subsidiaries' trade secrets or other confidential information relating to Cardiogenesis' or its subsidiaries' existing products or products currently under development to be disclosed, or allow any of Cardiogenesis' or its subsidiaries' intellectual property rights relating to Cardiogenesis' or its subsidiaries' existing products or products currently under development to be abandoned, or otherwise to lapse or become unavailable to Cardiogenesis or its subsidiaries on the same terms and conditions as such rights were available to Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries as of the date of the Merger Agreement;
- enter into any distribution agreements not terminable by Cardiogenesis or its subsidiaries on 60 days notice without penalty, enter into any commitment to any person to enter into any license, distributorship, or sales agreement that by its terms would purport to relate to any of the products of CryoLife or its affiliates or sell, license or otherwise dispose of any intellectual property other than sales of its products and other non-exclusive licenses that are in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practices, enter into any sales agency agreements or grant "most favored nation" pricing to any person;
 - enter into, amend or terminate any contract, agreement, commitment or arrangement with any affiliated person;

- fail to make in a timely manner any filings with the SEC required under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (except as permitted by Rule 12b-25); or
- knowingly take any action (or omit to take any action) if such action (or omission) could reasonably be expected to result in certain conditions to the Offer or Merger not being satisfied.

Cardiogenesis has agreed that it shall use commercially reasonable efforts to:

- maintain its material assets and properties in the ordinary course of business in the manner historically maintained, reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualty excepted;
 - promptly repair, restore or replace all material assets and properties in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;
- upon any damage, destruction or loss to any of its material assets or properties, apply any and all insurance proceeds, if any, received with respect thereto to the prompt repair, replacement and restoration thereof as reasonably necessary for the operation of Cardiogenesis' business;
 - comply in all material respects with all applicable laws;
- take all actions necessary to be in compliance in all material respects with all material contracts and to maintain the effectiveness of all its permits;
- notify CryoLife in writing (within two business days) of the commencement of any action, suit, claim or investigation by or against Cardiogenesis, provided that this obligation is not modified by the use of Cardiogenesis' commercially reasonable efforts;
- if CryoLife gives Cardiogenesis written notice not less than 10 business days prior to the closing date of the Merger, take all necessary corporate action to terminate Cardiogenesis' 401(k) plan effective as of the date immediately prior to the closing date of the Merger, but contingent on the closing of the Merger;
- provide CryoLife evidence that Cardiogenesis has satisfied its obligations with respect to the Options in accordance with the Merger Agreement; and
 - pay accounts payable and pursue collection of its accounts receivable in the ordinary course of business, consistent with past practices.

Alternative Transactions

The Merger Agreement provides that, for a period of 20 days after the signing of the Merger Agreement, Cardiogenesis may initiate, solicit and encourage, whether publicly or otherwise, alternative acquisition proposals, and enter into, engage in, and maintain discussions or negotiations with respect to acquisition proposals (or inquiries, proposals or offers or other efforts or attempts that may reasonably be expected to lead to an acquisition proposal) or otherwise cooperate with or assist or participate in, or facilitate any such inquiries, proposals, offers, efforts, attempts, discussions or negotiations. This is referred to as a "go-shop" period, and it ends on April 17, 2011 at 11:59 PM. The following day, April 18, 2011, is the "No-Shop Period Start Date". Beginning with the No-Shop Period Start Date, the Merger Agreement has a "no-shop" provision which prohibits Cardiogenesis from soliciting any additional offers or proposals, subject to limited exceptions described below.

Under the terms of the no-shop provision of the Merger Agreement, subject to certain exceptions described below, Cardiogenesis has agreed that it will not, and that it will not permit or authorize any of its subsidiaries or any director, officer, employee, investment banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountant or other advisor, agent or representative (collectively, the "representatives") to, directly or indirectly:

- solicit, initiate or knowingly facilitate or encourage any inquiries regarding, or the making of, any proposal or offer that constitutes an acquisition proposal;
- engage in, continue or otherwise participate in any discussions or negotiations regarding, or furnish to any other person any non-public information in connection with or for the purpose of encouraging or facilitating, an acquisition proposal; or
 - enter into any letter of intent, agreement or agreement in principle with respect to an acquisition proposal.

37

In addition, Cardiogenesis has agreed that it will cease and terminate, and that it will direct each of its subsidiaries and the representatives of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries to immediately cease and cause to be terminated, all existing discussions or negotiations with any person previously conducted with respect to any acquisition proposal.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time on or after the No-Shop Period Start Date and prior to obtaining the approval of the Cardiogenesis shareholders of the Merger, Cardiogenesis or any of its representatives receives a written acquisition proposal that was made by an excluded party, as defined below, or was made or renewed on or after the No-Shop Period Start Date and did not result from any breach of Cardiogenesis' obligations under the Merger Agreement, (i) Cardiogenesis and its representatives may contact the person(s) making the acquisition proposal to clarify its terms and conditions and (ii) if the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis determines in good faith, after consultation with independent financial advisors and outside legal counsel, that the acquisition proposal constitutes or could reasonably be expected to lead to a superior proposal, then Cardiogenesis and its representatives may do the following:

- furnish information (including non-public information) with respect to Cardiogenesis to the person(s) making the acquisition proposal, provided such person(s) have signed a confidentiality agreement and that Cardiogenesis shall promptly provide to CryoLife any material non-public information that is provided to such person(s) that was not previously provided to CryoLife; and
 - engage in or otherwise participate in discussions or negotiations with person(s) making an acquisition proposal.

From and after the No-Shop Period Start Date, Cardiogenesis will provide to CryoLife within 48 hours a written summary of the material terms of any acquisition proposal (including any financing commitments relating thereto).

Following the No-Shop Period Start Date, Cardiogenesis will keep CryoLife reasonably informed of any material developments, discussions or negotiations regarding any acquisition proposal on a prompt basis and upon the request of CryoLife shall apprise CryoLife of the status of each acquisition proposal. Cardiogenesis agrees that it and its subsidiaries will not enter into any confidentiality agreement with any person after March 28, 2011 that

prohibits Cardiogenesis from providing any information to CryoLife.

Except as expressly permitted by the Merger Agreement, the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis will not:

- make an "adverse recommendation change," which means the following:
 - o fail to recommend to its shareholders that they approve the Merger Agreement (the "Board Recommendation") or fail to include the Board Recommendation in the Schedule 14D-9, the proxy statement or related filings;
 - o change, qualify, withhold, withdraw or modify, or publicly propose to change, qualify, withhold, withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to CryoLife, the Board Recommendation;
 - take any formal action or make any recommendation or public statement in connection with a tender offer or exchange offer (other than the Offer) other than a recommendation against such offer or a customary "stop, look and listen" communication pursuant to applicable securities laws; or
 - o adopt, approve or recommend, or publicly propose to approve or recommend to the shareholders an acquisition proposal.
- authorize, cause or permit Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries to enter into any letter of intent, agreement or agreement in principle with respect to any acquisition proposal (each, a "Company Acquisition Agreement"); or
 - terminate the Merger Agreement in order to concurrently enter into a Company Acquisition Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Merger Agreement, prior to the time the Cardiogenesis shareholders approve the Merger Agreement, but not after, the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis may:

• make an Adverse Recommendation Change, enter into a Company Acquisition Agreement with respect to an acquisition proposal not solicited in violation of the Merger Agreement or terminate the Merger Agreement in order to concurrently enter into a Company Acquisition Agreement if the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis has determined in good faith, after consultation with its financial advisor and outside legal counsel, that failure to take such action could be inconsistent with the directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law and the acquisition proposal constitutes a superior proposal, so long as:

38

- Cardiogenesis has given CryoLife at least five business days' prior written notice of its intention to take such action (which notice shall include unredacted copies of the superior proposal and related transaction and financing documents and a written summary of the material terms of any superior proposal);
- Cardiogenesis has negotiated with CryoLife during such notice period, to the extent CryoLife wishes to negotiate, to enable CryoLife to
 propose revisions to the terms of the Merger Agreement such that it would cause such superior proposal to no longer constitute a superior
 proposal;
- o following the end of such notice period, the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis shall have considered in good faith any proposed revisions to the Merger Agreement proposed in writing by CryoLife in a manner that would form a binding contract if accepted by Cardiogenesis, and shall have determined that the superior proposal would continue to constitute a superior proposal if such revisions were to be given effect;
- o in the event of any material change to the material terms of such superior proposal, Cardiogenesis shall, in each case, have delivered to CryoLife an additional notice consistent with that described above and the notice period shall have recommenced, except that the notice period shall be at least one business day;
- Cardiogenesis has complied in all material respects with its obligations in the non-solicitation sections of the Merger Agreement; and
- any termination of the Merger Agreement in connection with the foregoing is in accordance with the termination provisions of the Merger Agreement, and Cardiogenesis pays CryoLife the applicable Termination Fee (described below) prior to or concurrently with such termination; or
- change, qualify, withhold, withdraw or modify, or publicly propose to change, qualify, withhold, withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse to CryoLife, its recommendation that the Cardiogenesis shareholders approve the Merger Agreement if it has determined in good faith, after consultation with Cardiogenesis' financial advisor and outside legal counsel, that failure to take such action could be inconsistent with the directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law (other than in response to a superior proposal, which is described above) and prior to taking such action:
 - the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis has given CryoLife at least five business days' prior written notice of its intention to take such action and a description of the reasons for taking such action,
 - Cardiogenesis has negotiated, and has caused its representatives to negotiate, in good faith with CryoLife during such notice period, to the
 extent CryoLife wishes to negotiate, to enable CryoLife to revise the terms of the Merger Agreement in a manner that would obviate the
 need for taking such action, and
 - o following the end of such notice period, the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis shall have considered in good faith any revisions to the Merger Agreement proposed in writing by CryoLife in a manner that would form a binding contract if accepted by Cardiogenesis, and shall have determined in good faith, after consultation with Cardiogenesis' financial advisor and outside legal counsel, that failure to change its recommendation could be inconsistent with the directors' fiduciary duties under applicable law.

Nothing in the Merger Agreement prohibits Cardiogenesis from taking and disclosing to the Cardiogenesis shareholders a position contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a), Rule 14d-9 or Item 1012(a) of Regulation M-A promulgated under the Exchange Act or making any disclosure to the Cardiogenesis shareholders that is required by applicable law.

As used in this offer to purchase:

- "acquisition proposal" means any inquiry, proposal or offer from any person or entity or group (other than CryoLife and its subsidiaries) relating to, in a single transaction or series of related transactions, any of the following:
 - o acquisition of assets of Cardiogenesis equal to 20% or more of Cardiogenesis' consolidated assets or to which 20% or more of

- Cardiogenesis' revenues or earnings on a consolidated basis are attributable,
- o acquisition of 20% or more of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock,
- tender offer or exchange offer that if consummated would result in any person or entity beneficially owning 20% or more of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock,

39

- merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction involving Cardiogenesis, or
- o any combination of the foregoing types of transactions if the sum of the percentage of consolidated assets, consolidated revenues or earnings and Cardiogenesis common stock involved is 20% or more; in each case, other than the Offer and the Merger.
- "excluded party" means any person or entity or group of persons or entities from whom Cardiogenesis or any of its representatives received, after the execution of the Merger Agreement and prior to the No-Shop Period Start Date, an acquisition proposal that the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis determines, in good faith, prior to or as of the No-Shop Period Start Date and after consultation with its financial advisor and outside legal counsel, constitutes or could reasonably be expected to lead to a superior proposal; provided, however, that such person, entity or group shall cease to be an excluded party as of the No-Shop Period Start Date unless, prior to the No-Shop Period Start Date, Cardiogenesis or any of its representatives received from such person, entity or group an acquisition proposal that the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis determined, in good faith, prior to or as of the No-Shop Period Start Date and after consultation with its financial advisor and outside legal counsel, constituted a superior proposal; and provided, further, that any such person, entity or group shall cease to be an excluded party at any time it ceases to be actively pursuing efforts to acquire Cardiogenesis.
- "superior proposal" means any bona fide written acquisition proposal that the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis has determined, after consultation with Cardiogenesis' outside legal counsel and financial advisor, in its good faith judgment is reasonably likely to be consummated in accordance with its terms, taking into account all legal, regulatory and financial aspects (including certainty of closing) of the proposal and the person or entity making the proposal, and if consummated, would result in a transaction more favorable to the shareholders of Cardiogenesis (solely in their capacity as such) from a financial point of view than the transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement (including any revisions to the terms of the Merger Agreement proposed by CryoLife in response to such proposal or otherwise); provided that for purposes of the definition of "superior proposal" the references to "20%" in the definition of acquisition proposal shall be deemed to be references to "50%."

Directors' and Officers' Indemnification

Under the Merger Agreement, for six years after the effective time of the Merger, Merger Sub will indemnify and hold harmless Cardiogenesis' current or former officers and directors for any and all loss and liability suffered and expenses incurred by such officers and directors in connection with any action arising out of or pertaining to the fact that the indemnified person is or was an officer, director, employee or fiduciary of Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries prior to the effective time of the Merger, to the fullest extent that Cardiogenesis would be permitted under applicable law or required or permitted under the Cardiogenesis certificate of incorporation or bylaws.

For six years after the effective time of the Merger, under the Merger Agreement, CryoLife will cause to be maintained in effect the current policies of directors' and officers' liability insurance maintained by Cardiogenesis, although CryoLife may substitute policies of at least the same coverage and amounts containing terms and conditions which are no less favorable in any material respect. However, neither CryoLife nor Cardiogenesis will be obligated to make annual premium payments for this insurance if the premiums exceed 150% of the annual premiums paid as of the date of the Merger Agreement by Cardiogenesis for such insurance. If the insurance coverage cannot be obtained at all, or can only be obtained at an annual premium in excess of the maximum premium, CryoLife will maintain the most advantageous policies of directors' and officers' insurance obtainable for an annual premium equal to 150% of the annual premiums paid by Cardiogenesis.

Conditions to the Offer

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub is not required to accept for payment or, subject to any applicable rules of the SEC, to pay for any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered pursuant to the Offer, and may delay the acceptance for payment or payment of any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or terminate or amend the Offer if the following conditions described below are not satisfied or waived by Merger Sub prior to the completion of the Offer:

Minimum Condition

Prior to the expiration date of the Offer, as it may be extended pursuant to the Merger Agreement, there must be validly tendered and not withdrawn (not including shares of Cardiogenesis common stock subject to a notice of guaranteed delivery unless such shares have actually been delivered) prior to the expiration date of the Offer, a number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which, together with any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock that CryoLife, Merger Sub or any other subsidiary of CryoLife owns, constitute at least a majority of the sum of:

40

- o the total number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding; and
- the number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock issuable upon exercise or conversion of all Options, warrants, rights and convertible securities outstanding.

The Minimum Condition will be a majority of 52,425,784 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, which is equal to the sum of the total number of outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock and the total number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock issuable upon the exercise of all outstanding Options and warrants to purchase Cardiogenesis common stock. Other than the Options and the Warrant, there are no rights or other securities convertible into or exercisable for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock outstanding. As a result, there must be validly tendered and not withdrawn

26,212,893 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock in the Offer to satisfy the Minimum Condition. Assuming that the shareholders of Cardiogenesis who have entered into the support agreement tender or cause to be tendered all of the shares they beneficially owned as of April 5, 2011, an additional 24,936,034 shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, representing approximately 48% of the sum of outstanding shares and shares issuable upon exercise of Options and the Warrant, or 53.5% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock (excluding shares issuable upon exercise of Options and the Warrant) as of April 5, 2011, must be tendered into the Offer to satisfy the Minimum Condition.

Other Conditions

The Offer is also subject to conditions that must be satisfied or waived by Merger Sub prior to the expiration of the Offer, including the following:

- Cardiogenesis having not breached or failed to comply in any material respect with any of its obligations, covenants or agreements in the Merger Agreement;
- the representations and warranties of Cardiogenesis contained in the Merger Agreement having been true and correct as of the date of the Merger Agreement and as of the time for acceptance and payment of the shares (except to the extent such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date), subject to applicable materiality qualifications;
- the Merger Agreement not having been terminated in accordance with its terms, or amended in accordance with its terms to provide for such termination;
 - no event having occurred that has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on Cardiogenesis; and
- there must not have been any action, suit, claim, arbitration, investigation, inquiry, grievance or other proceeding pending by any governmental entity, or any federal, state, local or foreign law (including common law, FDA laws, and foreign drug laws), statute, ordinance, rule, code, regulation, injunction, judgment, order, decree or other legally enforceable requirement enacted, entered, or promulgated by a governmental entity that seeks to:
 - o make illegal or otherwise prohibit the consummation of the Offer or the Merger;
 - o prohibit or limit the ownership, operation or control by Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries of any material portion of the business or assets of Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries which would be material in the context of either the value of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, to CryoLife upon consummation of the Offer and Merger, or to CryoLife and its subsidiaries taken as a whole;
 - o compel Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries to dispose of or hold separate any material portion of the business or assets of Cardiogenesis, CryoLife or any of their respective subsidiaries which would be material in the context of either the value of Cardiogenesis and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, to CryoLife upon consummation of the Offer and Merger, or to CryoLife and its subsidiaries taken as a whole; or
 - o impose material limitations on CryoLife's ability to acquire, hold or effectively exercise full rights of ownership of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, including the right to vote the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock purchased or owned by CryoLife.

If any one of the above conditions is not met, including the Minimum Condition, then Merger Sub is not required to accept for payment or, subject to any applicable rules of the SEC, to pay for any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock tendered pursuant to

41

the Offer. CryoLife and Merger Sub, however, have reserved the absolute right, in their sole discretion, subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, to waive, in whole or in part, any of the conditions to the Offer, or to modify the terms or conditions of the Offer consistent with the terms of the Merger Agreement, except that, without the prior written consent of Cardiogenesis, neither CryoLife nor Merger Sub may (except, in certain circumstances, in connection with its matching rights in the event of a competing offer), (i) reduce the cash consideration, (ii) subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, change the form of consideration payable in the Offer, (iii) subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, reduce the number of shares to be purchased by Merger Sub in the Offer, (iv) subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, waive or amend the Minimum Condition, (v) add to the conditions to the Offer or impose any other conditions to the Offer, (vi) extend the expiration date of the Offer except as required or allowed by the Merger Agreement, (vii) otherwise amend, modify, or supplement any condition to the Offer or any term of the Offer in a manner adverse to the holders of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, or (viii) abandon or terminate the Offer except as provided for in the Merger Agreement. See "The Transaction—Extension; Termination and Amendment".

In the event that the Offer period is extended by CryoLife in an effort to secure 90% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis through the Offer, and the exercise of the Top-Up Option, if necessary, CryoLife has agreed that it will waive its right to terminate the Merger Agreement in the event that certain of the Offer conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement cease to be true or are breached by Cardiogenesis (other than as a result of an intentional breach by Cardiogenesis) during the extension period.

Termination of the Merger Agreement

The Merger Agreement may be terminated and the Offer and Merger abandoned at any time prior to the acceptance of shares in the Offer.

- by mutual written consent of CryoLife and Cardiogenesis;
- by either CryoLife or Cardiogenesis if a final and nonappealable order, decree, ruling or other action has been issued permanently prohibiting the Offer or the Merger (provided, that the party seeking to terminate the Merger Agreement has used its reasonable best efforts to contest, appeal and remove such judgment, order, injunction, rule, decree, ruling or other action);
 - by CryoLife, at any time prior to the acceptance of shares in the Offer:
 - o if Cardiogenesis has breached or failed to perform any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements set forth in the Merger Agreement (other than with respect to a breach of the non-solicitation covenant or covenant regarding Cardiogenesis' obligation to hold a shareholders' meeting, which are covered elsewhere) or if any representation or warranty of Cardiogenesis has become untrue, in each case which breach or failure to perform or to be true, individually or in the aggregate (i) would result in the failure of an offer condition or of any of the conditions to the Offer and Merger, and (ii) cannot be or, to the extent curable by Cardiogenesis, has not been cured by the earlier of (1) August 31, 2011, and (2) 30 days after the giving of written notice to Cardiogenesis of such breach or failure; provided, that CryoLife

- will not have the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to the foregoing if CryoLife or Merger Sub is then in material breach of any of its covenants or agreements set forth in the Merger Agreement;
- o if (i) the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) effects an adverse recommendation change, (ii) Cardiogenesis or the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) approves or recommends, or causes or permits Cardiogenesis to enter into, an alternative acquisition agreement relating to an acquisition proposal, (iii) Cardiogenesis shall have breached any of its obligations under the non-solicitation covenant or covenant regarding Cardiogenesis' obligation to hold a shareholders' meeting) or (iv) Cardiogenesis or the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) shall formally resolve or publicly authorize or publicly propose to take any of the foregoing actions; or
- o if (i) Merger Sub shall not have accepted for payment and paid for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer on or before August 31, 2011, (ii) the Offer has expired or been terminated in accordance with its terms without Merger Sub having purchased any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant thereto, or (iii) Merger Sub has failed to commence the Offer by August 31, 2011; provided, that CryoLife will not have the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to the foregoing if such failure to accept for payment and pay for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or to commence the Offer is due to CryoLife's or Merger Sub's breach of the Merger Agreement.
- by Cardiogenesis, at any time prior to the Offer acceptance date:

42

- o if CryoLife or Merger Sub has breached or failed to perform any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements set forth in the Merger Agreement, or if any representation or warranty of CryoLife or Merger Sub has become untrue, in each case which breach or failure to perform or to be true, individually or in the aggregate (i) has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on CryoLife, and (ii) cannot be or, to the extent curable by CryoLife or Merger Sub, has not been cured by the earlier of (1) August 31, 2011 and (2) 30 days after the giving of written notice to CryoLife of such breach or failure; provided that Cardiogenesis will not have the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to the foregoing if it is then in material breach of any of its covenants or agreements set forth in the Merger Agreement;
- o in order to concurrently enter into a Company Acquisition Agreement that constitutes a superior proposal, so long as Cardiogenesis has complied in all material respects with its non-solicitation obligations in the Merger Agreement and, prior to or concurrently with such termination, has paid the applicable Termination Fee to CryoLife;
- o if (i) Merger Sub has not accepted for payment and paid for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer on or before August 31, 2011, (ii) the Offer has expired or been terminated in accordance with its terms without Merger Sub having purchased any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant thereto, or (iii) Merger Sub has failed to commence the Offer by August 31, 2011; provided, that Cardiogenesis will not have the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to the foregoing if such failure to accept for payment and pay for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or to commence the Offer is due to Cardiogenesis' breach of the Merger Agreement.

Termination Fees and Expenses

Cardiogenesis will be required to pay to CryoLife a termination fee upon the occurrence of certain events described below.

Upon the occurrence of the events listed in either of the two bullet points below, Cardiogenesis will be required to pay a termination fee of \$1,500,000:

- if all the following three sets of conditions are satisfied: (A) an acquisition proposal or intention to make an acquisition proposal is made directly to the shareholders of Cardiogenesis, otherwise publicly disclosed or otherwise publicly communicated to senior management of Cardiogenesis or its Board of Directors, and
 - (B) (1) the Merger Agreement is thereafter terminated by CryoLife and either:
 - o if Cardiogenesis has breached or failed to perform any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements set forth in the Merger Agreement (other than with respect to a breach of the non-solicitation covenant or covenant regarding Cardiogenesis' obligation to hold a shareholders' meeting) or if any representation or warranty of Cardiogenesis has become untrue, in each case which breach or failure to perform or to be true, individually or in the aggregate (i) would result in the failure of an Offer condition or of any of the conditions to the Offer and Merger, and (ii) cannot be or, to the extent curable by Cardiogenesis, has not been cured by the earlier of (1) August 31, 2011, and (2) 30 days after the giving of written notice to Cardiogenesis of such breach or failure; provided, that CryoLife will not have the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to the foregoing if CryoLife or Merger Sub is then in material breach of any of its covenants or agreements set forth in the Merger Agreement; or
 - o if (i) Merger Sub shall not have accepted for payment and paid for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer on or before August 31, 2011, (ii) the Offer has expired or been terminated in accordance with its terms without Merger Sub having purchased any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant thereto, or (iii) Merger Sub has failed to commence the Offer by August 31, 2011 (other than if such failure to accept for payment and pay for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or to commence the Offer is due to CryoLife's or Merger Sub's breach of the Merger Agreement), unless immediately prior to such termination a number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock satisfying the Minimum Condition shall have been tendered into the Offer and not withdrawn; or
 - (2) the Merger Agreement is thereafter terminated by Cardiogenesis if (i) Merger Sub has not accepted for payment and paid for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the Offer on or before August 31, 2011, (ii) the Offer has expired or been terminated in accordance with its terms without Merger Sub having purchased any shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant thereto, or (iii) Merger Sub has failed to commence the Offer by April 18, 2011 (other than if such failure to accept for payment and pay for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, to purchase shares of Cardiogenesis common stock or to commence the Offer is due to Cardiogenesis' breach of the Merger Agreement), unless immediately

prior to such termination a number of shares of Cardiogenesis common stock satisfying the Minimum Condition shall have been tendered into the Offer and not withdrawn; and

(C) within 12 months after the date of such termination, Cardiogenesis enters into an agreement in respect of any acquisition proposal and such transaction is subsequently consummated (whether consummated before or after such 12-month period), or recommends or submits an acquisition proposal to its shareholders for adoption and such transaction is subsequently consummated (whether consummated before or after such 12-month period), or a transaction in respect of an acquisition proposal is consummated within such 12-month period, which, in each case, need not be the same acquisition proposal that shall have been made, publicly disclosed or communicated prior to termination hereof (provided, that for purposes of this clause (C), each reference to "20%" in the definition of "Acquisition Proposal" shall be deemed to be a reference to "50%"); or

• if CryoLife terminates the Merger Agreement if (i) the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) effects an adverse recommendation change, (ii) Cardiogenesis or the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) approves or recommends, or causes or permits Cardiogenesis to enter into, an alternative acquisition agreement relating to an acquisition proposal, (iii) Cardiogenesis shall have breached any of its obligations under the non-solicitation covenant or covenant regarding Cardiogenesis' obligation to hold a shareholders' meeting, which are covered elsewhere or (iv) Cardiogenesis or the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors (or any committee thereof) shall formally resolve or publicly authorize or publicly propose to take any of the foregoing actions.

Alternatively, Cardiogenesis will be required to pay a reduced termination fee of \$1,000,000 if, prior to April 18, 2011, Cardiogenesis terminates the Merger Agreement in order to concurrently enter into a Company Acquisition Agreement that constitutes a superior proposal, so long as Cardiogenesis has complied in all material respects with its non-solicitation obligations in the Merger Agreement. However, if Cardiogenesis terminates the Merger Agreement under these conditions after April 17, 2011, Cardiogenesis must pay the full termination fee of \$1,500,000. In no event will Cardiogenesis be required to pay the full termination fee on more than one occasion.

Subject to certain exceptions, all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Merger Agreement, the Offer, the Merger, and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will be paid by the party incurring such fees or expenses, whether or not the Offer or the Merger is consummated, except that the expenses incurred in connection with the filing, printing and mailing of the Offer documents, the Schedule 14D-9 and the proxy statement, and all filing and other fees paid to the SEC, in each case in connection with the Merger (other than attorneys' fees, accountants' fees and related expenses), will be borne by CryoLife. Any fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Merger Agreement, the Offer, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement incurred by a Cardiogenesis shareholder (such as fees and expenses of separate counsel to such shareholder) will be borne by such shareholder.

Effect of Termination

In the event that the Merger Agreement is terminated by CryoLife due to an adverse recommendation change or approval or recommendation of an alternative acquisition agreement relating to an acquisition proposal by Cardiogenesis or under similar circumstances, or terminated by Cardiogenesis in order to enter into an agreement with respect to a superior proposal, in each case in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement, CryoLife will promptly amend the Offer to disclose that such Offer is no longer pursuant to the Merger Agreement. Any Offer so amended and continued after the termination of the Merger Agreement will not be subject to any terms or conditions of the Merger Agreement (and CryoLife and Merger Sub will not be subject to any standstill agreement previously entered into). In the event that the Merger Agreement is terminated pursuant to any other termination right, then as promptly as practicable after such termination, CryoLife will terminate the Offer. Nothing in the Merger Agreement is to be construed as a standstill or restriction that would limit CryoLife or any of its subsidiaries from acquiring capital stock of Cardiogenesis by any means at any time after termination of the Merger Agreement (or termination of the Offer).

Amendment of the Merger Agreement and Waiver of Rights

The Merger Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented by the respective Boards of Directors of CryoLife and Cardiogenesis at any time prior to the effective time of the Merger, whether before or after Cardiogenesis has obtained the approval of its shareholders. However, after Merger Sub has accepted for payment and paid for shares of Cardiogenesis common stock pursuant to the offer to purchase no amendment may be made which decreases the cash consideration. In addition, after Cardiogenesis has obtained the approval of its shareholders, no amendment may be made that pursuant to applicable law requires further approval or adoption by the shareholders without such further approval or adoption.

At any time prior to the effective time of the Merger, the respective Boards of Directors of CryoLife and Cardiogenesis may, (i) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or acts of the other parties, (ii) waive any inaccuracies in the

44

representations and warranties of the other parties set forth in the Merger Agreement or any document delivered pursuant thereto or (iii) subject to applicable law, waive compliance with any of the agreements or conditions of the other parties contained in the Merger Agreement. However, after Cardiogenesis has obtained the approval of its shareholders, no waiver may be made that pursuant to applicable law requires further approval or adoption by the shareholders without such further approval or adoption.

Support Agreement

In order to induce CryoLife to enter into the Merger Agreement, Paul McCormick, the Executive Chairman of Cardiogenesis, Richard P. Lanigan, the Executive Vice President, Marketing of Cardiogenesis, and William R. Abbott, the Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer of Cardiogenesis, and each member of the Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis (holding an aggregate of approximately 2.7% of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis common stock as of April 5, 2011) entered into a support agreement with CryoLife. Pursuant to the support agreement, such persons have

agreed, in their capacity as shareholders, to tender into the Offer, but only if requested in writing by CryoLife, prior to the termination date of the support agreement and except as otherwise described below, their shares of Cardiogenesis common stock (including any shares obtained upon any exercise of Options) and to vote such shares at any meeting of the shareholders of Cardiogenesis or in connection with any written consent of the shareholders of Cardiogenesis:

- in favor of the Merger, the execution and delivery by Cardiogenesis of the Merger Agreement, the adoption and approval of the Merger Agreement and the terms thereof and each of the other matters necessary for consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (whether or not recommended by the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors); and
- against any acquisition proposal, any recapitalization, reorganization, liquidation, dissolution, amalgamation, merger, sale of assets or other business combination between Cardiogenesis and any other person (other than the Merger), any other action that could reasonably be expected to impede, interfere with, delay, postpone or adversely affect the Merger or any of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement or the support agreement or any transaction that results in a breach in any material respect of any covenant, representation or warranty or other obligation or agreement of Cardiogenesis or any of its subsidiaries under the Merger Agreement, and any change in the present capitalization or dividend policy of Cardiogenesis or any amendment or other change to Cardiogenesis' articles of incorporation or bylaws, except if approved by CryoLife.

Each shareholder who is party to the support agreement also agreed that prior to the termination date of the support agreement such shareholder will not:

- take any action or fail to take any action, or cause Cardiogenesis or any other representative of Cardiogenesis to take any action or fail to take any action, that would constitute, or be reasonably likely to result in, a breach of Cardiogenesis' covenants and agreements under the non-solicitation provisions of the Merger Agreement; or
- (i) tender into any tender or exchange offer (other than the Offer), (ii) sell (constructively or otherwise), transfer, pledge, hypothecate, grant, encumber, assign or otherwise dispose of, or enter into any contract, option, agreement or other arrangement or understanding with respect to the transfer of any of such shareholder's shares of Cardiogenesis stock or beneficial ownership or voting power thereof or therein (including by operation of law), (iii) grant any proxies or powers of attorney, deposit any shares of Cardiogenesis stock into a voting trust or enter into a voting agreement with respect to any shares of Cardiogenesis stock or (iv) knowingly take any action that would make any representation or warranty of such shareholder contained in the support agreement untrue or incorrect, in any material respect, or have the effect of preventing or disabling such shareholder from performing its obligations thereunder.

The support agreement requires each signing shareholder, within five business days of the commencement of the Offer, to deliver to the exchange agent properly completed letters of election and transmittal, stock certificates for any Cardiogenesis shares held in certificated form, and any other documents required to be delivered pursuant to the terms of the Offer, and to instruct the broker who holds any such shares to promptly tender the shares pursuant to the Offer.

The support agreement will terminate automatically upon the earliest to occur of the following: (i) the effective time of the Merger, (ii) written notice of termination of the support agreement is delivered by CryoLife to the shareholders, (iii) August 31, 2011, (iv) the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms, (v) the date CryoLife or Merger Sub terminates, withdraws, or abandons the Offer, (vi) the date on which the Offer is revised (except in the context of CryoLife's "matching right") for (A) a reduction of the cash consideration in the Merger, (B) subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, a change in the form of consideration payable in the Offer, (C) subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, a reduction in the number of shares to be purchased by Merger Sub in the Offer, (D) subject to the terms of the Merger Agreement, a waiver or amendment of the Minimum Condition, (E) any addition to the conditions to the Offer or imposition of any other conditions to the Offer, (F) the extension of the

45

expiration date of the Offer, except as required or allowed by the Merger Agreement, (G) other amendment, modification, or addition of a supplemental condition to the Offer or any term of the Offer in a manner adverse to the holders of the shares of Cardiogenesis common stock, or, or (vii) the date on which a third party acquires more than 50% of Cardiogenesis' outstanding voting securities on a fully diluted basis.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following is a summary of the material United States federal income tax consequences of the Offer and the Merger to shareholders of Cardiogenesis whose shares are tendered and accepted for payment pursuant to the Offer or whose shares are converted into the right to receive cash in the Merger. This discussion is for general information only and does not purport to consider all aspects of United States federal income taxation that might be relevant to shareholders of Cardiogenesis. The discussion is based on current provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), existing, proposed and temporary regulations thereunder and administrative and judicial interpretations thereof, all of which are subject to change, possibly with a retroactive effect. The discussion applies only to shareholders of Cardiogenesis in whose hands shares are capital assets within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code. No ruling has been or will be sought from the IRS, and no opinion of counsel has been or will be rendered as to the tax consequences of the Offer and the Merger. This discussion does not apply to shares received pursuant to the exercise of employee stock options or otherwise as compensation, or to certain types of shareholders (including, without limitation, insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations, financial institutions, regulated investment companies, partnerships, S-corporations, and other pass-through entities and broker-dealers) which may be subject to special rules under the Code. This discussion does not discuss the United States federal income tax consequences to any shareholder of Cardiogenesis who, for United States federal income tax purposes, is a nonresident alien individual, a foreign corporation, a foreign partnership or a foreign estate or trust, or a U.S. holder having a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, nor does it consider the effect of any federal estate or gift tax laws or foreign, state or local tax laws. This discussion also does not address tax considerations that may be relevant to shareholders of Cardiogenesis in light of their particular circumstances, such as holding shares as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion, or constructive sale transaction, an integrated investment or other risk-reduction transaction or shareholders of Cardiogenesis that are subject to the alternative minimum tax. This discussion does not address the United States federal income tax consequences to a shareholder who receives merger consideration as the result of the vesting and/or the deemed exercise of stock options or warrants or as the result of the vesting of restricted stock. If a partnership holds the shares, the tax treatment of a partner generally will depend on the status of the partner and on

the activities of the partnership. Partners of partnerships holding shares should consult their tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of the Offer and the Merger.

Because individual circumstances may differ, each shareholder should consult its, his or her own tax advisor to determine the applicability of the rules discussed below and the particular tax effects of the Offer and the Merger on a beneficial holder of shares, including the application and effect of the alternative minimum tax and any state, local and foreign tax laws and of changes in such laws.

The exchange of shares for cash pursuant to the Offer or the Merger will be a taxable transaction for United States federal income tax purposes. In general, a shareholder who sells shares pursuant to the Offer or receives cash in exchange for shares pursuant to the Merger will recognize gain or loss for United States federal income tax purposes in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the amount of cash received for the shares and the shareholder's adjusted tax basis in the shares sold pursuant to the Offer or exchanged for cash pursuant to the Merger. Gain or loss will be determined separately for each block of shares (that is, shares acquired at the same price per share in a single transaction) tendered pursuant to the Offer or exchanged for cash pursuant to the Merger. Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the shareholder's holding period for such shares is more than one year at the time of consummation of the Offer or the Merger, as the case may be. Long-term capital gains recognized by a non-corporate shareholder upon a disposition of a share generally will be eligible for reduced United States federal income tax rates. In the case of a share that has been held for one year or less, such capital gains generally will be subject to tax at ordinary income tax rates as if shares subject to the dissenters' rights were sold for the cash received by the dissenting shareholders. Certain limitations apply to the use of a shareholder's capital losses but generally short- or long-term capital gains may be offset by capital losses.

In general, Cardiogenesis shareholders who exercise statutory dissenters' rights in connection with the Merger will also recognize gain or loss. Any holder considering exercising statutory dissenters' rights should consult his, her or its own tax advisor.

A shareholder whose shares are purchased in the Offer or exchanged for cash pursuant to the Merger is subject to information reporting and may be subject to backup withholding unless certain information is provided to the depositary or an exemption applies.

46

ANNEX A

INFORMATION CONCERNING CRYOLIFE, INC., CL FALCON, INC. AND DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF CRYOLIFE, INC. AND CL FALCON, INC.

The following sets forth the name, age and present principal occupation or employment, and material occupations, positions, offices or employment for the past five years, of each director and executive officer of CryoLife, Inc. ("CryoLife") and CL Falcon, Inc. ("Merger Sub"). The business address and telephone number of each director or executive officer is: CryoLife, Inc., 1655 Roberts Boulevard, NW, Kennesaw, Georgia 30144, (770) 419-3355, which address and telephone number is CryoLife's business address and telephone number.

During the last five years, neither CryoLife nor Merger Sub, nor, to the best knowledge of CryoLife or Merger Sub, any of the persons listed below:

- has been convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors); or
- was a party to any judicial or administrative proceeding (except for matters that were dismissed without sanction or settlement) that resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining the person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or a finding of any violation of such laws.

All of the persons listed below are citizens of the United States.

CRYOLIFE DIRECTORS

Steven G. Anderson, a founder of CryoLife, has served as CryoLife's President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board since its inception. Mr. Anderson has more than 25 years of experience in tissue preservation and more than 40 years of experience in the medical device industry. Prior to founding CryoLife, Mr. Anderson was Senior Executive Vice President and Vice President, Marketing, from 1976 until 1983, of Intermedics, Inc. (now Boston Scientific Corporation), a manufacturer and distributor of pacemakers and other medical devices. Mr. Anderson is a graduate of the University of Minnesota.

Thomas F. Ackerman has served as a Director of CryoLife since December 2003. Mr. Ackerman is Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Charles River Laboratories International, Inc. (NYSE: CRL), a position he has held since 2005. Charles River Laboratories is a leading global provider of solutions that accelerate the drug discovery and development process, including research models and associated services, and outsourced preclinical services. From 1999 to 2005 he served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and from 1996 to 1999 he served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Charles River Laboratories, where he has been employed since 1988. Mr. Ackerman is a Director of the University of Massachusetts Amherst Foundation. Mr. Ackerman received a B.S. in Accounting from the University of Massachusetts and became a certified public accountant in 1979 (his license is currently inactive).

James S. Benson has served as a Director of CryoLife since December 2005. Mr. Benson retired from the Advanced Medical Device Association ("AdvaMed", formerly known as The Health Industry Manufacturers Association, "HIMA") in July 2002 as Executive Vice President for Technical and Regulatory Affairs. He was employed by AdvaMed from January 1993 through June 2002. Prior to that, he was employed by the Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") for 20 years, where he held a number of senior positions. He retired from the FDA as Director of the Center for

Center Director, he served as Deputy Commissioner from July 1988 through July 1991. During that period, he served as Acting Commissioner for one year, from December 1989 through November 1990. Prior to his position as Deputy Commissioner, he served as Deputy Director of the Center for Devices and Radiological Health from 1978 to 1982. Mr. Benson currently serves on the Board of Directors for two other companies: CytoMedix, Inc., a publicly traded company (OTCBB: CYME), where he is the Presiding Director, and Medical Device Consultants, Inc., a private company. In 2003 Mr. Benson was engaged by the law firm representing a Special Litigation Committee of the Board of Directors of the company to serve as an expert witness in connection with the Special Litigation Committee's independent investigation into allegations made by the plaintiffs in the shareholder derivative lawsuit filed against the company's Directors, which was settled in 2005. Mr. Benson also was engaged to serve as an expert witness by a different law firm representing the company in the securities class action shareholder lawsuit filed against the company, which was also settled in 2005. Mr. Benson received a B.S. in Civil Engineering from the University of Maryland in 1962 and an M.S. in Nuclear Engineering from the Georgia Institute of Technology in 1969.

Daniel J. Bevevino has served as a Director of CryoLife since December 2003. From 1996 until March of 2008, Mr. Bevevino served as the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Respironics, Inc. (Nasdaq: RESP), a company that develops, manufactures and markets medical devices used primarily for the treatment of patients suffering from sleep and respiratory disorders, where he was employed since 1988. In March 2008, Respironics was acquired by Royal Philips Electronics (NYSE: PHG), whose businesses include a variety of medical solutions including medical diagnostic imaging and patient monitoring systems, as well as businesses focused on energy efficient lighting and consumer products. From March 2008 to December 31, 2009, Mr. Bevevino was employed by Philips as the Head of Post-Merger Integration – Respironics, as well as in various operating capacities, to help facilitate the integration of the combined companies. He is currently an independent consultant providing interim chief financial officer services in the life sciences industry. He began his career as a certified public accountant with Ernst & Young (his license is currently inactive). Mr. Bevevino received a B.S. in Business Administration from Duquesne University and an M.B.A. from the University of Notre Dame.

Ronald C. Elkins, M.D. has served as a Director of CryoLife since January 1994. Dr. Elkins is Professor Emeritus, Section of Thoracic and Cardiovascular Surgery, University of Oklahoma Health Sciences Center. Dr. Elkins has been a physician at the Health Science Center since 1971, and was Chief, Section of Thoracic and Cardiovascular Surgery, from 1975 to 2002. Dr. Elkins is a graduate of the University of Oklahoma and Johns Hopkins Medical School.

Ronald D. McCall, Esq. has served as a Director of CryoLife since January 1984 and served as its Secretary and Treasurer from 1984 to 2002; however, Mr. McCall has never been an employee of the company and did not receive any compensation for his service as Secretary and Treasurer of the company other than the company's standard compensation provided to Directors. From 1985 to the present, Mr. McCall has been the owner of the law firm of Ronald D. McCall, P.A., based in Tampa, Florida. Mr. McCall was admitted to the practice of law in Florida in 1961. Mr. McCall received a B.A. and a J.D. from the University of Florida.

Harvey Morgan has served as a Director of CryoLife since May 2008. Mr. Morgan has more than 40 years of investment banking experience, with significant expertise in strategic advisory services, mergers and acquisitions, private placements, and underwritings. He has been a Managing Director of the investment banking firm Bentley Associates, L.P. since 2004, and from 2001 to 2004, he was a Principal of Shattuck Hammond Partners, an independent investment banking and financial advisory firm. Mr. Morgan also serves on the Boards of Family Dollar Stores, Inc. (NYSE: FDO) and Cybex International, Inc. (Nasdaq: CYBI). Mr. Morgan received his undergraduate degree from The University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and an M.B.A. from The Harvard Business School.

CRYOLIFE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Steven G. Anderson, a founder of CryoLife, has served as CryoLife's President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the Board of Directors since its inception. Mr. Anderson has more than 40 years of experience in the implantable medical device industry. Prior to founding CryoLife, Mr. Anderson was Senior Executive Vice President and Vice President, Marketing, from 1976 until 1983 of Intermedics, Inc. (now Boston Scientific Corp.), a

manufacturer and distributor of pacemakers and other medical devices. Mr. Anderson is a graduate of the University of Minnesota.

Jeffrey W. Burris was appointed to the position of Vice President and General Counsel in February 2010. Mr. Burris has been with CryoLife since February 2008, serving as General Counsel from February of 2008 until February 2010. From 2003 to 2008, Mr. Burris served as Senior Legal Counsel and Legal Counsel for Waste Management, where he was the responsible attorney for acquisitions and divestitures for Waste Management's Southern Group. From 1997 to 2003, Mr. Burris was an associate with the law firm Arnall Golden Gregory, LLP, focusing on biotechnology and mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Burris received his B.A. from the University of Tennessee and his J.D. from the University of Chicago Law School.

Scott B. Capps was appointed to the position of Vice President of Clinical Research in November 2007. Prior to this position, Mr. Capps served as Vice President, General Manager of CryoLife Europa, Ltd. in the United Kingdom from February 2005 to November 2007 and Director, European Clinical Affairs from April 2003 to January 2005. Mr. Capps joined CryoLife in 1995 as Project Engineer for the allograft heart valve program, and was promoted to Director, Clinical Research in 1999. Mr. Capps is responsible for overseeing and implementing clinical trials to achieve FDA and International approval of CryoLife's medical products in cardiac, vascular, and orthopaedic clinical areas. Before joining CryoLife, Mr. Capps was a

Research Assistant in the Department of Bioengineering at Clemson University working to develop a computerized database and radiographic image analysis system for total knee replacement. Mr. Capps received his Bachelor of Industrial Engineering from the Georgia Institute of Technology and his M.S. in Bioengineering from Clemson University.

David M. Fronk was appointed to the position of Vice President of Regulatory Affairs and Quality Assurance in April 2005 and has been with CryoLife since 1992, serving as Vice President of Clinical Research from December 1998 to April 2005 and Director of Clinical Research from December 1997 until December 1998. Mr. Fronk is responsible for developing and implementing improved safety processes and procedures for new and existing medical products. Prior to joining CryoLife, Mr. Fronk held engineering positions with Zimmer Inc. from 1986 until 1988 and Baxter Healthcare Corporation from 1988 until 1991. Mr. Fronk served as a market manager with Baxter Healthcare Corporation from 1991 until 1992. Mr. Fronk received his B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the Ohio State University in 1985 and his M.S. in Biomedical Engineering from the Ohio State University in 1986.

Albert E. Heacox, Ph.D., was appointed to the position of Senior Vice President of Research and Development in December 2004. Dr. Heacox has been with CryoLife since June 1985 and served as Vice President of Laboratory Operations from June 1989 to December 2004. Dr. Heacox was promoted to Senior Vice President in December of 2000. Dr. Heacox has been responsible for developing protocols and procedures for cardiac, vascular, and connective tissues, implementing upgrades in procedures in conjunction with CryoLife's quality assurance programs, and overseeing all processing and production activities of CryoLife's laboratories. Dr. Heacox is now responsible for the continued development of CryoLife's current products as well as the evaluation of new technologies. Prior to joining CryoLife, Dr. Heacox worked as a researcher with the U.S. Department of Agriculture and North Dakota State University, developing methods for the preservation of cells and animal germ plasma storage. Dr. Heacox received his B.A. and M.S. in Biology from Adelphi University, received his Ph.D. in Zoology from Washington State University, and completed his post-doctorate training in cell biology at the University of Cologne, West Germany.

D. Ashley Lee, CPA, has served as Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer since November 2004. Mr. Lee has been with CryoLife since December 1994 serving as Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer from December 2002 to November 2004; as Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer from April 2000 to December 2002; and as Controller of CryoLife from December 1994 until April 2000. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Lee served as the Assistant Director of Finance for Compass Retail Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Equitable Real Estate. From 1987 to 1993, Mr. Lee was employed as a certified public accountant with Ernst & Young, LLP. Mr. Lee received his B.S. in Accounting from the University of Mississippi.

Gerald B. Seery has served as Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing since October 2005. Mr. Seery has been with CryoLife since July 1993 serving as Vice President of International Operations from July 2005 to October 2005, President of CryoLife Europa from April 2002 to July 2005, President of AuraZyme from March 2001 to April 2002, and Vice President of Marketing from August 1995 to March 2001. Mr. Seery is responsible for developing and implementing CryoLife's sales and marketing plans and supervising all tissue procurement

activities. Prior to joining CryoLife, Mr. Seery held senior marketing management positions with Meadox Medicals from 1982 until 1985, Electro Catheter Corporation from 1985 until 1989 and Daig Corporation from 1992 until 1993, accumulating fifteen years of specialized marketing experience in cardiac medical devices. Mr. Seery received his B.A. in International Economics at The Catholic University of America in Washington, D.C. in 1978 and completed his M.B.A. at Columbia University in New York in 1980

MERGER SUB DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Steven G. Anderson, is the sole director, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Merger Sub. Mr. Anderson, a founder of CryoLife, has served as CryoLife's President, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the Board of Directors since its inception. Mr. Anderson has more than 40 years of experience in the implantable medical device industry. Prior to founding CryoLife, Mr. Anderson was Senior Executive Vice President and Vice President, Marketing, from 1976 until 1983 of Intermedics, Inc. (now Boston Scientific Corp.), a manufacturer and distributor of pacemakers and other medical devices. Mr. Anderson is a graduate of the University of Minnesota.

D. Ashley Lee, CPA, is the Vice President, Finance and Treasurer of Merger Sub. Mr. Lee has served as CryoLife, Inc.'s Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, and Chief Financial Officer since November 2004. Mr. Lee has been with CryoLife since December 1994 serving as Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer from December 2002 to November 2004; as Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer from April 2000 to December 2002; and as Controller of CryoLife from December 1994 until April 2000. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Lee served as the Assistant Director of Finance for Compass Retail Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Equitable Real Estate. From 1987 to 1993, Mr. Lee was employed as a certified public accountant with Ernst & Young, LLP. Mr. Lee received his B.S. in Accounting from the University of Mississippi.

This notice is being furnished to holders of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Cardiogenesis pursuant to Section 1110 of the CGCL. Terms that are not defined herein have the meanings set forth in the offer to purchase to which this Notice is attached as Annex B.

- 1. If all of the conditions to the Offer are satisfied and the minimum condition is not reduced as of the Expiration Date, in each case as described in the offer to purchase to which this Notice of Short-Form Merger is attached, and the Offer is consummated, Merger Sub will be the owner of at least 90% of the outstanding shares of each class of Cardiogenesis capital stock. Under such circumstances, Merger Sub anticipates that it will effect a short-form merger of Merger Sub with and into Cardiogenesis pursuant to Section 1110 of the CGCL (the "Short-Form Merger") as soon as practicable following consummation of the Offer. Under such circumstances, the Short-Form Merger will become effective on or after May 2, 2011.
- 2. The following resolution was adopted by the Boards of Directors of Merger Sub and Cardiogenesis and by the sole shareholder of all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Merger Sub on April 5, 2011:

RESOLVED FURTHER, that, pursuant to Section 1110 of the California General Corporation Law, the Board hereby adopts and approves (i) the Merger, (ii) the assumption of all liabilities of Cardiogenesis by Merger Sub as a result of the Merger, (iii) the consideration to be received by the holders of Cardiogenesis Common Stock for each share of Cardiogenesis Common Stock (other than shares owned by CryoLife or any direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife or Cardiogenesis or held by shareholders who properly demand and perfect dissenters' rights under California law) in the amount of \$0.4570 per share, net to the holder thereof in cash, and (iv) the conversion, at the Effective Time, of each share of common stock of Merger Sub into one share of Cardiogenesis Common Stock.

3. A copy of Sections 1300 through 1304 of the CGCL is set forth below.

§ 1300. Reorganization or short-form merger; dissenting shares; corporate purchase at fair market value; definitions

- (a) If the approval of the outstanding shares (Section 152) of a corporation is required for a reorganization under subdivisions (a) and (b) or subdivision (e) or (f) of Section 1201, each shareholder of the corporation entitled to vote on the transaction and each shareholder of a subsidiary corporation in a short-form merger may, by complying with this chapter, require the corporation in which the shareholder holds shares to purchase for cash at their fair market value the shares owned by the shareholder which are dissenting shares as defined in subdivision (b). The fair market value shall be determined as of the day before the first announcement of the terms of the proposed reorganization or short-form merger, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in consequence of the proposed action, but adjusted for any stock split, reverse stock split, or share dividend which becomes effective thereafter.
 - (b) As used in this chapter, "dissenting shares" means shares which come within all of the following descriptions:
- (1) Which were not immediately prior to the reorganization or short-form merger listed on any national securities exchange certified by the Commissioner of Corporations under subdivision (o) of Section 25100, and the notice of meeting of shareholders to act upon the reorganization summarizes this section and Sections 1301, 1302, 1303 and 1304; provided, however, that this provision does not apply to any shares with respect to which there exists any restriction on transfer imposed by the corporation or by any law or regulation; and provided, further, that this provision does not apply to any class of shares if demands for payment are filed with respect to 5 percent or more of the outstanding shares of that class.
- (2) Which were outstanding on the date for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote on the reorganization and (A) were not voted in favor of the reorganization or, (B) if described in paragraph (1) (without regard to the provisos in that paragraph), were voted against the reorganization, or were held of record on the effective date of a short-form merger; provided, however, that subparagraph (A) rather than subparagraph (B) of this paragraph applies in any case where the approval required by Section 1201 is sought by written consent rather than at a meeting.
 - (3) Which the dissenting shareholder has demanded that the corporation purchase at their fair market value, in accordance with Section 1301.
 - (4) Which the dissenting shareholder has submitted for endorsement, in accordance with Section 1302.
 - (c) As used in this chapter, "dissenting shareholder" means the recordholder of dissenting shares and includes a transferee of record.

§1301. Notice to holders of dissenting shares in reorganizations; demand for purchase; time; contents

- (a) If, in the case of a reorganization, any shareholders of a corporation have a right under Section 1300, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, to require the corporation to purchase their shares for cash, that corporation shall mail to each such shareholder a notice of the approval of the reorganization by its outstanding shares (Section 152) within 10 days after the date of that approval, accompanied by a copy of Sections 1300, 1302, 1303, and 1304 and this section, a statement of the price determined by the corporation to represent the fair market value of the dissenting shares, and a brief description of the procedure to be followed if the shareholder desires to exercise the shareholder's right under those sections. The statement of price constitutes an offer by the corporation to purchase at the price stated any dissenting shares as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 1300, unless they lose their status as dissenting shares under Section 1309.
- (b) Any shareholder who has a right to require the corporation to purchase the shareholder's shares for cash under Section 1300, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, and who desires the corporation to purchase shares shall make written demand upon the corporation for the purchase of those shares and payment to the shareholder in cash of their fair market value. The demand is not effective for any purpose unless it is received by the corporation or any transfer agent thereof (1) in the case of shares described subdivision (b) of Section 1300 (without regard to the provisos in that paragraph), not later than the date of the shareholders' meeting to vote upon the reorganization, or (2) in any other case within 30 days after the date on which the notice of the approval by the outstanding shares pursuant to subdivision (a) or the notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder.
- (c) The demand shall state the number and class of the shares held of record by the shareholder which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase and shall contain a statement of what that shareholder claims to be the fair market value of those shares as of the day before the announcement of the proposed reorganization or short-form merger. The statement of fair market value constitutes an offer by the shareholder to sell the shares at that price.

Within 30 days after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares or the notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder, the shareholder shall submit to the corporation at its principal office or at the office of any transfer agent thereof, (a) if the shares are certificated securities, the shareholder's certificates representing any shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase, to be stamped or endorsed with a statement that the shares are dissenting shares or to be exchanged for certificates of appropriate denomination so stamped or endorsed or (b) if the shares are uncertificated securities, written notice of the number of shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase. Upon subsequent transfers of the dissenting shares on the books of the corporation, the new certificates, initial transaction statement, and other written statements issued therefor shall bear a like statement, together with the name of the original dissenting holder of the shares.

§1303. Payment of agreed price with interest; agreement fixing fair market value; filing; time of payment

(a) If the corporation and the shareholder agree that the shares are dissenting shares and agree upon the price of the shares, the dissenting shareholder is entitled to the agreed price with interest thereon at the legal rate on judgments from the date of the agreement. Any agreements fixing the fair market value of any dissenting shares as between the corporation and the holders thereof shall be filed with the secretary of the corporation. (b) Subject to the provisions of Section 1306, payment of the fair market value of dissenting shares shall be made within 30 days after the amount thereof has been agreed or within 30 days after any statutory or contractual conditions to the

reorganization are satisfied, whichever is later, and in the case of certificated securities, subject to surrender of the certificates therefor, unless provided otherwise by agreement.

§1304. Action to determine whether shares are dissenting shares or fair market value; limitation; joinder; consolidation; determination of issues; appointment of appraisers

- (a) If the corporation denies that the shares are dissenting shares, or the corporation and the shareholder fail to agree upon the fair market value of the shares, then the shareholder demanding purchase of such shares as dissenting shares or any interested corporation, within six months after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares (Section 152) or notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder, but not thereafter, may file a complaint in the superior court of the proper county praying the court to determine whether the shares are dissenting shares or the fair market value of the dissenting shares or both or may intervene in any action pending on such a complaint.
- (b) Two or more dissenting shareholders may join as plaintiffs or be joined as defendants in any such action and two or more such actions may be consolidated.
- (c) On the trial of the action, the court shall determine the issues. If the status of the shares as dissenting shares is in issue, the court shall first determine that issue. If the fair market value of the dissenting shares is in issue, the court shall determine, or shall appoint one or more impartial appraisers to determine, the fair market value of the shares.
 - 4. The price determined by Cardiogenesis to represent the fair market value of the dissenting shares is \$__ per share.
- 5. A brief description of the procedures to be followed if a shareholder desires to exercise his or her rights under Sections 1300 through 1304 of the CGCL is set forth below:
 - 1. Any shareholder who has a right to require Cardiogenesis to purchase the shareholder's shares for cash under Section 1300 of the CGCL, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, and who desires Cardiogenesis to purchase such shares must make a written demand upon Cardiogenesis for the purchase of such shares and payment to the shareholder in cash of their fair market value.
 - 2. Such demand should be sent to the Secretary of Cardiogenesis at 11 Musick, Irvine, California 92618.
 - 3. The demand is not effective for any purpose unless it is received by the Secretary of Cardiogenesis or any transfer agent thereof within 30 days after the date this notice was mailed to shareholders.
 - 4. The demand must state the number and class of the shares held of record by the shareholder which the shareholder demands that Cardiogenesis purchase and must contain a statement of what such shareholder claims to be the fair market value of those shares as of March 28, 2011, which is the day before the announcement of the terms of the Merger. The statement of fair market value constitutes an offer by the shareholder to sell the shares at such price.
 - 5. Within 30 days after the date this notice was mailed to shareholders, shareholders who desire to exercise appraisal rights must also submit to the Secretary of Cardiogenesis at the address above or to the office of any transfer agent of Cardiogenesis, the certificates representing any shares which the shareholder demands that Cardiogenesis purchase. Such certificates will be stamped or endorsed with a statement that the shares are dissenting shares or be exchanged for certificates of appropriate denomination so stamped or endorsed. If such shares are uncertificated, such shareholder must instead provide to Cardiogenesis or any transfer agent thereof written notice of the number of shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase.
 - 6. If Cardiogenesis and the shareholder agree that the surrendered shares are dissenting shares and agree upon the price of the shares, the dissenting shareholder will be entitled to the agreed price together with interest thereon at the legal rate on judgments from the date of the agreement. Cardiogenesis will pay the fair value of the dissenting shares within 30 days after such agreement or within 30 days after any statutory or contractual conditions to the Merger are satisfied, whichever is later. Cardiogenesis' duty to pay is subject to

7. If Cardiogenesis denies that the shares are dissenting shares, or if a dissenting shareholder and Cardiogenesis fail to agree on the fair market value of the shares, then such shareholder demanding purchase of such shares as dissenting shares or Cardiogenesis, within six months after the date this notice was mailed to shareholders, may file a complaint in the superior court for the proper county requesting the court to determine whether the shares are dissenting shares or the fair market value of the dissenting shares, as applicable, or may intervene in any action pending on such a complaint. Shareholders who fail to file or intervene in such an action within the specified six-month period will lose their appraisal rights.

ANNEX C

CALIFORNIA GENERAL CORPORATION LAW CHAPTER 13 DISSENTER'S RIGHTS (SECTIONS 1300-1313)

§ 1300. Reorganization or short-form merger; dissenting shares; corporate purchase at fair market value; definitions

- (a) If the approval of the outstanding shares (Section 152) of a corporation is required for a reorganization under subdivisions (a) and (b) or subdivision (e) or (f) of Section 1201, each shareholder of the corporation entitled to vote on the transaction and each shareholder of a subsidiary corporation in a short-form merger may, by complying with this chapter, require the corporation in which the shareholder holds shares to purchase for cash at their fair market value the shares owned by the shareholder which are dissenting shares as defined in subdivision (b). The fair market value shall be determined as of the day before the first announcement of the terms of the proposed reorganization or short-form merger, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in consequence of the proposed action, but adjusted for any stock split, reverse stock split, or share dividend which becomes effective thereafter.
 - (b) As used in this chapter, "dissenting shares" means shares which come within all of the following descriptions:
- (1) Which were not immediately prior to the reorganization or short-form merger listed on any national securities exchange certified by the Commissioner of Corporations under subdivision (o) of Section 25100, and the notice of meeting of shareholders to act upon the reorganization summarizes this section and Sections 1301, 1302, 1303 and 1304; provided, however, that this provision does not apply to any shares with respect to which there exists any restriction on transfer imposed by the corporation or by any law or regulation; and provided, further, that this provision does not apply to any class of shares if demands for payment are filed with respect to 5 percent or more of the outstanding shares of that class.
- (2) Which were outstanding on the date for the determination of shareholders entitled to vote on the reorganization and (A) were not voted in favor of the reorganization or, (B) if described in paragraph (1) (without regard to the provisos in that paragraph), were voted against the reorganization, or were held of record on the effective date of a short-form merger; provided, however, that subparagraph (A) rather than subparagraph (B) of this paragraph applies in any case where the approval required by Section 1201 is sought by written consent rather than at a meeting.
 - (3) Which the dissenting shareholder has demanded that the corporation purchase at their fair market value, in accordance with Section 1301.
 - (4) Which the dissenting shareholder has submitted for endorsement, in accordance with Section 1302.
 - (c) As used in this chapter, "dissenting shareholder" means the recordholder of dissenting shares and includes a transferee of record.

§1301. Notice to holders of dissenting shares in reorganizations; demand for purchase; time; contents

(a) If, in the case of a reorganization, any shareholders of a corporation have a right under Section 1300, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, to require the corporation to purchase their shares for cash, that corporation shall mail to each such shareholder a notice of the approval of the reorganization by its outstanding shares (Section 152) within 10 days after the date of that approval, accompanied by a copy of Sections 1300, 1302, 1303, and 1304 and this section, a statement of the price determined by the corporation to represent the fair market value of the dissenting shares, and a brief description of the procedure to be followed if the shareholder desires to exercise the shareholder's right under those sections. The statement of price constitutes an offer by the corporation to purchase at the price stated any dissenting shares as defined in subdivision (b) of Section 1300, unless they lose their status as dissenting shares under Section 1309.

- (b) Any shareholder who has a right to require the corporation to purchase the shareholder's shares for cash under Section 1300, subject to compliance with paragraphs (3) and (4) of subdivision (b) thereof, and who desires the corporation to purchase shares shall make written demand upon the corporation for the purchase of those shares and payment to the shareholder in cash of their fair market value. The demand is not effective for any purpose unless it is received by the corporation or any transfer agent thereof (1) in the case of shares described subdivision (b) of Section 1300 (without regard to the provisos in that paragraph), not later than the date of the shareholders' meeting to vote upon the reorganization, or (2) in any other case within 30 days after the date on which the notice of the approval by the outstanding shares pursuant to subdivision (a) or the notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder.
- (c) The demand shall state the number and class of the shares held of record by the shareholder which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase and shall contain a statement of what that shareholder claims to be the fair market value of those shares as of the day before the announcement of the proposed reorganization or short-form merger. The statement of fair market value constitutes an offer by the shareholder to sell the shares at that price.

$\S 1302.$ Submission of share certificates for endorsement; uncertificated securities

Within 30 days after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares or the notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was

mailed to the shareholder, the shareholder shall submit to the corporation at its principal office or at the office of any transfer agent thereof, (a) if the shares are certificated securities, the shareholder's certificates representing any shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase, to be stamped or endorsed with a statement that the shares are dissenting shares or to be exchanged for certificates of appropriate denomination so stamped or endorsed or (b) if the shares are uncertificated securities, written notice of the number of shares which the shareholder demands that the corporation purchase. Upon subsequent transfers of the dissenting shares on the books of the corporation, the new certificates, initial transaction statement, and other written statements issued therefor shall bear a like statement, together with the name of the original dissenting holder of the shares.

§1303. Payment of agreed price with interest; agreement fixing fair market value; filing; time of payment

(a) If the corporation and the shareholder agree that the shares are dissenting shares and agree upon the price of the shares, the dissenting shareholder is entitled to the agreed price with interest thereon at the legal rate on judgments from the date of the agreement. Any agreements fixing the fair market value of any dissenting shares as between the corporation and the holders thereof shall be filed with the secretary of the corporation. (b) Subject to the provisions of Section 1306, payment of the fair market value of dissenting shares shall be made within 30 days after the amount thereof has been agreed or within 30 days after any statutory or contractual conditions to the reorganization are satisfied, whichever is later, and in the case of certificated securities, subject to surrender of the certificates therefor, unless provided otherwise by agreement.

§1304. Action to determine whether shares are dissenting shares or fair market value; limitation; joinder; consolidation; determination of issues; appointment of appraisers

- (a) If the corporation denies that the shares are dissenting shares, or the corporation and the shareholder fail to agree upon the fair market value of the shares, then the shareholder demanding purchase of such shares as dissenting shares or any interested corporation, within six months after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares (Section 152) or notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder, but not thereafter, may file a complaint in the superior court of the proper county praying the court to determine whether the shares are dissenting shares or the fair market value of the dissenting shares or both or may intervene in any action pending on such a complaint.
- (b) Two or more dissenting shareholders may join as plaintiffs or be joined as defendants in any such action and two or more such actions may be consolidated.
- (c) On the trial of the action, the court shall determine the issues. If the status of the shares as dissenting shares is in issue, the court shall first determine that issue. If the fair market value of the dissenting shares is in issue, the court shall determine, or shall appoint one or more impartial appraisers to determine, the fair market value of the shares.

§1305. Report of appraisers; confirmation; determination by court; judgment; payment; appeal; costs

- (a) If the court appoints an appraiser or appraisers, they shall proceed forthwith to determine the fair market value per share. Within the time fixed by the court, the appraisers, or a majority of them, shall make and file a report in the office of the clerk of the court. Thereupon, on the motion of any party, the report shall be submitted to the court and considered on such evidence as the court considers relevant. If the court finds the report reasonable, the court may confirm it
- (b) If a majority of the appraisers appointed fail to make and file a report within 10 days from the date of their appointment or within such further time as may be allowed by the court or the report is not confirmed by the court, the court shall determine the fair market value of the dissenting shares.
- (c) Subject to the provisions of Section 1306, judgment shall be rendered against the corporation for payment of an amount equal to the fair market value of each dissenting share multiplied by the number of dissenting shares which any dissenting shareholder who is a party, or who has intervened, is entitled to require the corporation to purchase, with interest thereon at the legal rate from the date on which judgment was entered.
- (d) Any such judgment shall be payable forthwith with respect to uncertificated securities and, with respect to certificated securities, only upon the endorsement and delivery to the corporation of the certificates for the shares described in the judgment. Any party may appeal from the judgment.
- (e) The costs of the action, including reasonable compensation to the appraisers to be fixed by the court, shall be assessed or apportioned as the court considers equitable, but, if the appraisal exceeds the price offered by the corporation, the corporation shall pay the costs (including in the discretion of the court attorneys' fees, fees of expert witnesses and interest at the legal rate on judgments from the date of compliance with Sections 1300, 1301 and 1302 if the value awarded by the court for the shares is more than 125 percent of the price offered by the corporation under subdivision (a) of Section 1301).

§1306. Prevention of immediate payment; status as creditors; interest

To the extent that the provisions of Chapter 5 prevent the payment to any holders of dissenting shares of their fair market value, they shall become creditors of the corporation for the amount thereof together with interest at the legal rate on judgments until the date of payment, but subordinate to all other creditors in any liquidation proceeding, such debt to be payable when permissible under the provisions of Chapter 5.

§1307. Dividends Paid as Credit Against Payment

Cash dividends declared and paid by the corporation upon the dissenting shares after the date of approval of the reorganization by the outstanding shares (Section 152) and prior to payment for the shares by the corporation shall be credited against the total amount to be paid by the corporation therefor.

§1308. Rights of dissenting shareholders pending valuation; withdrawal of demand for payment

Except as expressly limited in this chapter, holders of dissenting shares continue to have all the rights and privileges incident to their shares, until the fair market value of their shares is agreed upon or determined. A dissenting shareholder may not withdraw a demand for payment unless the corporation consents thereto.

§1309. Termination of dissenting share and shareholder status

Dissenting shares lose their status as dissenting shares and the holders thereof cease to be dissenting shareholders and cease to be entitled to require the corporation to purchase their shares upon the happening of any of the following:

- (a) The corporation abandons the reorganization. Upon abandonment of the reorganization, the corporation shall pay on demand to any dissenting shareholder who has initiated proceedings in good faith under this chapter all necessary expenses incurred in such proceedings and reasonable attorneys' fees
- (b) The shares are transferred prior to their submission for endorsement in accordance with Section 1302 or are surrendered for conversion into shares of another class in accordance with the articles.
- (c) The dissenting shareholder and the corporation do not agree upon the status of the shares as dissenting shares or upon the purchase price of the shares, and neither files a complaint or intervenes in a pending action as provided in Section 1304, within six months after the date on which notice of the approval by the outstanding shares or notice pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 1110 was mailed to the shareholder.
 - (d) The dissenting shareholder, with the consent of the corporation, withdraws the shareholder's demand for purchase of the dissenting shares.

§1310. Suspension of right to compensation or valuation proceedings; litigation of shareholders' approval

If litigation is instituted to test the sufficiency or regularity of the votes of the shareholders in authorizing a reorganization, any proceedings under Sections 1304 and 1305 shall be suspended until final determination of such litigation.

§1311. Exempt shares

This chapter, except Section 1312, does not apply to classes of shares whose terms and provisions specifically set forth the amount to be paid in respect to such shares in the event of a reorganization or merger.

§1312. Right of dissenting shareholder to attack, set aside or rescind merger or reorganization; restraining order or injunction; conditions

- (a) No shareholder of a corporation who has a right under this chapter to demand payment of cash for the shares held by the shareholder shall have any right at law or in equity to attack the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger, or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded, except in an action to test whether the number of shares required to authorize or approve the reorganization have been legally voted in favor thereof; but any holder of shares of a class whose terms and provisions specifically set forth the amount to be paid in respect to them in the event of a reorganization or short-form merger is entitled to payment in accordance with those terms and provisions or, if the principal terms of the reorganization are approved pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 1202, is entitled to payment in accordance with the terms and provisions of the approved reorganization.
- (b) If one of the parties to a reorganization or short-form merger is directly or indirectly controlled by, or under common control with, another party to the reorganization or short-form merger, subdivision (a) shall not apply to any shareholder of such party who has not demanded payment of cash for such shareholder's shares pursuant to this chapter; but if the shareholder institutes any action to attack the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded, the shareholder shall not thereafter have any right to demand payment of cash for the shareholder's shares pursuant to this chapter. The court in any action attacking the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded shall not restrain or enjoin the consummation of the transaction except upon 10 days' prior notice to the corporation and upon a determination by the court that clearly no other remedy will adequately protect the complaining shareholder or the class of shareholders of which such shareholder is a member.
- (c) If one of the parties to a reorganization or short-form merger is directly or indirectly controlled by, or under common control with, another party to the reorganization or short-form merger, in any action to attack the validity of the reorganization or short-form merger or to have the reorganization or short-form merger set aside or rescinded, (1) a party to a reorganization or short-form merger which controls another party to the reorganization or short-form merger shall have the burden of proving that the transaction is just and reasonable as to the shareholders of the controlled party, and (2) a person who controls two or more parties to a reorganization shall have the burden of proving that the transaction is just and reasonable as to the shareholders of any party so controlled.

§1313. Conversions deemed to constitute a reorganization; application of chapter

A conversion pursuant to Chapter 11.5 (commencing with Section 1150) shall be deemed to constitute a reorganization for purposes of applying the provisions of this chapter, in accordance with and to the extent provided in Section 1159.

Manually signed facsimiles of the Letter of Transmittal, properly completed, will be accepted. The Letter of Transmittal and certificates evidencing Shares and any other required documents should be sent or delivered by each stockholder or its, his or her broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee to the Depositary at the applicable address set forth below:



By Mail:

Computershare c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions P.O. Box 43011 Providence, RI 02940-3011 By Facsimile Transmission:

For Eligible Institutions Only: (617) 360-6810

For Confirmation Only Telephone: (781) 575-2332

By Overnight Courier:

Computershare c/o Voluntary Corporate Actions 250 Royall Street Canton, MA 02021

Questions or requests for assistance may be directed to the Information Agent at its address and telephone numbers listed below. Additional copies of this offer to purchase, the Letter of Transmittal and other related documents may also be obtained from the Information Agent. Stockholders may also contact their brokers, dealers, commercial banks or trust companies for assistance concerning the Offer.

The Information Agent for the Offer is:

Georgeson

199 Water Street, 26th Floor New York, New York 10038 Banks and Brokers Call: (212) 440–9800 All Other Toll Free: (800) 676-0098 Email: cardiogenesis@georgeson.com

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL To Tender Shares of Common Stock of

CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION

at

\$0.4570 NET PER SHARE
Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011

by

CL FALCON, INC., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRYOLIFE, INC.

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT 12:00 MIDNIGHT, NEW YORK CITY TIME, AT THE END OF THE DAY ON MAY 2, 2011, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED (SUCH DATE AND TIME AS IT MAY BE EXTENDED, THE "EXPIRATION DATE") OR EARLIER TERMINATED.

The Depositary for the Offer is:



By Mail:
Computershare Trust Company,
N.A.
Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer
P.O. Box 43011
Providence, RI 02940-3011

By Courier:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 250 Royall Street, Suite V Canton, MA 02021

DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE OR TRANSMISSION OF INSTRUCTIONS VIA FACSIMILE TO A NUMBER OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY TO THE DEPOSITARY. YOU MUST SIGN THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IN THE APPROPRIATE SPACE PROVIDED BELOW WITH SIGNATURE GUARANTEED IF REQUIRED, AND COMPLETE THE SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9 OR THE APPROPRIATE IRS FORM W-8, AS APPLICABLE. THE INSTRUCTIONS INCLUDED IN THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BEFORE THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS COMPLETED.

THE TENDER OFFER IS NOT BEING MADE TO (NOR WILL TENDER OF SHARES BE ACCEPTED FROM OR ON BEHALF OF) STOCKHOLDERS IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE IT WOULD BE ILLEGAL TO DO SO.

DESC	DESCRIPTION OF SHARES TENDERED			
		Shares Tendered		
Name(s) and Address(es) of Registered Holder(s) (Please fill in, if blank, exactly as name(s) appear(s) on certificate(s)) (Attach additional signed list if necessary)	Share Certificate Number(s)(1)	Total Number of Shares Represented by Certificate(s)	Total Number of Book Shares Tendered	Total Number of Shares Tendered
	Total Shares			

- (1) Need not be completed by stockholders tendering by book-entry transfer.
- (2) Unless otherwise indicated, it will be assumed that all Shares described above are being tendered. See Instruction 4.

This Letter of Transmittal is to be completed by stockholders of Cardiogensis Corporation if certificates ("Share Certificates") representing shares of common stock, no par value per share (the "Shares"), are to be forwarded with this Letter of Transmittal. An Agent's Message (as defined in "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" of the Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011 ("Offer to Purchase")) is to be utilized, if delivery of Shares is to be made by bookentry transfer to an account maintained by Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the "Depositary") at The Depositary Trust Company ("DTC") pursuant to the procedures set forth under "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering " of the Offer to Purchase. Delivery of documents to DTC in accordance with DTC's procedures does not constitute delivery to the Depositary.

Stockholders whose Share Certificates are not immediately available or who cannot deliver their Share Certificates and all other required documents to the Depositary on or prior to the expiration date of the Offer or who are unable to complete the procedure for book-entry transfer prior to the expiration date of the Offer may nevertheless tender their Shares pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedures set forth under "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering "of the Offer to Purchase. See Instruction 2 below.

Additional Information if Shares Have Been Lost

If Share Certificates you are tendering with this Letter of Transmittal have been lost, stolen, destroyed or mutilated, you should promptly notify Computershare, Cardiogenesis' Transfer Agent, at (800) 546-5141 or at (781) 575-2765, regarding the requirements for replacement. You may be required to post a bond to secure against the risk that the Share Certificates may be subsequently recirculated. You are urged to contact the Transfer Agent immediately in order to receive further instructions, including a determination of whether you will need to post a bond, and to permit timely processing of this documentation. See Instruction 11.

2
CHECK HERE IF TENDERED SHARES ARE BEING DELIVERED BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER TO THE ACCOUNT MAINTAINED BY THE DEPOSITARY WITH DTC AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING (ONLY FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS THAT ARE PARTICIPANTS IN DTC MAY DELIVER SHARES BY BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER):
Name of Tendering Institution
DTC Participant Number:
Transaction Code Number:
CHECK HERE IF TENDERED SHARES ARE BEING DELIVERED PURSUANT TO A NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY PREVIOUSLY SENT TO THE DEPOSITARY AND COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING (PLEASE ENCLOSE A PHOTOCOPY OF SUCH NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY):
Name(s) of Registered Owner(s)
Window Ticket Number (if any) or DTC Participant Number:
Date of Execution of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery:
Name of Institution which Guaranteed Delivery:
NOTE: SIGNATURES MUST BE PROVIDED BELOW. PLEASE READ THE ACCOMPANYING INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY.
3

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned hereby tenders to CL Falcon, Inc., a Florida corporation (the "Purchaser") and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation ("CryoLife"), the above described shares of common stock, no par value (the "Shares"), of Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation ("Cardiogenesis"), unless such amount of Shares subject to the Offer is reduced as described in the Offer to Purchase, pursuant to the Purchaser's offer to purchase all of the outstanding Shares, at a purchase price of \$0.4570 per Share (the "Offer Price"), net to the seller in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase and in this Letter of Transmittal (together with the Offer to Purchase and any supplement to the Offer to Purchase or to this Letter of Transmittal, such documents collectively constitute the "Offer").

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer (and if the Offer is extended or amended, the terms of any such extension or amendment) and

effective upon acceptance for payment of the Shares tendered with this Letter of Transmittal, in accordance with the terms of the Offer, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers to, or upon the order of, the Purchaser all right, title and interest in and to all the Shares that are being tendered by this Letter of Transmittal and all dividends, distributions (including, without limitation, distributions of additional Shares) and rights declared, paid or distributed in respect of such Shares on or after the date hereof (collectively, "Distributions") and irrevocably constitutes and appoints Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (the "Depositary") the true and lawful agent, attorney-in-fact and proxy of the undersigned with respect to such Shares and any and all Distributions, with full power of substitution (such power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable power coupled with an interest), to (1) deliver certificates representing such Shares ("Share Certificates") and all Distributions, or transfer ownership of such Shares and all Distributions on the account books maintained by the DTC, together, in either case, with all accompanying evidences of transfer and authenticity, to or upon the order of Purchaser; (2) present such Shares and all Distributions for transfer on the books of Cardiogenesis; and (3) receive all benefits and otherwise exercise all rights of beneficial ownership of such Shares and all Distributions, all in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer.

By executing this Letter of Transmittal, the undersigned hereby irrevocably appoints D. Ashley Lee and Jeffrey W. Burris, and each of them, and any other designees of the Purchaser, the attorneys-in-fact and proxies of the undersigned, each with full power of substitution, (i) to vote at any annual or special meeting of Cardiogenesis' stockholders or any adjournment or postponement thereof or otherwise in such manner as each such attorney-in-fact and proxy or its, his or her sole discretion deem proper with respect to, (ii) to execute any written consent concerning any matter as each such attorney-in-fact and proxy or its, his or her substitute shall in its, his or her sole discretion deem proper with respect to and (iii) to otherwise act as each such attorney-in-fact and proxy or its, his or her substitute shall in its, his or her sole discretion deem proper with respect to all of the Shares (and any and all Distributions) tendered hereby and accepted for payment by the Purchaser. This appointment will be effective if and when, and only to the extent that, the Purchaser accepts such Shares for payment pursuant to the Offer. This power of attorney and proxy are irrevocable and are granted in consideration of the acceptance for payment of such Shares in accordance with the terms of the Offer. Such acceptance for payment shall, without further action, revoke any prior powers of attorney and proxies granted by the undersigned at any time with respect to such Shares (and any and all Distributions), and no subsequent powers of attorney, proxies, consents or revocations may be given by the undersigned with respect thereto (and, if given, will not be deemed effective). The Purchaser reserves the right to require that, in order for the Shares to be deemed validly tendered, immediately upon the Purchaser's acceptance for payment of such Shares, the Purchaser must be able exercise full voting, consent and other rights with respect to such Shares (and any and all Distributions), including voting at any meeting of Cardioge

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned has full power and authority to tender, sell, assign and transfer the Shares tendered hereby (and any and all Distributions) and that, when the same are accepted for payment by the Purchaser, the Purchaser will acquire good, marketable and unencumbered title to such Shares (and any and all Distributions), free and clear of all liens, restrictions, charges and encumbrances and the same will not be subject to any adverse claims. The undersigned will, upon request, execute and deliver any additional documents deemed by the Depositary or the Purchaser to be necessary or desirable to complete the sale, assignment and transfer of the Shares tendered hereby (and any and all Distributions). In addition, the undersigned shall remit and transfer promptly to the Depositary for the account of the Purchaser all Distributions in respect of the Shares tendered hereby, accompanied by appropriate documentation of transfer, and, pending such remittance and

4

transfer or appropriate assurance thereof, the Purchaser shall be entitled to all rights and privileges as owner of each such Distribution and may withhold the entire purchase price of the Shares tendered hereby or deduct from such purchase price the amount or value of such Distribution as determined by the Purchaser in its sole discretion.

All authority herein conferred or agreed to be conferred shall survive the death or incapacity of the undersigned, and any obligation of the undersigned hereunder shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, trustees in bankruptcy, successors and assigns of the undersigned. Except as stated in the Offer to Purchase, this tender is irrevocable. See "The Transaction – Withdrawal Rights" of the Offer to Purchase.

The undersigned understands that tenders of shares pursuant to any of the procedures described in the Offer to Purchase under "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" and in the instructions to this Letter of Transmittal will constitute the undersigned's acceptance of the terms and conditions of the Offer. The undersigned understands that the Purchaser's acceptance for payment of Shares tendered pursuant to the Offer will constitute a binding agreement between the undersigned and the Purchaser upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer (and if the Offer is extended or amended, the terms of or the conditions to any such extension or amendment).

Unless otherwise indicated in this Letter of Transmittal under "Special Payment Instructions," please issue the check for the purchase price of all of the Shares purchased and, if appropriate, return any certificates for the Shares not tendered or accepted for payment in the name(s) of the registered holder(s) appearing under "Description of Shares Tendered" above. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated under "Special Delivery Instructions," please mail the check for the purchase price of all of the Shares purchased and, if appropriate, return any certificates for the Shares not tendered or not accepted for payment (and any accompanying documents, as appropriate) to the address(es) of the registered holder(s) appearing under "Description of Shares Tendered" above. In the event that the boxes entitled "Special Payment Instructions" and "Special Delivery Instructions" are both completed, please issue the check for the purchase price of all Shares purchased in the name(s) of, and deliver such check, and, if appropriate, return any certificates evidencing Shares not tendered or not accepted for payment (and any accompanying documents, as appropriate) to, the person(s) so indicated. Unless otherwise indicated herein in the box entitled "Special Payment Instructions," please credit any Shares tendered herewith by book-entry transfer that are not accepted for payment by crediting the account at the DTC. The undersigned recognizes that the Purchaser has no obligation, pursuant to the "Special Payment Instructions," to transfer any Shares from the name of the registered holder thereof if the Purchaser does not accept for payment any of the Shares so tendered.

SPECIAL PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 5, 6 and 7)

To be completed ONLY if the check for the purchase price of Shares accepted for payment and/or certificates for Shares not tendered or not accepted are to be issued in the name of someone other than the undersigned.

Issue check and/or certificates to:

Name:

(Please Print)

Address:

(Include Zip Code)

(Taxpayer Identification or Social Security No.)

(Also Complete Substitute W-9 Below)

SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 1, 5, 6 and 7)

To be completed ONLY if the check for the purchase price of Shares accepted for payment and/or certificates for Shares not tendered or not accepted are to be mailed to someone other than the undersigned or to the undersigned at an address other than that shown above.

Mail check and/or certificates to:

Name:

(Please Print)

Address:

(Include Zip Code)

(Taxpayer Identification or Social Security No.)

(Also Complete Substitute W-9 Below)

5

IMPORTANT — SIGN HERE

(U.S. Holders Please Also Complete the Enclosed IRS Form W-9) (Non-U.S. Holders Please Obtain and Complete IRS Form W-8BEN or Other Applicable IRS Form W-8)

(Signature(s) of Stockholders(s))
Dated:
(Must be signed by registered owner(s) exactly as name(s) appear(s) on Share Certificate(s) or on a security position listing or by person(s) authorized to become registered owner(s) by certificates and documents transmitted herewith. If signature is by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, please set forth full title and see Instruction 5. For information concerning signature guarantees, see Instruction 1.)
Name(s):
(Please print)
Capacity (full title):
Address:
(Include Zip Code)
Area Code and Telephone Number:
Tax Identification or Social Security No.:
GUARANTEE OF SIGNATURE(S) (For use by Eligible Institutions only; see Instructions 1 and 5)
Name of Firm:
(Include Zip Code)
Authorized Signature:

Name:		
	(Please type or Print)	
Area Code and Telephone Number:		
Dated:		
Pla	ce medallion guarantee in space below:	
	6	

INSTRUCTIONS FORMING PART OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER

- 1. Guarantee of Signatures. No signature guarantee is required on this Letter of Transmittal (a) if this Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder(s) (which term, for purposes of this Instruction, includes any participant in DTC's system whose name appears on a security position listing as the owner of the Shares) of Shares tendered herewith, unless such holder has completed either the box entitled "Special Payment Instructions" or the box entitled "Special Delivery Instructions" on this Letter of Transmittal or (b) if such Shares are tendered for the account of a financial institution (including most commercial banks, savings and loan associations and brokerage houses) that is a member in good standing in the Security Transfer Agents Medallion Program or any other "eligible guarantor institution," as such term is defined in Rule 17Ad-15 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (each, an "Eligible Institution"). In all other cases, all signatures on this Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 5.
- 2. Requirements of Tender. In order for a stockholder to validly tender Shares pursuant to the Offer, this Letter of Transmittal (or a manually signed facsimile thereof), properly completed and duly executed, together with any required signature guarantees (or, in the case of a book-entry transfer, an Agent's Message in lieu of the Letter of Transmittal) and any other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal must be received by the Depositary at one of the addresses on the cover page of this Letter of Transmittal and either (A) the Share Certificates evidencing tendered Shares must be received by the Depositary at such address or (B) such Shares must be tendered pursuant to the procedure for book-entry transfer described in "The Transaction Procedure for Tendering" of the Offer to Purchase and confirmation of a book-entry transfer of such Shares (a "Book-Entry Confirmation") must be received by the Depositary, in each case prior to the Expiration Date (as defined in "The Transaction General Description of the Offer" of the Offer to Purchase).

Stockholders whose Share Certificates are not immediately available, who cannot deliver their Share Certificates and all other required documents to the Depositary on or prior to the Expiration Date or who cannot complete the procedure for delivery by book-entry transfer on or prior to the Expiration Date may tender their Shares pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedure described under "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" in the Offer to Purchase. Pursuant to such procedure: (i) such tender must be made by or through an Eligible Institution; (ii) a properly completed and duly executed Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, substantially in the form made available by the Purchaser, must be received by the Depositary at one of the addresses on the cover page of this Letter of Transmittal on or prior to the Expiration Date; and (iii) the Share Certificates representing all physically delivered Shares in proper form for transfer by delivery, or Book-Entry Confirmation of all Shares delivered by book-entry transfer, in each case together with a Letter of Transmittal (or a manually signed facsimile thereof), properly completed and duly executed, with any required signature guarantees (or, in the case of a book-entry transfer, an Agent's Message), and any other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal, must be received by the Depositary at such address within three NYSE trading days after the date of execution of such Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, all as described under "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" in the Offer to Purchase.

The term "Agent's Message" means a message, transmitted by DTC to and received by the Depositary and forming a part of a Book-Entry Confirmation, that states that DTC has received an express acknowledgment from the participant in DTC tendering the Shares that are the subject of such Book-Entry Confirmation, that such participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the Letter of Transmittal and that the Purchaser may enforce such agreement against such participant.

The method of delivery of Shares, the Letter of Transmittal and all other required documents, including delivery through DTC, is at the option and risk of the tendering stockholder, and the delivery of all such documents will be deemed made only when actually received by the Depositary (including, in the case of a book-entry transfer, receipt of a Book-Entry Confirmation). If delivery is by mail, registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, is recommended. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to ensure timely delivery.

7

The Purchaser will not accept any alternative, conditional or contingent tenders, and no fractional Shares will be purchased. By executing this Letter of Transmittal (or facsimile thereof), the tendering stockholder waives any right to receive any notice of the acceptance for payment of the Shares.

- 3. *Inadequate Space*. If the space provided herein is inadequate, the Share Certificate numbers and/or the number of Shares should be listed on a separate schedule attached hereto.
- 4. Partial Tenders (Not applicable to stockholders who Tender by Book Entry Transfer). If fewer than all the Shares represented by any Share Certificate delivered to the Depositary are to be tendered, fill in the number of Shares which are to be tendered in the box entitled "Total Number of Shares Tendered." In such case, a new certificate for the remainder of the Shares represented by the old certificate will be sent to the person(s) signing this Letter of Transmittal, unless otherwise provided in the appropriate box on this Letter of Transmittal, as promptly as practicable following the expiration or termination of the Offer. All Shares represented by certificates delivered to the Depositary will be deemed to have been tendered unless otherwise indicated.

- 5. Signatures on Letter of Transmittal; Stock Powers and Endorsements.
- (a) Exact Signatures. If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder(s) of the Shares tendered hereby, the signature(s) must correspond with the name(s) as written on the face of the Share Certificates without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever.
 - (b) Joint Holders. If any of the Shares tendered hereby are held of record by two or more persons, all such persons must sign this Letter of Transmittal.
- (c) Different Names on Certificates. If any of the Shares tendered hereby are registered in different names on different certificates, it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate Letters of Transmittal as there are different registrations of certificates.
- (d) *Endorsements*. If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder(s) of the Shares tendered hereby, no endorsements of certificates or separate stock powers are required unless payment of the purchase price is to be made, or Shares not tendered or not purchased are to be returned, in the name of any person other than the registered holder(s). Signatures on any such certificates or stock powers must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution.
- (e) Stock Powers. If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by a person other than the registered holder(s) of the Shares tendered hereby, certificates must be endorsed or accompanied by appropriate stock powers, in either case, signed exactly as the name(s) of the registered holder(s) appear(s) on the certificates for such Shares. Signature(s) on any such certificates or stock powers must be guaranteed by an Eligible Institution. See Instruction 1.
- (f) Evidence of Fiduciary or Representative Capacity. If this Letter of Transmittal or any certificate or stock power is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such person should so indicate when signing, and proper evidence satisfactory to the Depositary of the authority of such person so to act must be submitted.
- 6. Stock Transfer Taxes. Except as otherwise provided in this Instruction 6, the Purchaser or any successor entity thereto will pay all stock transfer taxes with respect to the transfer and sale of any Shares to it or its order pursuant to the Offer. If, however, payment of the purchase price is to be made to, or if Share Certificate(s) for Shares not tendered or not accepted for payment are to be registered in the name of, any person(s) other than the registered holder(s), or if tendered Share Certificate(s) are registered in the name of any person(s) other than the person(s) signing this Letter of Transmittal, the amount of any stock transfer taxes (whether imposed on the registered holder(s) or such other person(s)) payable on account of the transfer to such other person(s) will be deducted from the purchase price of such Shares purchased unless evidence satisfactory to the Purchaser of the payment of such taxes, or exemption therefrom, is submitted.

Except as provided in this Instruction 6, it will not be necessary for transfer tax stamps to be affixed to the Share Certificate(s) evidencing the Shares tendered hereby.

8

- 7. Special Payment and Delivery Instructions. If a check is to be issued in the name of, and, if appropriate, Share Certificates for Shares not tendered or not accepted for payment are to be issued or returned to, any person(s) other than the signer of this Letter of Transmittal or if a check and, if appropriate, such Share Certificates are to be returned to any person(s) other than the person(s) signing this Letter of Transmittal or to an address other than that shown in this Letter of Transmittal, the appropriate boxes on this Letter of Transmittal must be completed.
- 8. Substitute Form W-9. To avoid backup withholding, a tendering stockholder is required to provide the Depositary with a correct Taxpayer Identification Number ("TIN") on Substitute Form W-9, which is provided under "Important Tax Information" below, and to certify, under penalties of perjury, that such number is correct and that such stockholder is not subject to backup withholding of federal income tax, and that such stockholder is a U.S. person (as defined for U.S. federal income tax purposes). If a tendering stockholder has been notified by the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") that such stockholder is subject to backup withholding, such stockholder must cross out item (2) of the Certification box of the Substitute Form W-9, unless such stockholder has since been notified by the IRS that such stockholder is no longer subject to backup withholding. Failure to provide the information on the Substitute Form W-9 may subject the tendering stockholder to federal income tax withholding on the payment of the purchase price of all Shares purchased from such stockholder. If the tendering stockholder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for one or intends to apply for one in the near future, such stockholder should check the box in Part 3 of the Substitute Form W-9, and sign and date the Substitute Form W-9. If the box in Part 3 is checked and the Depositary is not provided with a TIN by the time of payment, the Depositary will withhold a portion of all payments of the purchase price to such stockholder until a TIN is provided to the Depositary.

Certain stockholders (including, among others, all corporations and certain foreign individuals and entities) may not be subject to backup withholding. Foreign stockholders should submit an appropriate and properly completed IRS Form W-8, a copy of which may be obtained from the Depositary, in order to avoid backup withholding. Such stockholders should consult a tax advisor to determine which Form W-8 is appropriate. See the enclosed "Guidelines for Certification of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute Form W-9" for more instructions.

- 9. Irregularities. All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance for payment of any tender of Shares will be determined by the Purchaser, in its sole discretion, which determination shall be final and binding on all parties. The Purchaser reserves the absolute right to reject any and all tenders determined by us not to be in proper form or the acceptance for payment of which may, in the opinion of our counsel, be unlawful. The Purchaser also reserves the absolute right to waive any defect or irregularity in the tender of any Shares of any particular stockholder, whether or not similar defects or irregularities are waived in the case of other stockholders. No tender of Shares will be deemed to have been validly made until all defects and irregularities have been cured or waived to the Purchaser's satisfaction. None of the Purchaser, Parent, the Depositary, the Information Agent or any other person will be under any duty to give notification of any defects or irregularities in tenders or incur any liability for failure to give any such notification. The Purchaser's interpretation of the terms and conditions of the Offer (including this Letter of Transmittal and these instructions thereto) will be final and binding.
- 10. Waiver of Conditions. The conditions of the Offer (except for the Minimum Tender Condition as defined in "The Transaction Conditions to the Offer" of the Offer to Purchase) may be waived by Purchaser in whole or in part at any time and from time to time. See "The Transaction Conditions to the Offer" of the Offer to Purchase.

- 11. Requests for Additional Copies. Questions and requests for assistance or additional copies of the Offer to Purchase, this Letter of Transmittal and the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery should be directed to the Information Agent at its telephone numbers and address set forth below.
- 12. Lost, Destroyed or Stolen Certificates. If any Share Certificate(s) have been lost, destroyed or stolen, the stockholder should promptly notify Computershare at (800) 546-5141 or at (781) 575-2765. The stockholder will then be provided with instructions as to the procedures for replacing the Share Certificate(s). This Letter of Transmittal and related documents cannot be processed until the procedures for replacing lost, destroyed or stolen certificates have been followed and completed.

IMPORTANT: THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL (OR FACSIMILE THEREOF), TOGETHER WITH ANY REQUIRED SIGNATURE GUARANTEES, OR, IN THE CASE OF A BOOK-ENTRY

9

TRANSFER, AN AGENT'S MESSAGE, AND ANY OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS, MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE DEPOSITARY ON OR PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE, AND EITHER CERTIFICATES FOR TENDERED SHARES MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE DEPOSITARY OR SHARES MUST BE DELIVERED PURSUANT TO THE PROCEDURES FOR BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER, IN EACH CASE ON OR PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE, OR THE TENDERING STOCKHOLDER MUST COMPLY WITH THE PROCEDURES FOR GUARANTEED DELIVERY.

IMPORTANT TAX INFORMATION

Under federal income tax law, a stockholder who is a U.S. person (as defined for U.S. federal income tax purposes) surrendering Shares must, unless an exemption applies, provide the Depositary (as payer) with the stockholder's correct TIN on IRS Form W-9 or on the Substitute Form W-9 included in this Letter of Transmittal. If the stockholder is an individual, the stockholder's TIN is generally such stockholder's Social Security number. If the correct TIN is not provided, the stockholder may be subject to a \$50 penalty imposed by the IRS and payments of cash to the stockholder (or other payee) pursuant to the Offer may be subject to backup withholding of a portion of all payments of the purchase price.

Certain stockholders (including, among others, corporations and certain foreign individuals and entities) may not be subject to backup withholding and reporting requirements. In order for an exempt foreign stockholder to avoid backup withholding, such person should complete, sign and submit an appropriate Form W-8 signed under penalties of perjury, attesting to his or her exempt status. A Form W-8 can be obtained from the Depositary. Such stockholders should consult a tax advisor to determine which Form W-8 is appropriate. Exempt stockholders, other than foreign stockholders, should furnish their TIN, check the box in Part 4 of the Substitute Form W-9 and sign, date and return the Substitute Form W-9 to the Depositary in order to avoid erroneous backup withholding. See the enclosed "Guidelines for Certification of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute Form W-9" for additional instructions.

If backup withholding applies, the Depositary is required to withhold and pay over to the IRS a portion of any payment made to a stockholder. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Rather, the federal income tax liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If backup withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund may be obtained from the IRS.

Purpose of Substitute Form W-9

To prevent backup withholding on payments that are made to a stockholder with respect to Shares purchased pursuant to the Offer, the stockholder is required to notify the Depositary of the stockholder's correct TIN by completing the Substitute Form W-9 included in this Letter of Transmittal certifying (1) that the TIN provided on the Substitute Form W-9 is correct (or that such stockholder is awaiting a TIN), (2) that the stockholder is not subject to backup withholding because (i) the stockholder is exempt from backup withholding, (ii) the stockholder has not been notified by the IRS that the stockholder is subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest and dividends or (iii) the IRS has notified the stockholder that the stockholder is no longer subject to backup withholding and (3) the stockholder is a U.S. person (as defined for U.S. federal income tax purposes).

What Number to Give the Depositary

The tendering stockholder is required to give the Depositary the TIN, generally the Social Security number or Employer Identification Number, of the record holder of the Shares tendered hereby. If the Shares are in more than one name or are not in the name of the actual owner, consult the enclosed "Guidelines for Certification of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute W-9" for additional guidance on which number to report. If the tendering stockholder has not been issued a TIN and has applied for a number or intends to apply for a number in the near future, such stockholder should check the box in Part 3 of the Substitute Form W-9, sign and date the Substitute Form W-9 and sign and date the Certificate of Awaiting Taxpayer Identification Number, which appears in a separate box below the Substitute Form W-9. If the box in Part 3 of the Substitute Form W-9 is checked and the Depositary is not provided with a TIN by the time of payment, the Depositary will withhold a portion of all payments of the purchase price until a TIN is provided to the Depositary. If the Depositary is provided with an incorrect TIN in connection with such payments, the stockholder may be subject to a \$50.00 penalty imposed by the IRS.

substitute form W-9	Part 1 — PLEASE PROVIDE YOUR TIN IN THE BOX AT RIGHT AND CERTIFY BY SIGNING AND DATING BELOW.	Social Security Number or Employer Identification Number	
Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service	CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX: ☐ Individual/Sole Proprietor	Part 3 Awaiting TIN □	
Payer's Request for Taxpayer Identification Number ("TIN")	☐ Corporation ☐ Partnership ☐ Other	Part 4 Exempt □	
Please fill in your name and address below.	Part 2 Certification Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:		
Name	(1) The number shown on this form is my correct Taxpayer Identification Number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me);		
Address (Number and Street)	(2) I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue		
City, State and Zip Code	Service (the "IRS") that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and (3) I am a U.S. Person (including a U.S. resident alien). Certification Instructions — You must cross out Item (2) above if you have been notified by the IRS		
	Signature	Date	

NOTE: FAILURE TO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS FORM MAY RESULT IN BACKUP WITHHOLDING OF A PORTION OF ANY PAYMENTS MADE TO YOU PURSUANT TO THE OFFER. PLEASE REVIEW THE ENCLOSED GUIDELINES FOR CERTIFICATION OF TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER ON SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9 FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS.

YOU MUST COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING CERTIFICATE IF YOU CHECKED THE BOX IN PART 3 OF SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9.

CERTIFICATE OF AWAITING TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
I certify under penalties of perjury that a taxpayer identification number has not been issued to me, and either (1) have mailed or delivered an application to receive a taxpayer identification number to the appropriate Internal Revenue Service Center or Social Security Administration Office, or (2) I intend to mail or deliver an application in the near future. I understand that if I do not provide a taxpayer identification number by the time of payment, a portion of all reportable payments made to me will be withheld, but that such amounts will be refunded to me if I then provide a Taxpayer Identification Number within sixty (60) days.
Signature: Date

11

GUIDELINES FOR CERTIFICATION OF TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER ON SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9

GUIDELINES FOR DETERMINING THE PROPER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER TO GIVE THE PAYER.—Social Security numbers have nine digits separated by two hyphens: i.e., 000-00-0000. Employer identification numbers have nine digits separated by only one hyphen: i.e., 00-0000000. The table below will help determine the number to give the payer.

WHAT NAME AND NUMBER TO GIVE THE PAYER

For t	this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:
1.	Individual	The individual
2.	Two or more individuals (joint account)	The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account(1)
3.	Custodian account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Act)	The minor(2)
4.	a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee)	The grantor-trustee(1)
	b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under s law	state The actual owner(1)
5.	Sole proprietorship or single-owner LLC	The owner(3)
6.	Sole proprietorship or single-owner LLC	The owner(3)

For this type of account:		Give name and SSN of:	
8.	Corporate or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832	The corporation	
9.	Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax- exempt organization	The organization	
10.	Partnership or multi-member LLC	The partnership	
11.	A broker or registered nominee	The broker or nominee	
12.	Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity	

- (1) List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.
- (2) Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.
- (3) You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or "DBA" name on the second name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one). If you are a sole proprietor, IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
- (4) List first and circle the name of the legal trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.)

NOTE: If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

12

GUIDELINES FOR CERTIFICATION OF TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER ON SUBSTITUTE FORM W-9 PAGE 2

OBTAINING A NUMBER

If you don't have a taxpayer identification number or you don't know your number, obtain Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Number Card, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, at the local office of the Social Security Administration or the Internal Revenue Service and apply for a number.

PAYEES EXEMPT FROM BACKUP WITHHOLDING

Payees specifically exempted from backup withholding on ALL payments include the following:

- · A corporation.
- · A financial institution.
- An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), or an individual retirement plan or a custodial account under Section 403(b)(7).
- The United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof.
- A State, the District of Columbia, a possession of the United States, or any subdivision or instrumentality thereof.
- A foreign government, a political subdivision of a foreign government, or any agency or instrumentality thereof
- An international organization or any agency, or instrumentality thereof.
- · A registered dealer in securities or commodities registered in the U.S. or a possession of the U.S.
- A real estate investment trust.
- A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a).
- An exempt charitable remainder trust, or a non-exempt trust described in section 4947(a)(1).

- An entity registered at all times under the Investment Company Act of 1940.
- · A foreign central bank of issue.
- · A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission.
- A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or listed in the most recent publication of the American Society of Corporate Secretaries, Inc. Nominee List.

Payments of dividends and patronage dividends not generally subject to backup withholding include the following:

• Payments to nonresident aliens subject to withholding under section 1441.

13

- Payments to partnerships not engaged in a trade or business in the U.S. and which have at least one nonresident partner.
- Payments of patronage dividends where the amount received is not paid in money.
- · Payments made by certain foreign organizations.

Payments of interest not generally subject to backup withholding include the following:

- Payments of interest on obligations issued by individuals. Note: You may be subject to backup withholding if
 this interest is \$600 or more and is paid in the course of the payer's trade or business and you have not provided
 your correct taxpayer identification number to the payer.
- Payments of tax-exempt interest (including exempt-interest dividends under section 852).
- Payments described in section 6049(b)(5) to non-resident aliens.
- Payments on tax-free covenant bonds under section 1451.
- · Payments made by certain foreign organizations.
- · Mortgage interest paid to an individual.

Exempt payees described above should file Form W-9 to avoid possible erroneous backup withholding. FILE THIS FORM WITH THE PAYER, FURNISH YOUR TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER, WRITE "EXEMPT" ON THE FACE OF THE FORM, AND RETURN IT TO THE PAYER. IF THE PAYMENTS ARE INTEREST, DIVIDENDS, OR PATRONAGE DIVIDENDS, ALSO SIGN AND DATE THE FORM.

Certain payments, other than interest, dividends, and patronage dividends, that are not subject to information reporting, are also not subject to backup withholding. For details, see the regulations under sections 6041, 6041A(a), 6045, and 6050A.

PRIVACY ACT NOTICE — Section 6109 requires most recipients of dividend, interest, or other payments to give taxpayer identification numbers to payers who must report the payments to IRS. IRS uses the numbers for identification purposes. Payers must be given the numbers whether or not recipients are required to file tax returns. Payers must generally withhold a portion of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not furnish a taxpayer identification number to a payer. Certain penalties may also apply.

PENALTIES

- (1) PENALTY FOR FAILURE TO FURNISH TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER If you fail to furnish your taxpayer identification number to a payer, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.
- (2) CIVIL PENALTY FOR FALSE INFORMATION WITH RESPECT TO WITHHOLDING If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis which results in no imposition of backup withholding, you are subject to a penalty of \$500.
- (3) CRIMINAL PENALTY FOR FALSIFYING INFORMATION Falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

The Depositary for the Offer is:



By Mail:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer P.O. Box 43011 Providence, RI 02940-3011

By Overnight Courier:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 250 Royall Street, Suite V Canton, MA 02021

Questions or requests for assistance or additional copies of the Offer to Purchase, this Letter of Transmittal and other related documents may be directed to the Information Agent at the address and telephone numbers set forth below. Stockholders may also contact their broker, dealer, commercial bank or trust company for assistance concerning the tender offer.

The Information Agent for the Offer is:

Georgeson

199 Water Street, 26th Floor

New York, New York 10038
Banks and Brokers Call: (212) 440-9800
All Other Toll Free: (800) 676-0098
Email: cardiogenesis@georgeson.com

Notice of Guaranteed Delivery For Tender of Shares of Common Stock

of

CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION

at

\$0.4570 NET PER SHARE

Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011

bv

CL FALCON, INC.

a wholly-owned subsidiary of

CRYOLIFE, INC.

(Not to be used for Signature Guarantees)

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT 12:00 MIDNIGHT, NEW YORK CITY TIME, AT THE END OF THE DAY ON MAY 2, 2011, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED OR EARLIER TERMINATED.

This Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, or one substantially equivalent to this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery, must be used to accept the Offer (as defined below) if certificates representing tendered Shares (as defined below) are not immediately available or the certificates representing tendered Shares and all other required documents cannot be delivered to Computershare Trust Company, N.A (the "Depositary") prior to the expiration of the Offer or if the procedure for delivery by book-entry transfer cannot be completed prior to the expiration of the Offer. This instrument may be delivered or transmitted by facsimile transmission or mailed to the Depositary. See "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" of the Offer to Purchase (as defined below).

The Depositary for the Offer is:



By Mail:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer P.O. Box 43011 Providence. RI 02940-3011 By Facsimile Transmission

For Eligible Institutions Only: (617) 360–6810 For Confirmation Only: (781) 575–2332 By Overnight Courier:

Computershare Trust Company, N.A. Corporate Actions Voluntary Offer 250 Royall Street, Suite V Canton, MA 02021

DELIVERY OF THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE OR TRANSMISSION OF INSTRUCTIONS VIA FACSIMILE TO A NUMBER OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY TO THE DEPOSITARY.

THIS FORM IS NOT TO BE USED TO GUARANTEE SIGNATURES. IF A SIGNATURE ON A LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS REQUIRED TO BE GUARANTEED BY AN "ELIGIBLE INSTITUTION" UNDER THE INSTRUCTIONS TO THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL, SUCH SIGNATURE GUARANTEE MUST APPEAR IN THE APPLICABLE SPACE PROVIDED IN THE SIGNATURE BOX IN THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.

THE GUARANTEE INCLUDED WITH THIS NOTICE OF GUARANTEED DELIVERY MUST BE COMPLETED.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned, pursuant to the guaranteed delivery procedure set forth in "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" of the Offer to Purchase, hereby tender(s) to CL Falcon, Inc., a Florida corporation (the "Purchaser") and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation, the number of shares of common stock, no par value (the "Shares"), of Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation ("Cardiogenesis"), indicated below pursuant to the offer (the "Offer") by the Purchaser to purchase all of the outstanding Shares of Cardiogenesis, at a purchase price of \$0.4570 per share, net to the seller in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011 (which, together with any amendments and supplements thereto, collectively constitute the "Offer to Purchase") and in the related letter of

transmittal (as it may be amended or supplemented, the "Lett	ter of Transmittal").	
Name(s) of Record Holder(s)	Number of Shares	
	Certificate Nos. (if available)	
Address(es)		
	Indicate account number at Book-Entry Transfer Facility if Shares will be tendered by book-entry transfer:	
(Area Code) Telephone No.	Account Number	
X	Dated:	
	Dated:	
Signature(s) of Record Holder(s)	Dateu.	
GUARANTEE (N	OT TO BE USED FOR SIGNATURE GUARANTEE)	
The undersigned, a bank, broker, dealer, credit union, sa Agents Medallion Program or any other "eligible guarantor i (each, an "Eligible Institution"), hereby guarantees the deliv Shares tendered by this Notice of Guaranteed Delivery in proaccount at The Depository Trust Company, in either case, tog facsimile of the Letter of Transmittal) with any required signs documents required by the Letter of Transmittal, within three	ery to the Depositary, at one of its addresses set forth above, per form for transfer, or confirmation of the book-entry transgether with delivery of a properly completed and duly execuature guarantee, or an Agent's Message (as defined in the Le	Exchange Act of 1934, as amended of the certificates evidencing all fer of Shares into the Depositary's ted Letter of Transmittal (or a tter of Transmittal), and any other
The Eligible Institution that completes this form must concertificates representing tendered Shares to the Depositary we Eligible Institution.	ommunicate the guarantee to the Depositary and must delive ithin the time period indicated herein. Failure to do so may	
	X	
Name of Firm	Authorized Signature	
Address(es)	Name (Please Print)	
Zip Code	Title	
(Area Code) Telephone No.	Dated:	

NOTE: DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES REPRESENTING TENDERED SHARES WITH THIS NOTICE. CERTIFICATES REPRESENTING TENDERED SHARES SHOULD BE SENT WITH YOUR LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.

Offer To Purchase For Cash All Outstanding Shares of Common Stock of CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION at \$0.4570 NET PER SHARE Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011 by CL FALCON, INC., a wholly-owned subsidiary of

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT 12:00 MIDNIGHT, NEW YORK CITY TIME, AT THE END OF THE DAY ON MAY 2, 2011, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED (SUCH DATE AND TIME AS IT MAY BE EXTENDED, THE "EXPIRATION DATE") OR EARLIER TERMINATED.

CRYOLIFE, INC.

April 5, 2011

To Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees:

We have been engaged by CL Falcon, Inc., a Florida corporation (the "Purchaser") and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation ("Parent"), to act as the Information Agent in connection with the Purchaser's offer to purchase (the "Offer") all of the outstanding shares of common stock, no par value (the "Shares"), of Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation ("Cardiogenesis"), unless such amount of Shares subject to the Offer is reduced as described in the Offer to Purchase, at a purchase price of \$0.4570 per Share (the "Offer Price), net to the seller in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011 (the "Offer to Purchase"), and the related Letter of Transmittal enclosed herewith.

The Offer is being made pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011 (as it may be amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement"), among Parent, the Purchaser and Cardiogenesis. The Merger Agreement provides, among other things, that following the consummation of the Offer and subject to certain conditions, the Purchaser will be merged with and into Cardiogenesis (the "Merger"), with Cardiogenesis continuing as the surviving corporation and wholly-owned by Parent. In the Merger, each Share outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger (other than Shares held (i) directly or indirectly by Cardiogenesis, Parent or the Purchaser, which Shares shall be canceled and shall cease to exist, or (ii) by stockholders who validly exercise appraisal rights under California law with respect to such Shares) will be canceled and converted into the right to receive the Offer Price, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes. The Merger Agreement is more fully described in the Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011.

The Cardiogenesis board of directors, among other things, has unanimously (i) determined and declared that the Merger Agreement, the Offer and the Merger are advisable and in the best interests of Cardiogenesis and the holders of Shares, (ii) approved the Merger Agreement and, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, the consummation of the Offer, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and (iii) recommended that the holders of Shares accept the Offer, tender their Shares into the Offer, and, if required by applicable law, adopt and approve the Merger Agreement and approve the Merger.

1

For your information and for forwarding to your clients for whom you hold Shares registered in your name or in the name of your nominee, we are enclosing the following documents:

- 1. The Offer to Purchase:
- 2. The related Letter of Transmittal for your use in accepting the Offer and tendering Shares and for the information of your clients, together with "Guidelines for Certification of Taxpayer Identification Number on Substitute Form W-9" providing information relating to backup federal income tax withholding;
- 3. The Notice of Guaranteed Delivery to be used to accept the Offer if share certificates for such Shares (the "Share Certificates") are not immediately available or time will not permit all required documents to reach Computershare Trust Company, N.A (the "Depositary") on or before the Expiration Date or the procedures for book-entry transfer cannot be completed on or before the Expiration Date;
- 4. Cardiogenesis's Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9 and accompanying letter from Cardiogenesis, in each case as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission;
- 5. A form of letter which may be sent to your clients for whose accounts you hold Shares registered in your name or in the name of your nominee, with space provided for obtaining such clients' instructions with regard to the Offer; and
 - 6. A return envelope addressed to the Depositary for your use only.

Consummation of the Offer is conditioned upon, among other things, the Merger Agreement not being terminated in accordance with its terms and each of (i) the Minimum Tender Condition (as described below), and (ii) other customary conditions (as described in "The Transaction – Conditions to the Offer" of the Offer to Purchase) being satisfied. The Minimum Tender Condition requires that the number of Shares that have been validly tendered and not validly withdrawn prior to the then scheduled Expiration Date, together with the number of Shares (if any) then owned by Parent and its subsidiaries, represents at least a majority of the total number of outstanding Shares on a fully diluted basis.

We urge you to contact your clients as promptly as possible. Please note that the Offer will expire at 12:00 midnight, New York City time, at the end of the day on May 2, 2011, unless the Offer is extended or earlier terminated.

In order for a stockholder to validly tender Shares pursuant to the Offer, the Letter of Transmittal (or a manually signed facsimile thereof), properly completed and duly executed, together with any required signature guarantees (or, in the case of a book-entry transfer, an Agent's Message (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) in lieu of the Letter of Transmittal) and any other documents required by the Letter of Transmittal must be received by the Depositary and either (A) the share certificates evidencing tendered Shares must be received by the Depositary or (B) such Shares must be tendered pursuant to the procedure for book-entry transfer described in the Offer to Purchase and a Book-Entry Confirmation (as defined in the Offer to Purchase) must be received by the Depositary, in each case prior to the Expiration Date. Alternatively, a stockholder may be able to validly tender such stockholder's Shares by completing and returning the Notice of Guaranteed Delivery using the procedures described in "The Transaction – Procedure for Tendering" of the Offer to Purchase.

Neither Parent nor the Purchaser will pay any fees or commissions to any broker or dealer or any other person (other than to the Depositary and Information Agent as described in the Offer to Purchase) in connection with the solicitation of tenders of Shares pursuant to the Offer. The Purchaser will, however, upon request, reimburse brokers, dealers, commercial banks and trust companies for customary mailing and handling expenses incurred by them in forwarding offering materials to their customers. The Purchaser will pay all stock transfer taxes applicable to its purchase of Shares pursuant to the Offer, subject to Instruction 6 of the Letter of Transmittal.

2

Any inquiries you may have with respect to the Offer should be addressed to, and additional copies of the enclosed materials may be obtained from, the Information Agent at the address and telephone numbers set forth on the back cover of the Offer to Purchase.

Very truly yours, Georgeson Inc.

Nothing contained herein or in the enclosed documents shall render you the agent of the Purchaser, the Information Agent or the Depositary or any affiliate of any of them or authorize you or any other person to use any document or make any statement on behalf of any of them in connection with the Offer other than the enclosed documents and the statements contained therein.

Offer To Purchase For Cash All Outstanding Shares of Common Stock of CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION

CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION at \$0.4570 NET PER SHARE

Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011

by CL FALCON, INC., a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRYOLIFE, INC.

THE OFFER AND WITHDRAWAL RIGHTS WILL EXPIRE AT 12:00 MIDNIGHT, NEW YORK CITY TIME, AT THE END OF THE DAY ON MAY 2, 2011, UNLESS THE OFFER IS EXTENDED (SUCH DATE AND TIME AS IT MAY BE EXTENDED, THE "EXPIRATION DATE") OR EARLIER TERMINATED.

April 5, 2011

To Our Clients:

Enclosed for your consideration are the Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011 (the "Offer to Purchase"), and the related Letter of Transmittal in connection with the offer (the "Offer") by CL Falcon, Inc., a Florida corporation (the "Purchaser") and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation ("Parent"), to purchase all of the outstanding shares of common stock, no par value (the "Shares"), of Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation ("Cardiogenesis"), unless such amount of Shares subject to the Offer is reduced as described in the Offer to Purchase, at a purchase price of \$0.4570 per Share (the "Offer Price), net to the seller in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes, upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer. You are also receiving Cardiogenesis's Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9 and the accompanying letter from Cardiogenesis.

The Offer is being made pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 28, 2011 (as it may be amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement"), among Parent, the Purchaser and Cardiogenesis. The Merger Agreement provides, among other things, that following the consummation of the Offer and subject to certain conditions, the Purchaser will be merged with and into Cardiogenesis (the "Merger"), with Cardiogenesis continuing as the surviving corporation and wholly-owned by Parent. In the Merger, each Share outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger (other than Shares held (i) directly or indirectly by Cardiogenesis, Parent or the Purchaser, which Shares shall be canceled and shall cease to exist, or (ii) by stockholders who validly exercise appraisal rights under California law with respect to such Shares) will be canceled and converted into the right to receive the Offer Price, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes. The Merger Agreement is more fully described in the Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011.

The Cardiogenesis board of directors, among other things, has unanimously (i) determined and declared that the Merger Agreement, the Offer and the Merger are advisable and in the best interests of Cardiogenesis and the holders of Shares, (ii) approved the Merger Agreement and, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, the consummation of the Offer, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and (iii) recommended that the holders of Shares accept the Offer, tender their Shares into the Offer, and, if required by applicable law, adopt and approve the Merger Agreement and approve the Merger.

1

We or our nominees are the holder of record of Shares held for your account. A tender of such Shares can be made only by us as the holder of record and pursuant to your instructions. The Letter of Transmittal is furnished to you for your information only and cannot be used by you to tender Shares held by us for your account.

We request instructions as to whether you wish us to tender any or all of the Shares held by us for your account, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the enclosed Offer to Purchase and the Letter of Transmittal.

Please note carefully the following:

- 1. The Offer Price for the Offer is \$0.4570 per Share, net to you in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes.
- 2. The Offer is being made for all outstanding Shares.
- 3. The Offer and withdrawal rights will expire at 12:00 midnight, New York City time, at the end of the day on May 2, 2011, unless the Offer is extended or earlier terminated.
- 4. Consummation of the Offer is conditioned upon, among other things, the Merger Agreement not being terminated in accordance with its terms and each of (i) the Minimum Tender Condition (as described below), and (ii) other customary conditions (as described in "The Transaction Conditions to the

Offer" of the Offer to Purchase) being satisfied. The Minimum Tender Condition requires that the number of Shares that have been validly tendered and not validly withdrawn prior to the then scheduled Expiration Date, together with the number of Shares (if any) then owned by Parent and its subsidiaries, represents at least a majority of the total number of outstanding Shares on a fully diluted basis.

5. Tendering stockholders who are record owners of their Shares and who tender directly to Computershare Trust Company, N.A will not be obligated to pay brokerage fees or commissions or, except as otherwise provided in Instruction 6 of the Letter of Transmittal, stock transfer taxes with respect to the purchase of Shares by the Purchaser pursuant to the Offer.

If you wish to have us tender any or all of your Shares, please so instruct us by completing, executing, detaching and returning to us the Instruction Form on the detachable part hereof. An envelope to return your instructions to us is enclosed. If you authorize tender of your Shares, all such Shares will be tendered unless otherwise specified on the Instruction Form.

Your prompt action is requested. Your Instruction Form should be forwarded to us in ample time to permit us to submit the tender on your behalf before the Expiration Date.

The Offer is not being made to, nor will tenders be accepted from or on behalf of, holders of Shares in any jurisdiction in which the making of the Offer or acceptance thereof would not be in compliance with the laws of such jurisdiction.

2

INSTRUCTION FORM With Respect to the Offer to Purchase for Cash All Outstanding Shares of Common Stock of CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION at \$0.4570 NET PER SHARE Pursuant to the Offer to Purchase dated April 5, 2011 by CL FALCON, INC., a wholly-owned subsidiary of

The undersigned acknowledge(s) receipt of your letter and the enclosed Offer to Purchase, dated April 5, 2011, and the related Letter of Transmittal in connection with the offer (the "Offer") by CL Falcon, Inc., a Florida corporation (the "Purchaser") and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation ("Parent"), to purchase all of the outstanding shares of common stock, no par value (the "Shares"), of Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation ("Cardiogenesis"), at a purchase price of \$0.4570 per Share, net to the seller in cash, without interest thereon and less any applicable withholding taxes, upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Offer.

CRYOLIFE, INC.

The undersigned hereby instruct(s) you to tender to the Purchaser the number of Shares indicated below or, if no number is indicated, all Shares held by you for the account of the undersigned, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Offer.

^{*} Unless otherwise indicated, it will be assumed that all Shares held by us for your account are to be tendered.



NEWS RELEASE

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

CryoLife Media Contacts:

D. Ashley Lee Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer Phone: 770-419-3355

Chris Mittendorf Edelman

Phone: 212-704-8134

Cardiogenesis Media Contact:

Paul J. McCormick Executive Chairman Phone: 949-420-1827

CryoLife Commences Tender Offer for All Outstanding Shares of Cardiogenesis Corporation

ATLANTA and IRVINE, CA. (April 5, 2011) -- CryoLife, Inc. (NYSE:CRY), an implantable biological medical device and cardiovascular tissue processing company, announced today that it, through its wholly-owned subsidiary CL Falcon, Inc., has commenced a cash tender offer for all outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis Corporation (OTCQB: CGCP) common stock.

The tender offer is being made pursuant to the previously announced definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger dated March 28, 2011. Subject to the terms and conditions of the tender offer, Cardiogenesis stockholders who validly tender their shares may elect to receive, for each share of Cardiogenesis common stock they tender in the tender offer, \$0.457 in cash, without interest and less any required withholding taxes. The Board of Directors of Cardiogenesis has unanimously determined that the tender offer and the other transactions contemplated by the merger agreement are fair to and in the best interests of the Cardiogenesis shareholders, and has unanimously recommended that Cardiogenesis stockholders tender their shares into the tender offer.

1655 Roberts Boulevard, NW • Kennesaw, Georgia 30144 (770) 419-3355 Phone • (770) 426-0031 Fax • e-mail: info@cryolife.com http://www.cryolife.com

The tender offer is scheduled to expire at 12:00 midnight (one minute after 11:59 p.m.), New York City time, on the evening of May 2, 2011, unless extended. The tender offer is not subject to a financing condition and is subject to certain conditions described in the tender offer statement that will be filed today with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, a copy of which will be mailed to Cardiogenesis stockholders, including the requirement that there shall have been validly tendered and not withdrawn a number of Cardiogenesis shares that, together with the shares, if any, owned by CryoLife or any of its subsidiaries, represent at least a majority of the outstanding Cardiogenesis shares on a fully diluted basis.

Any Cardiogenesis stockholders who have not sold their shares in the tender offer will have certain dissenters' rights with respect to the merger under the applicable provisions of the California Corporations Code, if those rights are perfected.

If over 83.5 percent of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis are tendered in the tender offer, CryoLife expects to exercise a "top up" option and close on the short-form merger approximately 10 days thereafter. If at least a majority, but less than 83.5 percent, of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis are tendered in the tender offer, CryoLife will purchase up to 49.9 percent of Cardiogenesis' shares in the tender offer, and Cardiogenesis will hold a special meeting of Cardiogenesis shareholders as soon as practical after the completion of the tender offer to vote on the proposed merger. If more than 50 percent of the outstanding shares of Cardiogenesis, including those shares acquired by CryoLife in the tender offer, vote in favor of the merger, CryoLife and Cardiogenesis will move to complete the merger as soon as possible after the special meeting of Cardiogenesis shareholders.

A more detailed description of the Cardiogenesis Board of Directors' recommendation can be found in the

Solicitation/Recommendation Statement on Schedule 14D-9 prepared by Cardiogenesis, which will be mailed to Cardiogenesis stockholders and which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) today, April 5, 2011. Additionally, CryoLife and CL Falcon, Inc. are filing with the SEC today a tender offer statement on Schedule TO, including an Offer to Purchase, Letter of Transmittal and other related materials setting forth in detail the terms of the tender offer. Copies of the Offer to Purchase, Letter of Transmittal and other related materials, including the Solicitation/Recommendation Statement, are available from Georgeson Inc., the information agent for the tender offer at 800-676-0098 (Toll Free). Banks and brokers are asked to call 212-440-9800. Computershare Inc. is acting as depositary for the tender offer.

About CryoLife

Founded in 1984, CryoLife, Inc. is a leader in the processing and distribution of implantable living human tissues for use in cardiac and vascular surgeries throughout the U.S. and Canada. CryoLife's CryoValve® SG pulmonary heart valve, processed using CryoLife's proprietary SynerGraft® technology, has FDA 510(k) clearance for the replacement of diseased, damaged, malformed, or malfunctioning native or prosthetic pulmonary valves. CryoLife's CryoPatch® SG pulmonary cardiac patch has FDA 510(k) clearance for the repair or reconstruction of the right ventricular outflow tract (RVOT), which is a surgery commonly performed in children with congenital heart defects, such as Tetralogy of Fallot, Truncus Arteriosus, and Pulmonary Atresia. CryoPatch SG is distributed in three anatomic

Page 2 of 5

configurations: pulmonary hemi-artery, pulmonary trunk, and pulmonary branch. CryoLife's BioGlue[®] Surgical Adhesive is FDA approved as an adjunct to sutures and staples for use in adult patients in open surgical repair of large vessels. BioGlue is also CE marked in the European Community and approved in Canada and Australia for use in soft tissue repair and was recently approved in Japan for use in the repair of aortic dissections. CryoLife's BioFoam Surgical Matrix is CE marked in the European Community for use as an adjunct in the sealing of abdominal parenchymal tissues (liver and spleen) when cessation of bleeding by ligature or other conventional methods is ineffective or impractical. CryoLife distributes PerClot[®], an absorbable powder hemostat, in the European Community.

For additional information about CryoLife, visit CryoLife's website, www.cryolife.com.

About Cardiogenesis Corporation

Cardiogenesis specializes in the treatment of cardiovascular disease and is a leader in devices that treat severe angina. Its market leading YAG laser system and single use fiber-optic delivery systems are used to perform an FDA-cleared surgical procedure known as Transmyocardial Revascularization (TMR).

For more information on Cardiogenesis and its products, please visit its website at www.cardiogenesis.com.

Forward Looking Statements

Statements made in this press release that look forward in time or that express CryoLife's management's beliefs, expectations or hopes are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements include the implied expectation that the cash tender offer will be completed and that CryoLife and Cardiogenesis will be able to successfully complete the merger discussed above. CryoLife may be unsuccessful in its efforts to acquire a majority ownership stake in Cardiogenesis and factors beyond the control of CryoLife may delay or prevent the occurrence of a successful tender offer and merger. Risks and uncertainties related to the transaction with Cardiogenesis include uncertainties as to the timing of the tender offer and merger, uncertainties as to how many of the Cardiogenesis shareholders will tender their stock in the offer, the risk that competing offers will be made, the possibility that various closing conditions for the transaction may not be satisfied or waived, including that a governmental entity may prohibit or delay the transaction, and the effects of disruption from the transaction making it more difficult to maintain relationships with employees, customers, business partners or governmental entities. As such, the transaction may not be completed in the anticipated time period, if at all. Forward-looking statements in this press release should be evaluated together with the risk factors detailed in CryoLife's Securities and Exchange Commission filings, including its Form 10-K filing for the year ended December 31, 2010, and CryoLife's other SEC filings. CryoLife does not undertake to update its forward-looking statements.

Page 3 of 5

Notice to Investors

This press release is neither an offer to purchase nor a solicitation of an offer to sell any securities. The solicitation and the offer to buy shares of Cardiogenesis Corporation's common stock is being made pursuant to an offer to purchase and related materials that CryoLife, Inc. intends to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. CryoLife, Inc. will file a tender offer statement on Schedule TO with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and thereafter Cardiogenesis Corporation will file a

solicitation/recommendation statement on Schedule 14D-9 with respect to the offer. The tender offer statement (including an offer to purchase, a related letter of transmittal and other offer documents) and the solicitation/recommendation statement will contain important information that should be read carefully and considered before any decision is made with respect to the tender offer. These materials will be sent free of charge to all stockholders of Cardiogenesis Corporation. In addition, all of these materials (and all other materials filed by CryoLife, Inc. or Cardiogenesis Corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission) will be available at no charge from the Securities and Exchange Commission through its website at www.sec.gov. Free copies of the offer to purchase, the related letter of transmittal and certain other offering documents will be made available by CryoLife, Inc. by Suzanne K. Gabbert at 1655 Roberts Blvd., NW, Kennesaw, GA 30144, telephone number 770-419-3355. Investors and security holders may also obtain free copies of the documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by Cardiogenesis by contacting Cardiogenesis Corporation Investor Relations at 11 Musick, Irvine, CA, 92618, telephone number (949) 420-1827, or IR@Cardiogenesis.com.

Additional Information about the Merger and Where to Find It

In connection with the potential merger, Cardiogenesis Corporation will file a proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Additionally, Cardiogenesis Corporation will file other relevant materials with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the proposed acquisition of Cardiogenesis Corporation by CryoLife, Inc. pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Cardiogenesis Corporation, CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation, and CL Falcon, Inc. a wholly-owned subsidiary of CryoLife, Inc. The materials to be filed by Cardiogenesis Corporation with the Securities and Exchange Commission may be obtained free of charge at the Securities and Exchange Commission's website at www.sec.gov. Investors and stockholders also may obtain free copies of the proxy statement from Cardiogenesis Corporation by contacting Cardiogenesis Corporation Investor Relations at 11 Musick, Irvine, CA, 92618, telephone number (949) 420-1827 or IR@Cardiogenesis.com. Investors and security holders of Cardiogenesis Corporation are urged to read the proxy statement and the other relevant materials when they become available before making any voting or investment decision with respect to the proposed merger because they will contain important information about the merger and the parties to the merger.

Cardiogenesis Corporation and its respective directors, executive officers and other members of their management and employees, under the Securities and Exchange Commission rules, may be deemed to be participants in the solicitation of proxies of Cardiogenesis Corporation stockholders in connection with the proposed merger. Investors and security holders may obtain more detailed information regarding the names, affiliations and interests of

Page 4 of 5

certain of Cardiogenesis' executive officers and directors in the solicitation by reading Cardiogenesis Corporation's proxy statement for its 2010 annual meeting of stockholders, the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, and the proxy statement and other relevant materials which may be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the merger when and if they become available. Information concerning the interests of Cardiogenesis Corporation's participants in the solicitation, which may, in some cases, be different from those of Cardiogenesis Corporation's stockholders generally, will be set forth in the proxy statement relating to the merger when it becomes available. Additional information regarding Cardiogenesis Corporation's directors and executive officers is also included in Cardiogenesis Corporation's proxy statement for its 2010 annual meeting of stockholders.

SOURCE CryoLife, Inc.

CRYOLIFE, INC. MUTUAL CONFIDENTIAL DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

Effective Date: October 6, 2009

In order to protect certain information disclosed hereunder (the "Disclosed Information") which may be disclosed by CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation, ("CryoLife") and "Participant" (identified below), CryoLife and the "Participant" agree that:

1. <u>PARTIES DISCLOSING INFORMATION</u>. The disclosers of Disclosed Information are CryoLife and Participant. The "Participant" is: Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation.

2. PRINCIPAL CONTACTS IDENTIFIED.

- (a) <u>CryoLife's Principal Contacts</u>. CryoLife's principal contacts for receiving or disclosing Disclosed Information are: D. Ashley Lee and Gerald B. Seery.
- (b) <u>Participant's Principal Contact</u>. Participant's principal contact for receiving or disclosing Disclosed Information is: Paul J. McCormick.

3. <u>DISCLOSED INFORMATION DESCRIBED.</u>

- (a) <u>CryoLife Disclosed Information</u>. The Disclosed Information from CryoLife that may be disclosed under this Agreement is described as: information concerning CryoLife's general business strategies and other CryoLife information.
- (b) <u>Participant Disclosed Information</u>. The Disclosed Information from Participant that may be disclosed under this Agreement is described as: information concerning Participant's general business strategies and other Participant information.

4. PURPOSE OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION.

- (a) <u>CryoLife Purpose</u>. For purposes of this Agreement, when receiving Disclosed Information, CryoLife is a "Recipient." CryoLife desires to obtain access to the Disclosed Information from Participant in order to do the following (the "CryoLife Purpose"): to evaluate a potential business transaction with Cardiogenesis Corporation.
- (b) <u>Participant Purpose</u>. For purposes of this Agreement, when receiving Disclosed Information, Participant is a "Recipient." Participant desires to obtain access to the Disclosed Information from CryoLife for the following purpose (the "Participant Purpose"): to evaluate a potential business transaction with CryoLife.

5. RESTRICTIONS ON DISCLOSED INFORMATION.

- (a) <u>Disclosed Information</u>. Each Recipient agrees to utilize the Disclosed Information only for such Recipient's purpose, as applicable (as set forth in Section 4(a) or 4(b) above as applicable, the "Recipient's Purpose"). Each Discloser shall be obligated to disclose only such portions of its Disclosed Information, if any, as it desires to disclose and may cease disclosures at any time.
- (b) <u>Documentation</u>. Each Recipient agrees that all drawings, records, recordings, notes, tapes, disks, documents, and all copies thereof relating to the other party's Disclosed Information, which are disclosed to it by such other party, shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of such other party. Each Recipient agrees not to duplicate, reproduce, copy, summarize or abstract the other party's Disclosed

-1-

Information except as is required to permit Recipient to evaluate such Disclosed Information for such Recipient's Purpose.

- (c) <u>Disclosure and Security</u>. Each Recipient will limit the disclosure of the other party's Disclosed Information to those of its employees whose participation is necessary to achieve such Recipient's Purpose, and then only under circumstances which guarantee that such Disclosed Information will be used only for such Recipient's Purpose and will not be disclosed without the prior written consent of an officer of such other party.
- (d) Return of Disclosed Information. Upon written request of the other party made at any time or upon expiration of the term of this Agreement, whichever first occurs, a Recipient shall deliver promptly to such other party, without retaining any copies or excerpts thereof, all written, recorded, taped or otherwise tangible notes, records, tapes, or disks containing any of such other party's Disclosed Information which is in the possession, custody or control of Recipient. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Recipient (i) shall not be obligated to return portions of reviews, analyses, compilations, notes or other documents prepared by Recipient which do not contain such other party's Disclosed Information and may delete such non-Disclosed Information from materials returned to such other party and (ii) may retain exclusively for archival purposes one copy of any reviews, analyses, compilations, notes or other documents prepared by Recipient which include such other party's Disclosed Information provided Recipient causes the archival copy (a) to be

held exclusively by the Company's legal department or by outside legal counsel acceptable to such other party and (b) to be returned to such other party or destroyed, without the retention of any copies thereof, prior to the expiration of the confidentiality terms set forth in this Section 5.

- (e) <u>Disclosure to Other Non-employee Agents.</u> Prior to a Recipient disclosing any of the other party's Disclosed Information or the fact of its existence to any non-employee ("Other Agent"), Recipient shall notify such other party in writing of the identity and address of the Other Agent and receive such other party's written consent to disclosure. In addition, prior to Recipient disclosing any Disclosed Information to any Other Agent, Recipient shall also (i) ensure that said Other Agent is and remains bound to the same obligations of confidentiality and non-use as apply to the Recipient hereunder in a manner which provides such other party with a direct right of action against the Other Agent to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of such Disclosed Information and (ii) remain independently responsible and liable to such other party for protecting the confidentiality and preventing unauthorized disclosure and/or use of all Disclosed Information disclosed to such Other Agent. The notices required under this subsection (e) shall be sent to CryoLife's General Counsel pursuant to the terms of Section 10(e).
- (f) <u>Disclosure to Outside Legal Counsel</u>. Each Recipient will limit the disclosure of the other party's Disclosed Information to outside legal counsel to disclosures made only under conditions which assure the continued confidentiality and limited use of such Disclosed Information consistent with the terms of this Agreement, including the terms of Section 5(e).
- 6. TERM AND SURVIVAL OF RECIPIENT OBLIGATIONS. The term of this Agreement is one (1) year. The obligations imposed on a Recipient by this Agreement related to the other party's Disclosed Information shall continue during the term hereof and for a period of five years thereafter or until such earlier time that the Disclosed Information is released by reason of the operation of the provisions of Section 8. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Disclosed Information of the other party that is also a "trade secret" under any applicable law continues to be subject to the obligations imposed on a Recipient by this Agreement as long as it remains a "trade secret" under such law. Additionally, Disclosed Information that is subject to other protections under applicable law (including without limitation patent and copyright law) will continue to be subject to protection under such laws notwithstanding the expiration of such five-year period.

- 2 -

- 7. <u>INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY</u>. Recipient does not acquire any intellectual property or use rights under this Agreement except the limited right to evaluate the other party's Disclosed Information for the Purpose in such Recipient's Purpose in the manner set forth herein.
- 8. <u>EXCLUSIONS</u>. The provisions applicable to Disclosed Information shall not apply to materials or information to the extent that such materials or information: (i) are or become publicly known through no fault of the Recipient; (ii) were in Recipient's possession prior to receipt from the other party; (iii) are furnished to Recipient by others with no restriction on disclosure, having been lawfully received; or (iv) are required to be disclosed by Recipient pursuant to applicable law, statute, regulation or court order. In the event that a Recipient becomes legally required pursuant to applicable law, statute, regulation or court order to disclose any of the Disclosed Information, such Recipient will give the other party prompt written notice of such requirement, and shall use its reasonable efforts to cooperate with such other party to obtain a protective order or other appropriate remedy to ensure that confidential treatment will be accorded such Disclosed Information. If, in the absence of a protective order, the Recipient determines, upon the advice of counsel, that it is required to disclose such information, it may disclose only Disclosed Information specifically required and only to the extent compelled to do so.
- 9. <u>ACCURACY OF INFORMATION</u>. The Disclosed Information is being disclosed on an "AS IS" basis; provided, that each party hereby agrees that it will not provide Disclosed Information that such party knows to be false or materially inaccurate or incomplete.

10. <u>MISCELLANEOUS</u>.

- (a) <u>Assignment; Severability</u>. This Agreement may not be assigned by Participant. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby.
- (b) <u>Governing Law.</u> This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. Participant hereby agrees that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement may be initiated in the courts of the State of Georgia or the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, and by execution and delivery of this Agreement, Participant hereby submits to and accepts, with regard to any such action or proceeding, for itself and in respect of its property, generally and unconditionally, the jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts.
- (c) Remedies; Attorneys' Fees. Each Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the other party will suffer irreparable harm by any unauthorized use or disclosure of such other party's Disclosed Information and that monetary damages will be insufficient to fully compensate such other party for its damages in such event. In the event of breach or threatened breach by Recipient, such other party shall be entitled to an injunction restraining Recipient from using or disclosing such other party's Disclosed Information. This provision does not prohibit or limit such other party from pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available to it, including damages, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by Recipient. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to

which such prevailing party may be entitled.

- (d) <u>Authority</u>. Each party represents and warrants that it has the power and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligation under this Agreement.
- (e) <u>Notices</u>. All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and by any one or more of the following means: (i) if mailed by prepaid certified mail, return receipt requested, such notice shall be deemed to have been received on the date of receipt, as shown on the receipt; (ii) if delivered by hand, such notice shall be deemed effective when

- 3 -

delivered; or (iii) if delivered by national overnight courier, such notice shall be deemed to have been received on the next business day following delivery to such courier. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be given to the parties hereto addressed to the office of any officer signing this Agreement at the address set forth below its signature to this Agreement (except for those set forth in Section 5(e)). Either party may designate a different address by notice to the other given in accordance herewith.

- (f) <u>Amendments; Headings</u>. No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the Participant and CryoLife. This Section, subsection and other headings in this Agreement are inserted solely as a matter of convenience and for reference, and are not a part of this Agreement.
- (g) <u>Prior Agreements</u>. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the matters contained herein; provided, however that this Agreement does not supersede prior confidentiality or nondisclosure agreements and understandings between the parties that would provide additional protection to CryoLife. No variations, modifications or changes herein or hereof shall be binding upon either party hereto unless set forth in a writing duly executed by such party. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against either party due to assertions that the one or the other was the author of this Agreement.
- (h) Other Rights. The rights of both parties under this Agreement to protect its Disclosed Information and other proprietary interests are in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other rights each party may have at law or in equity with respect to its Disclosed Information, including "trade secrets" protection under applicable law and other proprietary interests. The waiver by one party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by the other party shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision by such other party.
- (i) <u>Counterparts</u>. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be binding as of the date set forth below, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. Each such copy shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

CRYOLIFE, INC.

CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION

1655 Roberts Blvd., N.W. Kennesaw, GA 30144 11 Musick Irvine, CA 92618

/s/ Gerald B. Seery

Gerald B. Seery

Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing

/s/ Paul J. McCormick

Paul J. McCormick

Executive Chairman

/s/ D. Ashley Lee

D. Ashley Lee

Exec. VP, COO & CFO

CRYOLIFE, INC. MUTUAL CONFIDENTIAL DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

Effective Date: September 29, 2010

In order to protect certain information disclosed hereunder (the "Disclosed Information") which may be disclosed by CryoLife, Inc., a Florida corporation, ("CryoLife") and "Participant" (identified below), CryoLife and the "Participant" agree that:

1. <u>PARTIES DISCLOSING INFORMATION</u>. The disclosers of Disclosed Information are CryoLife and Participant. The "Participant" is: Cardiogenesis Corporation, a California corporation.

PRINCIPAL CONTACTS IDENTIFIED.

- (a) <u>CryoLife's Principal Contacts</u>. CryoLife's principal contacts for receiving or disclosing Disclosed Information are: D. Ashley Lee and Gerald B. Seery.
- (b) <u>Participant's Principal Contact</u>. Participant's principal contact for receiving or disclosing Disclosed Information is: Paul J. McCormick.

3. DISCLOSED INFORMATION DESCRIBED.

- (a) <u>CryoLife Disclosed Information</u>. The Disclosed Information from CryoLife that may be disclosed under this Agreement is described as: information concerning CryoLife's general business strategies and other CryoLife information.
- (b) <u>Participant Disclosed Information</u>. The Disclosed Information from Participant that may be disclosed under this Agreement is described as: information concerning Participant's general business strategies and other Participant information.

4. PURPOSE OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION.

- (a) <u>CryoLife Purpose</u>. For purposes of this Agreement, when receiving Disclosed Information, CryoLife is a "Recipient." CryoLife desires to obtain access to the Disclosed Information from Participant in order to do the following (the "CryoLife Purpose"): to evaluate a potential business transaction with Cardiogenesis Corporation.
- (b) <u>Participant Purpose</u>. For purposes of this Agreement, when receiving Disclosed Information, Participant is a "Recipient." Participant desires to obtain access to the Disclosed Information from CryoLife for the following purpose (the "Participant Purpose"): to evaluate a potential business transaction with CryoLife.

5. RESTRICTIONS ON DISCLOSED INFORMATION.

- (a) <u>Disclosed Information</u>. Each Recipient agrees to utilize the Disclosed Information only for such Recipient's purpose, as applicable (as set forth in Section 4(a) or 4(b) above as applicable, the "Recipient's Purpose"). Each Discloser shall be obligated to disclose only such portions of its Disclosed Information, if any, as it desires to disclose and may cease disclosures at any time.
- (b) <u>Documentation</u>. Each Recipient agrees that all drawings, records, recordings, notes, tapes, disks, documents, and all copies thereof relating to the other party's Disclosed Information, which are disclosed to it by such other party, shall be and remain the sole and exclusive property of such other party. Each Recipient agrees not to duplicate, reproduce, copy, summarize or abstract the other party's Disclosed

- 1 -

Information except as is required to permit Recipient to evaluate such Disclosed Information for such Recipient's Purpose.

- (c) <u>Disclosure and Security</u>. Each Recipient will limit the disclosure of the other party's Disclosed Information to those of its employees whose participation is necessary to achieve such Recipient's Purpose, and then only under circumstances which guarantee that such Disclosed Information will be used only for such Recipient's Purpose and will not be disclosed without the prior written consent of an officer of such other party.
- (d) Return of Disclosed Information. Upon written request of the other party made at any time or upon expiration of the term of this Agreement, whichever first occurs, a Recipient shall deliver promptly to such other party, without retaining any copies or excerpts thereof, all written, recorded, taped or otherwise tangible notes, records, tapes, or disks containing any of such other party's Disclosed Information which is in the possession, custody or control of Recipient. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Recipient (i) shall not be obligated to return portions of reviews, analyses, compilations, notes or other documents prepared by Recipient which do not contain such other party's Disclosed Information and may delete such non-Disclosed Information from materials returned to such other party and (ii) may retain exclusively for archival purposes one copy of any reviews, analyses, compilations, notes or other documents

prepared by Recipient which include such other party's Disclosed Information provided Recipient causes the archival copy (a) to be held exclusively by the Company's legal department or by outside legal counsel acceptable to such other party and (b) to be returned to such other party or destroyed, without the retention of any copies thereof, prior to the expiration of the confidentiality terms set forth in this Section 5.

- (e) <u>Disclosure to Other Non-employee Agents.</u> Prior to a Recipient disclosing any of the other party's Disclosed Information or the fact of its existence to any non-employee ("Other Agent"), Recipient shall notify such other party in writing of the identity and address of the Other Agent and receive such other party's written consent to disclosure. In addition, prior to Recipient disclosing any Disclosed Information to any Other Agent, Recipient shall also (i) ensure that said Other Agent is and remains bound to the same obligations of confidentiality and non-use as apply to the Recipient hereunder in a manner which provides such other party with a direct right of action against the Other Agent to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of such Disclosed Information and (ii) remain independently responsible and liable to such other party for protecting the confidentiality and preventing unauthorized disclosure and/or use of all Disclosed Information disclosed to such Other Agent. The notices required under this subsection (e) shall be sent to CryoLife's General Counsel pursuant to the terms of Section 10(e).
- (f) <u>Disclosure to Outside Legal Counsel</u>. Each Recipient will limit the disclosure of the other party's Disclosed Information to outside legal counsel to disclosures made only under conditions which assure the continued confidentiality and limited use of such Disclosed Information consistent with the terms of this Agreement, including the terms of Section 5(e).
- 6. TERM AND SURVIVAL OF RECIPIENT OBLIGATIONS. The term of this Agreement is one (1) year. The obligations imposed on a Recipient by this Agreement related to the other party's Disclosed Information shall continue during the term hereof and for a period of five years thereafter or until such earlier time that the Disclosed Information is released by reason of the operation of the provisions of Section 8. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Disclosed Information of the other party that is also a "trade secret" under any applicable law continues to be subject to the obligations imposed on a Recipient by this Agreement as long as it remains a "trade secret" under such law. Additionally, Disclosed Information that is subject to other protections under applicable law (including without limitation patent and copyright law) will continue to be subject to protection under such laws notwithstanding the expiration of such five-year period.

- 2 -

- 7. <u>INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY</u>. Recipient does not acquire any intellectual property or use rights under this Agreement except the limited right to evaluate the other party's Disclosed Information for the Purpose in such Recipient's Purpose in the manner set forth herein.
- 8. <u>EXCLUSIONS</u>. The provisions applicable to Disclosed Information shall not apply to materials or information to the extent that such materials or information: (i) are or become publicly known through no fault of the Recipient; (ii) were in Recipient's possession prior to receipt from the other party; (iii) are furnished to Recipient by others with no restriction on disclosure, having been lawfully received; or (iv) are required to be disclosed by Recipient pursuant to applicable law, statute, regulation or court order. In the event that a Recipient becomes legally required pursuant to applicable law, statute, regulation or court order to disclose any of the Disclosed Information, such Recipient will give the other party prompt written notice of such requirement, and shall use its reasonable efforts to cooperate with such other party to obtain a protective order or other appropriate remedy to ensure that confidential treatment will be accorded such Disclosed Information. If, in the absence of a protective order, the Recipient determines, upon the advice of counsel, that it is required to disclose such information, it may disclose only Disclosed Information specifically required and only to the extent compelled to do so.
- 9. <u>ACCURACY OF INFORMATION</u>. The Disclosed Information is being disclosed on an "AS IS" basis; provided, that each party hereby agrees that it will not provide Disclosed Information that such party knows to be false or materially inaccurate or incomplete.

10. MISCELLANEOUS.

- (a) <u>Assignment; Severability</u>. This Agreement may not be assigned by Participant. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable, the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby.
- (b) Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. Participant hereby agrees that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement may be initiated in the courts of the State of Georgia or the United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, and by execution and delivery of this Agreement, Participant hereby submits to and accepts, with regard to any such action or proceeding, for itself and in respect of its property, generally and unconditionally, the jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts.
- (c) Remedies; Attorneys' Fees. Each Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the other party will suffer irreparable harm by any unauthorized use or disclosure of such other party's Disclosed Information and that monetary damages will be insufficient to fully compensate such other party for its damages in such event. In the event of breach or threatened breach by Recipient, such other party shall be entitled to an injunction restraining Recipient from using or disclosing such other party's Disclosed Information. This provision does not prohibit or limit such other party from pursuing any other legal or equitable remedy available to it, including damages, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by Recipient. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce the terms of this

Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses, in addition to any other relief to which such prevailing party may be entitled.

- Authority. Each party represents and warrants that it has the power and authority to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligation under this Agreement.
- Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and by any one or more of the following means: (i) if mailed by prepaid certified mail, return receipt requested, such notice shall be deemed to have been received on the date of receipt, as shown on the receipt; (ii) if delivered by hand, such notice shall be deemed effective when

- 3 -

delivered; or (iii) if delivered by national overnight courier, such notice shall be deemed to have been received on the next business day following delivery to such courier. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be given to the parties hereto addressed to the office of any officer signing this Agreement at the address set forth below its signature to this Agreement (except for those set forth in Section 5(e)). Either party may designate a different address by notice to the other given in accordance herewith.

- Amendments; Headings. No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the Participant and CryoLife. This Section, subsection and other headings in this Agreement are inserted solely as a matter of convenience and for reference, and are not a part of this Agreement.
- Prior Agreements. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the matters contained herein; provided, however that this Agreement does not supersede prior confidentiality or nondisclosure agreements and understandings between the parties that would provide additional protection to CryoLife. No variations, modifications or changes herein or hereof shall be binding upon either party hereto unless set forth in a writing duly executed by such party. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against either party due to assertions that the one or the other was the author of this Agreement.
- Other Rights. The rights of both parties under this Agreement to protect its Disclosed Information and other proprietary interests are in addition to, and not in lieu of, all other rights each party may have at law or in equity with respect to its Disclosed Information, including "trade secrets" protection under applicable law and other proprietary interests. The waiver by one party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by the other party shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision by such other party.
- Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be binding as of the date set forth below, and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. Each such copy shall be deemed an original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement to produce or account for more than one such counterpart.

CRYOLIFE, INC.

CARDIOGENESIS CORPORATION

1655 Roberts Blvd., N.W. Kennesaw, GA 30144

11 Musick Irvine, CA 92618

/s/ D. Ashley Lee

D. Ashley Lee

Exec. VP, COO & CFO

/s/ Paul J. McCormick Paul J. McCormick

Executive Chairman